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IN THE COURT OF APPEALS 
OF THE ST ATE OF WASHINGTON 
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IN RE THE PERSONAL RESTRAINT 
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NO. 54188-2-11 
WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

Petitioner. 
STATE'S RESPONSE TO PERSONAL 
RESTRAINT PETITION 

A. ISSUES PERTAINING TO PERSONAL RESTRAINT PETITION: 

1. Should this personal restraint petition be dismissed as time barred where an 
alleged violation of RCW 10.43.040 is not a recognized exception to the 
one-year time limit for collateral attack? 

2. Is petitioner entitled to relief when he pleaded guilty and thereby waived the 
statutory defense ofRCW 10.43.040? 

3. Should the petition be dismissed as inadequately presented for review, 
where petitioner relies on bald assertions and conclusory allegations to 
support his claim? 

4. Must the petition be dismissed where petitioner fails to show a fundamental 
defect resulting in a complete miscarriage of justice as he cannot show a 
violation ofRCW 10.43.040? 
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B. STATUS OF PETITIONER: 

Petitioner, Weldon M. Gilbert, is restrained pursuant to a Judgment and Sentence 

entered in Pierce County Cause Number 07-1-05618-3. Appendix at 1-19. In November of 

2007, petitioner was originally charged in Pierce County Superior Court with multiple 

counts of Rape of a Child in the Second Degree and Rape of a Child in Third Degree, one 

count of Child Molestation in the Second Degree, and two counts of Sexual Exploitation of 

a Minor, all involving minor victims R.L.K. and E.L.K. Appx. at 20-29. At approximately 

the same time, petitioner was indicted in the United States District Court for the Western 

District of Washington, Cause No. CR07-5732BHS, on multiple counts of Sexual 

Exploitation of a Child in the Production of Child Pornography and one count of 

Transportation of a Minor to Engage in Illegal Sexual Activity, involving John Does I, 2 

and 3. See Gilbert PRP Appendix at 2-5. Petitioner was subsequently indicted on multiple 

additional charges in federal court. See Gilbert PRP Appx. at 9-22. 

On April 23, 2009, petitioner pleaded guilty in the United States District Court to 

thirty-one (31) counts ~f Sexual Exploitation of a Child in the Production of Child 

Pornography, contrary to 18 U.S.C. §§ 225l(a) and (e) and 2256; two (2) counts of 

Transportation of a Minor to Engage in Illegal Sexual Activity, contrary to 18 U:S.C. §§ 

2423(a) and 2; and two (2) counts of Obstruction of Justice, contrary to 18 U.S.C. §§ 

1512(b)(l) and (b)(3). Appx. at 107-132. See also, Gilbert PRP Appx. at 57-91. The 

charges involved 17 different victims (John Does 1-15, 17 and 18). See Appx. at 108-111, 

116-117. Petitioner's federal plea agreement was considered a "package" deal with the 

United States and State of Washington, such that his federal plea was conditioned on 

petitioner entering a guilty plea in Pierce County Superior Court. Appx. at 129-130, 132. 
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The federal court sentenced petitioner to 300 months in the United States Bureau of 

Prisons. Appx. at 191-192, 198-199. 

On November 20, 2009, petitioner pleaded guilty to an amended information in 

Pierce County Superior Court which charged him with two counts of Child Molestation in 

the First Degree and nine counts of Sexual Exploitation of a Minor. Appx. at 30-48. 

Petitioner was later permitted to withdraw his guilty plea1 and the Pierce County case was 

reset for trial. Appx. at 67-81. See also, Gilbert PRP Appx. at 274-76. The State 

subsequently filed a new amended information which charged three counts of Rape of a 

Child in the Second Degree, three counts of Rape of a Child in the Third Degree, one count 

of Child Molestation in the First Degree, five counts of Child Molestation in the Second 

Degree, one count of Child Molestation in the Third Degree, and one count of Possession 

of Depictions of Minor Engaged in Sexually Explicit Conduct. Appx. at 82-99. The counts 

included victims who were not the basis of any federal counts. Appx. at 91-93. 

Over two years later, on the day of trial, petitioner filed a motion to dismiss 

pursuant to RCW 10.43.040, arguing "his prior federal convictions for the same acts bar 

the entirety of this prosecution." Appx. at 100-132, 138. The State filed a response in 

opposition. Appx. at 133-36. The court denied petitioner's motion to dismiss. Appx. at 

143. Petitioner thereafter elected to enter a plea of guilty to a second amended information, 

charging him with nine counts of Child Molestation in the Second Degree and five counts 

of Child Molestation in the Third Degree. Appx. at 144, 146-166, 167-205. Counts XII, 

XIII and XIV of the second amended information involved victims who were not the basis 

of any federal counts. Appx. at 91-93, 150-151. The court imposed 116 months of 

1 The parties had contemplated a detenninate sentence but the charges to which petitioner pleaded guilty 
required indetenninate sentencing. 
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confinement and ordered the time to run consecutive to petitioner's federal case. Appx. at 

9. 

Petitioner did not file a direct appeal. His judgment and sentence became final on 

November 6, 2012, when the trial court entered it. Petitioner subsequently filed two 

personal restraint petitions, Nos. 51148-7-II and 51266-1-11, which were dismissed. Appx. 

at 206-209. Petitioner filed the instant personal restraint petition on October 11, 2019, 

claiming the federal and state charges to which he pleaded guilty violate RCW 10.43.040. 

The State's response follows. 

C. ARGUMENT: 

Personal restraint procedure came from the State's habeas corpus remedy, which is 

guaranteed by article 4, § 4 of the Washington State Constitution. In re Pers. Restraint of 

Hagler, 97 Wn.2d 818, 823, 650 P.2d 1103 (1982). Collateral attack includes personal 

restraint petitions, motions to vacate judgment, and motions to withdraw guilty plea. RCW 

10. 73 .090(2). Collateral attack by personal restraint petition is not, however, a substitute 

for direct appeal. In re Hagler, 97 Wn.2d. at 824. "Collateral relief undermines the 

principles of finality of litigation, degrades the prominence of the trial, and sometimes 

costs society the right to punish admitted offenders." In re Hagler, 97 Wn.2d at 824 (citing 

Engle v. Issac, 456 U.S. 107, 102 S. Ct. 1558, 71 L. Ed. 2d 783 (1982)). These costs are 

significant and require that collateral relief be limited in state as well as federal courts. In 

re Hagler, 97 Wn.2d at 824. 

In a collateral action, the petitioner must prove constitutional error resulted in 

actual prejudice. Mere assertions are inadequate to demonstrate actual prejudice. The rule 

constitutional error must be proven harmless beyond a reasonable doubt has no application. 
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In re Pers. Restraint of Mercer, 108 Wn.2d 714, 718-721, 741 P.2d 559 (1987); In re 

Hagler, 97 Wn.2d at 825. A petitioner must show a fundamental defect resulted in a 

complete miscarriage of justice to obtain collateral relief for alleged nonconstitutional 

error. In re Pers. Restraint of Cook, 114 Wn.2d 802, 812, 792 P .2d 506 ( 1990). This is a 

higher standard than actual prejudice. Id. at 810. "After establishing the appropriateness of 

collateral review; a petitioner will be entitled to relief only if he can meet his ultimate 

burden of proof, which, on collateral review, requires that he establish error by a 

preponderance of the evidence." Id. at 814 (citing In re Pers. Restraint of Hews, 99 Wn.2d 

80, 89, 660 P.2d 263 (1983)). Inferences must be drawn in favor of the judgment's validity. 

In re Hagler, 97 Wn.2d at 825-826. 

Reviewing courts have three options in evaluating personal restraint petitions: 

1. If a petitioner fails to meet the threshold burden of showing actual 
prejudice from constitutional error or a fundamental defect resulting 
in a miscarriage of justice, the petition must be dismissed; 

2. If a petitioner makes a prima facie showing of actual prejudice or a 
miscarriage of justice, but the merits cannot be determined on the 
record, the court should remand for a hearing on the merits or for a 
reference hearing pursuant to RAP 16.11 (a) and RAP 16.12; 

3. If the court is convinced a petitioner has proven actual prejudice 
arising from constitutional error or a miscarriage of justice, the 
petition should be granted. 

In re Hews, 99 Wn.2d at 88. 

1. THE PETITION MUST BE DISMISSED AS TIME BARRED, 
BECAUSE AN ALLEGED VIOLATION OF RCW 10.43.040 
DOES NOT DEFEAT THE ONE-YEAR TIME LIMIT FOR 
COLLATERAL ATTACK. 

Because of the costs and risks involved, there is a_time limit in which to file a 

collateral attack. RCW 10.73.090(1) subjects petitions to a one-year statute oflimitation. 

The statute provides: 
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No petition or motion for collateral attack on ajudgment and sentence in a 
criminal case may be filed more than one year after the judgment becomes 
final if the judgment and sentence is valid on its face and was rendered by a 
court of competent jurisdiction. 

RCW 10.73.090(1). The Supreme Court has addressed what makes a judgment facially 

invalid under RCW 10.73.090: 

Under this statute, the "facial invalidity" inquiry is directed to the judgment 
and sentence itself. "Invalid on its face" means the judgment and sentence 
evidences the invalidity without further elaboration. 

In re Pers. Restraint of Hemenway, 147 Wn.2d 529,532, 55 P.3d 615 (2002); see also, In 

re Pers. Restraint of Goodwin, 146 Wn.2d 861, 50 P .3d 618 (2002) ( court could properly 

consider petitioner's challenge to offender score because judgment was facially invalid by 

inclusion of washed out juvenile convictions). 

A claimed facial invalidity must be " ... a more substantial defect than a technical 

misstatement that had no actual effect on the rights of the petitioner." In re Pers. Restraint 

of Benavidez, 160 Wn. App. 165, 170,246 P.3d 842 (2011) (quoting In re Pers. Restraint 

of McKiearnan, 165 Wn.2d 777,783,203 P.3d 375 (2009)). In McKiearnan, the court held 

that a misstatement of the maximum sentence on the judgment and sentence did not render 

the judgment and sentence facially invalid. In re McKiearnan, 165 Wn.2d 777. 

The general rule is that a judgment and sentence is invalid on its face, if it 

demonstrates that the trial court did not have the power or statutory authority to impose the 

judgment or sentence. In re Pers. Restraint of Scott, 173 Wn.2d 911, 916-17, 271 P.3d 218 

(2012). Examples of a sentence unauthorized by statute include: (1) a sentence exceeding 

the statutory maximum, (2) a sentence for a nonexistent crime, and (3) a sentence that 

included a washed-out prior offense. See In re Pers. Restraint of Coats, 173 Wn.2d 123, 

135-36, 267 P .3d 324 (2011 ). 
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The Washington Supreme Court recently conducted a helpful review of what 

documents other than the judgment and sentence courts have looked to when finding 

facial invalidity. In re Coats, 173 Wn.2d at 143. 

While the court does not limit its review for facial invalidity to the four corners of 

the judgment and sentence, it only considers other documents to the extent that they reveal 

some fact that shows the judgment and sentence is invalid on its face because of a legal 

error. In re Coats, 173 Wn.2d. at 138-39. The court has found invalidity based upon 

charging documents, verdicts, and plea statements of petitioners on plea of guilty. S~e In 

re Pers. Restraint of Carrier, 173 Wn.2d 791, 799, 727 P.3d 209 (2012). While the court 

may consult verdict forms, it may not consult the jury instructions, trial motions, and other 

documents that relate to whether the petitioner received a fair trial. In re Scott, 173 Wn.2d 

~t 917. Further, "[a] judgment and sentence may be valid on its face even if the petitioner 

can show some error that might have received relief if brought on direct review or in a 

timely personal restraint petition." Id. 

Although the court will examine a plea statement to evaluate a claim that a 

judgment and sentence is not valid on its face, the court will not examine the judgment and 

sentence to determine whether the plea was voluntary. In re Coats, 173 Wn.2d at 142. An 

involuntary plea does not render a judgment and sentence facially invalid. Id. at 141. "[ A ]n 

invalid plea agreement cannot on its own overcome the one-year time bar or render an 

otherwise valid judgment and sentence invalid." In re McKiearnan, 165 Wn.2d at 782. 

Plea documents are only relevant to the extent they reveal how a judgment was entered in 

excess of a court's authority. Id. 
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In addition to the exceptions listed within RCW 10.73.090, there are other specific 

exceptions to the one-year time limit for collateral attack: 

The time limit specified in RCW 10. 73 .090 does not apply to a petition or 
motion that is based solely on one or more of the following grounds: 

( 1) Newly discovered evidence, if the [petitioner] acted with reasonable 
diligence in discovering the evidence and filing the petition or motion; 

(2) The statute that the [petitioner] was convicted of violating was 
unconstitutional on its face or as applied to the [petitioner's] conduct; 

(3) The conviction was ba_rred by double jeopardy under Amendment V of 
the United States Constitution or Article I, section 9 of the state 
Constitution; 

(4) The [petitioner] pied not guilty and the evidence introduced at trial was 
insufficient to support the conviction; 

(5) The sentence imposed was in excess of the court's jurisdiction; or 

(6) There has been a significant change in the law, whether substantive or 
procedural, which is material to the conviction, sentence, or other order 
entered in a criminal or civil proceeding instituted by the state or local 
government, and either the legislature has expressly provided that the 
change in the law is to be applied retroactively, or a court, in interpreting a 
change in the law that lacks express legislative intent regarding retroactive 
application, determines that sufficient reasons exist to require retroactive 
application of the changed legal standard. 

RCW 10.73.100. 

Personal restraint petitions are also governed by the rules of appellate procedure, 

which work in conjunction with the statutes. Under RAP 16.4, the court will grant 

appropriate relief under a personal restraint petition where a petitioner is under restraint, 

and that restraint is unlawful for one of seven specified reasons. RAP 16.4(a)-(c). 

However, even where a valid ground exists under RAP 16.4, the court will only 

grant relief if such relief can be granted under RCW 10.73.090, .100 and .130. RAP 

16.4( d), provides, in part: 
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The appellate court will only grant relief by a personal restraint petition if 
other remedies which may be available to petitioner are inadequate under 
the circumstances and if such relief may be granted under RCW 10. 73 .090 
or .100. 

If the Court independently reviews a petition filed more than one year after finality, 

the issues within it must necessarily fall within one of three categories: 1) no exception 

applies, and the issue is time barred; 2) the issue is allowed under an exception listed in 

RCW 10.73.100; 3) the issue is allowed under an exception listed in RCW 10.73.090(1). 

If an issue does not fall into any exception, the entire petition is dismissed. In re 

Pers. Restraint of Stoudmire, 141 Wn.2d 342, 3 50-51, 5 P Jd 1240 (2000) (Stoudmire /). 

The petitioner bears the burden of proving that an exception to the RCW 10. 73 .090 statute 

of limitation applies. Shumway v. Payne, 136 Wn.2d 383, 399-400, 964 P.2d 349 (1998); 

State v. Schwab, 141 Wn. App. 85, 90, 167 P.3d 1225 (2007). To meet that burden of 

proof, the petitioner must state the applicable exception within the petition. In re Personal 

Restraint of Stoudmire, 145 Wn.2d 258, 267, 36 P.3d 1005 (2001) (Stoudmire JI). The 

State, in responding to a petition, should not have to guess which exception the petitioner 

thinks applies, nor should the State have to prove the exceptions that do not apply. 

Here, petitioner's judgment and sentence became final on November 6, 2012, 

when the trial court entered it. RCW 10.73.090(3)(a). He did not file this petition until 

2019, more than one year later. Unless he shows that one of the exceptions in RCW 

l 0. 73 .100 applies or shows that his judgment and sentence is facially invalid, his petition 

is time-barred. In re Pers. Restraint of Hemenway, 147 Wn.2d-S29, 532-33, 55 P.3d 615 

(2002); In re Pers. Restraint of Toledo-Sotelo, 176 Wn.2d 759, 764, 297 P.3d 51 (2013). 

Petitioner does not claim his judgment and sentence is facially invalid. Rather, 

petitioner claims his petition meets the time bar exception in RCW 10. 73 .100(3). See PRP 
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at 7. RCW 10.73.100(3) provides an exception to the time bar for an alleged violation of 

constitutional double jeopardy: "The time limit specified in RCW 10.73.090 does not 

apply to a petition ... that is based solely on one or more of the following grounds ... The 

conviction was barred by double jeopardy under Amendment V of the United States 

Constitution or Article I, section 9 of the state Constitution." (Emphasis added). Petitioner, 

however, is alleging a violation of statutory double jeopardy under RCW 10.43.040 based 

on his federal and state court charges. 2 See PRP at 8-13 . Statutory double jeopardy is not 

an exception to the time bar under RCW 10.73.100. 

Pursuant to the doctrine of dual sovereignty, neither the Fifth Amendment to the 

United States Constitution nor Article I, section 9 of the Washington State Constitution 

prohibits successive prosecutions at the hands of separate sovereigns so long as each 

sovereign punishes the offender no more than once.3 State v. Ivie, 136 Wn.2d 173, 178, 

961 P.2d 941 (1998); State v. Ca/iguri, 99 Wn.2d 501, 511-12, 664 P.2d 466 (1983); 

Gamble v. United States,_ U.S. __ , 139 S. Ct. 1960, 204 L. Ed. 2d 322 (2019) 

2 Petitioner references the "state Double Jeopardy Clause" in a heading, see PRP at 8, but does not discuss or 
argue a violation of article I, section 9 in the body of his brief. Any additional argument that petitioner makes 
only in a heading is insufficient for this Court to address. See State v. Thomas, 150 Wn.2d 821, 868-69, 83 
P.3d 970 (2004) ("this court will not review issues for which inadequate argument has been briefed or only 
passing treatment has been made.); Cowiche Canyon Conservancy v. Bosley, 118 Wn.2d 801, 809, 828 P.2d 
549 (1992) (appellant waives assignments of error unsupported by argument or authority). Moreover, as 
argued below, case law is clear that neither the federal nor the state constitution bar successive prosecutions 
by separate sovereigns for the same offense. To the extent petitioner argues otherwise, his claims of a 
violation of article I, section 9 of the Washington Constitution and RCW 10.43.040 transform the collateral 
attack into an unreviewable mixed petition which must be dismissed. "A petition which relies upon RCW 
10. 73.100 to overcome the one-year time bar in RCW I 0. 73 .090 cannot be based upon any grounds other 
than the six grounds in RCW I 0.73.100." In re Pers. Restraint of Stenson, 150 Wn.2d 207, 220, 76 P.3d 241 
(2003) ( citing Stoudmire I, 141 Wn.2d at 349). "[I]f a personal restraint petition claiming multiple grounds 
for relief is filed after the one year period of RCW I 0.73.090 expires, and the court determines ... at least one 
of the claims is time barred, the petition must be dismissed" without any analysis of which claims are timely 
and which are not. Id. (citing In re Pers. Restraint of Hankerson, 149 Wn.2d 695, 702, 72 P.3d 703 (2003)). 
See also, Stoudmire I, 141 Wn.2d at 350-51 (ifan issue does not fall into any exception, the entire petition is 
dismissed). 
3 "The Washington State Constitution, article I, section 9 provides the same protection against double 
jeopardy as the fifth amendment to the federal constitution." In re Pers. Restraint of Orange, 152 Wn .2d 795, 
8 I 5, I 00 P.3d 291 (2004) (citing State v. Goeken, 127 Wn.2d 95, 107, 896 P.2d 1267 (I 995)). 
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(declining to overturn the longstanding dual-sovereignty doctrine); Bartkus v. Illinois, 359 

U.S. 121, 132-38, 79 S. Ct. 676, 3 L. Ed. 2d 684 (1959). States are free to provide greater 

protection against double jeopardy, either by state constitution or by statute. See Ivie, 136 

Wn.2d at 178; Caliguri, 99 Wn.2d at 511. Washington has chosen to reject the dual 

sovereignty doctrine by statute - RCW 10.43.040. See Ivie, 136 Wn.2d at 178; Caliguri, 

99 Wn.2d at 511-12. The statute provides, 

Whenever, upon the trial of any person for a crime, it appears that the 
offense was committed in another state or country, under such 
circumstances that the courts of this state had jurisdiction thereof, and that 
the defendant has already been acquitted or convicted upon the merits, in a 
judicial proceeding conducted under the criminal laws of such state or 
country, founded upon the act or omission with respect to which he or she 
is upon trial, such former acquittal or conviction is a sufficient defense. 
Nothing in this section affects or prevents a prosecution in a court of this 
state of any person who has received administrative or nonjudicial 
punishment, civilian or military, in another state or country based upon the 
same act or omission. 

RCW 10.43.040. 

RCW 10.43.040 has been in effect since 1909. See Laws of 1909, ch. 249 § 19; In 

re Pers. Restraint of Cook, 114 Wn.2d 802, 808, 792 P.2d 506 (1990). RCW 10.73.100, 

on the other hand, was enacted in 1989. See Laws of 1989, ch. 395 § 2. If the legislature 

intended for statutory double jeopardy in RCW 10.43.040 to defeat the one-year time limit 

for collateral attack, then it would have included such an exception in the plain language 

ofRCW 10.73.100. Because RCW 10.43.040 is not listed as an exception to the time bar, 

it is not an exception to the time bar. See In re Cook, 114 Wn.2d at 805 (indicating that 

petitions filed after 1989 and claiming a violation of RCW 10.43.040 are subject to the 

time limits for collateral attacks in RCW 10.73.090-.140). 
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"In interpreting a statute, this court looks first to its plain language. If the plain 

language of the statute is unambiguous, then this court's inquiry is at an end. The statute is 

to be enforced in accordance with its plain meaning." State v. Armendariz, 160 Wn.2d 

106, 110, 156 P.3d 201 (2007) (citing State v. JP., 149 Wn.2d 444,450, 69 P.3d 318 

(2003)). RCW 10.73.100(3) only provides an exception for constitutional double jeopardy. 

See State v. Rudy, 105 Wn.2d 921, 924, 719 P .2d 550 (1986) (noting that "no 

constitutional issue is involved" in case involving alleged double jeopardy violation under 

RCW 10.43.040). Because petitioner's claim relies on an alleged violation of statutory 

double jeopardy, and statutory double jeopardy is not a recognized exception to the time 

bar, the petition must be dismissed as time barred. 

2. PETITIONER WAIVED HIS RCW 10.43.040 CLAIM BY PLEADING 
GUILTY. 

Petitioner waived his RCW 10.43.040 claim by pleading guilty to the amended 

charges. "A guilty plea generally insulates the defendant's conviction from collateral 

attack." State v. Knight, 162 Wn.2d 806, 811, 174 P.3d 1167 (2008). In Washington, a 

defendant pleading guilty specifically waives the presumption of innocence, the right to 

remain silent, and the right to force the State to prove guilt beyond a reasonable doubt at a 

trial. CrR 4.2(g)(5). A guilty plea also waives the right to test the State's trial evidence by 

cross-examining State witnesses or presenting defense witnesses. Id. Any defendant, 

including petitioner, who waives these rights and enters a guilty plea gives up the right to 

force the State to prove guilt and to challenge the State's evidence of guilt. In re Pers. 

Restraint of Bybee, 142 Wn. App. 260,268, 175 P.3d 589 (2007). Petitioner was advised 

of the same in his statement on plea of guilty. Appx. at 152-153. 
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Petitioner averred understanding the charges to which he pleaded guilty and the 

consequences of his guilty plea, and he affirmed that he was making his plea freely and 

voluntarily. Appx. at 152-160. The court found petitioner's guilty plea to be "knowingly, 

intelligently and voluntarily made" with an understanding of the charges and the 

consequences of the plea. Appx. at 160. It is presumed petitioner's guilty plea was 

knowing, intelligent and voluntary. See State v. Smith, 134 Wn.2d 849, 852, 953 P.2d 810 

(1998); In re Pers. Restraint of Ness, 70 Wn. App. 817, 821, 855 P.2d 1191 (1993). 

RCW 10.43.040 is a statutory defense. See RCW 10.43.040 (" ... such former 

acquittal or conviction is a sufficient defense"). "A guilty plea waives all defenses other 

than the failure of the information to charge an offense." State v. Peltier, 181 Wn.2d 290, 

294, 332 P.3d 457 (2014). A criminal defendant can also generally waive rights that exist 

for his own benefit. Id. at 297. For example, a defendant can waive his right to a timely 

trial under CrR 3.3. See CrR 3.3(c)(2)(i); CrR 3.3(d)(3), (4). A defendant may waive the 

criminal statute of limitations in a pretrial agreement. See, e.g. , In re Pers. Restraint of 

Swagerty, 186 Wn.2d 801,383 P.3d 454 (2016); Peltier, 181 Wn.2d at 297-98. And, an 

allegation that concurrent convictions constitute the same criminal conduct is waived if 

not raised before the trial court. See In re Pers. Restraint of Shale, 160 Wn.2d 489, 496, 

158 PJd 588 (2007); State v. Nitsch, 100 Wn. App. 512,997 P.2d 1000, review denied, 

141 Wn.2d 1030 (2000). 

Other jurisdictions have found that statutory double jeopardy may be waived. See, 

e.g., In re Marcus B., 942 N.Y.S.2d 38, 42, 95 A.D.3d 15, 20 (2012) ("While a guilty plea 

may waive a statutory double jeopardy claim, a constitutional claim of double jeopardy 

survives a guilty plea."); People v. Prescott, 66 N.Y.2d 216,220,495 N.Y.S.2d 955, 957-
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58,486 N.E.2d 813,815 (1985); In re Habeas Corpus Application ofCoulter, 18 Kan. 

App.2d 795, 860 P.2d 51 (1993) (defendant's nolo contendere plea waived his statutory 

protection against successive prosecutions by separate sovereigns). RCW 10.43.040 is 

only a statutory right. Therefore, cases which focus upon constitutional violations of 

double jeopardy do not apply. See, e.g., Menna v. New York, 423 U.S. 61, 62, 96 S. Ct. 

241, 46 L. Ed. 2d 195 (1975); In re Pers. Restraint of Schorr, 191 Wn.2d 315, 321-24, 422 

P.3d 451 (2018).4 Petitioner's guilty plea waived his RCW 10.43.040 claim. His petition 

should be dismissed. 

3. PETITIONER FAILS TO PROVIDE SUFFICIENT PROOF TO 
SUPPORT HIS CLAIM. 

A personal restraint petitioner is required to provide "the facts upon which the 

claim of unlawful restraint of petitioner is based and the evidence available to support the 

factual allegations .... " RAP 16. 7( a)(2)(i). This requirement means that a "petitioner must 

state with particularity facts which, if proven, would entitle him to relief." In re Pers. 

Restraint of Rice, 118 Wn.2d 876, 886, 828 P.2d 1086 (1992). Bald assertions and 

conclusory allegations are insufficient to support a claim. Id. 

Collateral attack claims must be supported by affidavits stating particular facts, 

certified documents, certified transcripts, and the like. RAP 16.7(a)(2); Petition of 

Williams, 111 Wn.2d 353, 759 P.2d 436 (1988); In re Pers. Restraint of Connick, 144 

Wn.2d 442,451, 28 P.3d 729 (2001). Petitioners "must present evidence showing[] 

4 However, after a guilty plea, a constitutional double jeopardy violation must still be clear from the record 
presented on appeal or else be waived. See In re Schorr, 191 Wn.2d at 324 (citing United States v. Broce, 488 
U.S. 563, 575-76, I 09 S. Ct. 757, I 02 L. Ed. 2d 927 (1989)); Knight, 162 Wn.2d at 811; In re Pers. Restraint 
ofNew/un, 158 Wn. App. 28, 33-34, 240 P.3d 795 (2010). As argued below, petitioner fails to provide the 
record necessary to make a factual comparison of the federal and state court charges, as is his burden. Thus, 
even if cases involving constitutional double jeopardy were to apply to this case, because petitioner's 
statutory double jeopardy claim is not clear from the record on appeal, it is waived. 
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factual allegations are based on more than speculation, conjecture, or inadmissible 

hearsay." In re Rice, 118 Wn.2d at 886-87. "[A] mere statement of evidence[] petitioner 

believes will prove [] allegations is not sufficient." Id. Facts alleged in inherently 

unreliable or factually deficient declarations are not be considered as proof of a claim. In 

re Pers. Restraint of Reise, 146 Wn. App. 772, 780-81, 192 P.3d 949 (2008) (citing State 

v. Taylor, 83 Wn.2d 594, 597-98, 521 P.2d 699 (1974)). A petition must be dismissed 

when the petitioner fails to provide sufficient evidence to support its claims. Id.; In re 

Rice, 118 Wn.2d at 885-86, 893. See also, In re Pers. Restraint of Newlun, 158 Wn. App. 

28, 33-34, 240 P.3d 795 (2010) (an appellate court is permitted to review a constitutional 

double jeopardy claim made on collateral attack only if the record is sufficient to establish 

the violations). 

Here, petitioner makes the conclusory allegation that "the crimes for which Gilbert 

was convicted and sentenced were the same in fact as the crimes for which he was 

sentenced in federal court." See PRP at 13. This is insufficient to support his claim. In re 

Rice, 118 Wn.2d at 886. Petitioner fails to point to or provide the specific facts underlying 

the federal and state court charges. He merely alleges that they were based on the same 

victims and same evidence. See PRP at 13. 

Investigators found "seve_ral boxes of videotapes" in petitioner's residence. Appx. 

at 53. The videos involved approximately 40 victims and 250 different scenes. Appx. at 

53, 88. One victim was depicted in 102 scenes. Appx. at 54. The federal fourth 

superseding indictment lists the victim(s) for each charge and the discovery tape and scene 

number. Appx. 107-109. However, it does not describe what is specifically depicted in 

those individual scenes. Petitioner does not provide that information, as is his burden. His 

federal plea agreement noted that each child pornography production count involved "(a) 

[petitioner] engaged in some form of sex act with the victim, !!!: the victim masturbating at 
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[petitioner's] request; or (b) a lascivious display of the victims' genitalia." Appx. at 121 

(emphasis added). Therefore, it appears at least some of the federal charges involved 

conduct that did not include child molestation. Petitioner provides nothing to make a 

factual comparison of the federal and state court charges. Thus, his petition should be 

dismissed as inadequately presented for review. 

4. PETITIONER FAILS TO DEMONSTRATE A FUND AMENT AL 
DEFECT RESULTING IN A COMPLETE MISCARRIAGE OF 
JUSTICE, AS HE CANNOT SHOW A VIOLATION OF RCW 10.43.040. 

"RCW 10.43.04 prohibits a Washington prosecution if the defendant has already 

been prosecuted for the same offense by the federal government or another state or 

country." Ivie, 136 Wn.2d at 176. The statute specifically addresses successive 

prosecution founded upon the same "act or omission." RCW 10.43.040. In State v. 

Caliguri, 99 Wn.2d 501,514,664 P.2d 466 (1983), the Washington Supreme Court 

construed RCW 10.43.040 to "prohibit state prosecution for any offense which is in/act 

alone identical to or included within an offense for which a defendant has been previously 

prosecuted in another jurisdiction." (Emphasis added). "Act" as used in RCW 10.43.040 

includes the mental state accompanying it. Caliguri, 99 Wn.2d at 514. 

In Caliguri, the court found that RCW 10.43.040 did not prohibit the defendant's 

state prosecution for conspiracy to commit murder based on his prior federal prosecution 

for racketeering. 5 99 Wn.2d at 514-15. Although the federal and state prosecutions relied 

on the same witnesses and exhibits, the defendant's conspiracy to commit murder 

conviction "required proof of an act of a different character; namely, arson committed 

with the premediated intent to cause a particular individual's death." Id. at 503-04, 514. 

See also, State v. Rudy, 105 Wn.2d 921, 719 P.2d 550 (1986) (defendant convicted in 
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federal court for interference with commerce by threats or violence did not bar state action 

for kidnapping in the first degree with intent to inflict extreme emotional distress even 

though charges based on the same events because state had not charged defendant with the 

same act). 

Here, petitioner's federal charges of sexual exploitation of a child in the production 

of child pornography required proof that: ( 1) petitioner employed, used, persuaded, 

induced, enticed, or coerced the victim to take part in sexually explicit conduct for the 

purpose of producing a visual depiction of that conduct; (2) the victim was a minor; and 

(3) that the visual depiction was produced using materials that had been transported in 

interstate or foreign commerce. Appx. at 116-117. See also, 18 U.S.C. § 225l(a); United. 

States v. Sheldon, 755 F.3d 1047, 1049-50 (9th Cir. 2014). "Sexually explicit conduct" is 

defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2256 and includes actual or simulated sexual intercourse, 

masturbation, sadistic or masochistic abuse, or lascivious exhibition of the genitals. As 

noted above, the evidence in the federal matter consisted of videotapes which depicted 

"(a) [petitioner] engaged in some form of sex act with the victim, m: the victim 

masturbating at [petitioner's] request; m: (b) a lascivious display of the victims' genitalia." 

Appx. at 121 ( emphasis added). 

On the other hand, petitioner's state charges of child molestation in the second 

degree required proof that petitioner had, or knowingly caused another person under the 

age of 18 to have, sexual contact with a person who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 

years old. RCW 9A.44.086. Petitioner's state charges of child molestation in the third 

degree required proof of the same with a minor victim at least 14 years old but less than 

5 The federal racketeering charge incorporated conspiracy to commit arson as an element. Caliguri, 99 Wn.2d 
at 503. 
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16 years old. RCW 9A.44.089. "Sexual contact" is statutorily defined as "any touching of 

the sexual or other intimate parts of a person done for the purpose of gratifying sexual 

desire of either party or a third party." RCW 9A.44.010(2). 

Petitioner's underlying purpose in the federal prosecution was to produce visual 

depictions of minor victims engaged in sexually explicit conduct. That sexually explicit 

conduct included acts that did not constitute child molestation (e.g., masturbation and 

lascivious exhibition of the genitals). Petitioner committed child molestation for the 

purpose of gratifying the sexual desires of himself or another. Sexual gratification is not 

required for the federal charges. The strict interpretation of the term "act" in Caliguri and 

Rudy leads to the conclusion that the State of Washington did not charge petitioner with 

the same "act" as the United States. See State v. Duncan, 111 Wn.2d 859, 869-71, 765 

P.2d 1300 (1989); In re Pers. Restraint of Cook, 114 Wn.2d 802, 815-16, 792 P.2d 506 

(1990). Moreover, the state prosecution included minor victims who were not listed in the 

federal indictment, so they were not the same "in fact." See Appx. at 91-93, 150-151 

(victims T.M. and LC.). 

State v. Neufeld, 351 Mont. 389,212 P.3d 1063 (2009), cited by petitioner, is 

distinguishable for several reasons. First, it is an out-of-state case and thus not binding 

authority. See American Best Food, Inc. v. Alea London, Ltd., 168 Wn.2d 398,408,229 

P.3d 693 (2010). Second, Neufeld was a direct appeal, not a collateral attack, and so not 

subject to the same time limitation as this case. Third, the defendant in Neufeld did not 

plead guilty in state court, so waiver was not at issue. Fourth, the record was sufficient for 

the court to determine if the federal and Montana charges were factually the same. Fifth, 

the federal and Montana charges involved the same singular victim. Finally, the text of 
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Montana's double jeopardy statute, M.C.A. § 46-11-504(1 ), is broader than Washington's 

double jeopardy statute, and thus subject to different analysis. See Neufeld, 351 Mont. at 

391-93 (definition of "transaction" as used in statute). See also, Heddings v. State, 362 

Mont. 90, 94-97, 265 P.3d 600 (2011) (distinguishing Neufeld). 

Petitioner fails to demonstrate a violation of RCW 10.43.040. His state court 

charges "required proof of an act of a different character." See Caliguri, 99 Wn.2d at 514. 

As a result, he fails to show a fundamental defect resulting in a complete miscarriage of 

justice, and his petition must be dismissed. 

D. CONCLUSIONS: 

The State respectfully requests that this Court dismiss the petition as time barred. 

The petition should also be dismissed, because petitioner waived his RCW 10.43.040 claim 

by pleading guilty, he fails to provide sufficient evidence to support his claim, and he fails 

· to show a violation of RCW 10.43.040. 

DATED: March 13, 2020. 

MARY ROBNETT 
Pierce County 

~ 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 
WSB #44108 

Certificate of Service: ~ 
The undersigned certifies that on this day she delivered by S. 1 ail or 
ABC-LMI delivery to the attorney of record for the appellan nd appellant 
c/o his or her attorney or to the attorney of record for the respondent and 
respondent c/o his or her attorney true and correct copies of the document to 
which this certificate is attached. This statement is certified to be true and 
correct under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of Washington. Signed 
at Tacoma, Washington, on the date below. 
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II 5 0BSTRUCTION OF 04,'13/09 I us DIS! FEDERAL ] 1:!111/07 IA 
I 

JUSTICE CO'URT, WE:>""'TERN I I !WA 
6 I OTHER CURRENT OTHER I PIERCE, WA A NV I 0'7-l-0561B-3 CUR.RENT I 

7 OTHER Cu"'RREN! OiHER I PIERCE,WA A NV I 07-1-05~18-3 CURRENT 

8 OTHER Cu""RRENT OiHER PIKR.CE,WA A NV I 07-1-05618-3 CURRENT 
9 OT".dER CURREHT OTHER PIERCE,WA A NV I (f]-1-05618-3 CURRENT 
10 0TiiEF. ~-r OTHER PIERCE,WA A l,l1l I 

07-1-05612-3 CURRENT I 
11 OTHER C'JRRElIT OTHER I PIERCE.WA A NV I 07-1-05618-3 CURRENT I 

u OTHER CL'RRElIT OTHER PIERCE,WA A NV I 

0'7-l-05618-3 CURRENT I 
13 OTHE:R CUF.P-ENT 0THER PIERCE, WA A NV I 07-1-05618-3 CURRENT I 
14 OTiiE.R CUR..~ OTHER PIERCE,WA A NV j (l]-1-05618-3 CURRENT 
15 OTHER CUF.REN'! OTHER PIERCE, WA A NV I 

v7-l-056i8-3 CURRENT I 
1~ OTHER CUP.RENT OTHER PIERCE,WA A NV I C?-1-0561.8-3 CURF.E!-IT 
]'7 OTHER CURRENT OTHER I PIERCE,WA A NV I c,1.1-c.s6i8-3 CURP .. EN'T i I 

18 OTHEP. CURRENT OTHER I PIERC~. WA A. INV ' C7-I-C5618-3 CURP..ENT I j I 

[ ] The cCl.ll't finds that the follm,~ pncr cwv1e11ms are me offense fa- purpose!> of detemuning the 
cffend~ ~:ro? (RCW 9 ~4A525}. 
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(X] n-,e follow mg pmr cormct1eno. are ntt camt~d ss. points but ss enhancen,mts pursuerit to RCW' 46 61 520 

23 SENTENCING-DATA 
I 

MAXIMUM I :ouNt OPflTDl!.R. S!FlOTJS?T!SS I S!AND.\F.D F.ANG! PLUS TOTAL STANDAF-D 
NO SCOF.l!. lI'.lTJ!L I (cr,t indu,img .;nbmr,t111 •J11.9 Dm.~.Ncl!MW rs RANGI'. ?!RM I 

(u:~bcing ~i:hmccm ~=-, 1 
I 

~ VTI 'OJ. l JoMONTHS 87-l 16MONTHS 10YR/2()K I 

trr 9+ VI! 8'7-111 MONTHS fr7-l 16lvf0:NTBS l0YRl20K ! 
[II 9+ VII 87 -116 MONT.riS 87-116M01'1T.t!S 10YR/2vK I 
~, g,- V 6C1 MONTFS [{)MONTHS SYPJlOKI 

V 9+ V (:J) MONTES 6C11viONTHS 5YRtl0K I 
~r. 9+ V 60MO};I"P..S l 60MONTHS 5YP..,'l•K : 
:vn ~'+- V1l ~-ll6MONTHS f!7-116MONTHS 1{1YR/20:K f 

iV!Il 9+ vu 'c"7 -! 16 MObITHS ! 87-llfllONTHS l0YR/20:K I 
ID{ 9+ VII I 87-l 16MONTHS 87-116MONTHS 10YPJ20K I 

~-{ 9-+· H tlJMOllTHS '60MONTIIS 5YR,'JOK l " 
[XI 9+ VII I 87-i16MONTES &7-116 MnNTHS l0YPJ20K I 

XII 9+ VII : 87-116:MONTHS ~-l16MONI'HS 10YR/20K I 
DaII 9+ \'Il I 87-ll6MONTHS F:i-116 MONTrlS l0YPJWK I 
[JGV 9+ V (f.)UONTH3 l..OMONT'.nS 5YR/10K I 

I 

24 [ ] EXCEPTIONAL SENTENCE Substsnt1al and canpellmg reasons e:intt which JUstlfY an 
e::::cepLlc:na.l scr.t.enci:' 

[ ) w1tlun [ } belO'tV the sta!ldsrd rsn6e far Cour..t(s) 

[ I abooe the stslidard range fer Count(~) 
[ ) The defendant and state sttpulsre that.Justice 1s best S'=l'Ved by 1.?nposiUm cf the exc~ti.:nal sentence 

abm e the :ttar,dsrd rsnge snd the court fmili the e,.cepuon.al Sclr,tmc<" fun.~m ar,d is ccr,si~eit with 
the interests of Just.lee and th<: purposes of the sentenangrefarm set 

[ 1 A.ggrav~ fac:tcn wa-e ( 1 s.ipulated ty the daf'31dsn1, ( ] found by the cwrt aft€!" the d-?f~nda.!u 
v:eived ;ur:, trial, [ ] ftutd br Jtry by speoal lll!er.-ogat:Yy 

Findings of fact and ccriduSJCll!°> of law are attached m Appendlx 2 4 [ } Jury's speaal mterrogatay 1s. 

attached. The R-csea.tt.mg ./1.tt(rney f j did [ ] dld not recammE!!ld a s1m1llil" SSl!Sice. 

25 ABILITY TO PAY LEGAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS The court ha: ccns1d2""ed the tctal amount 
O'Ning, the defendant's past, pre-sent and future ab1ht'/ to pl!'/ legal fir.anaal obllgstJ.cm, mcludmg the 
d=fendiillt' r; finsnGal r2~.:es and th-? llkelihoo.:i that the dEfendant' ~ stsnE will .:h.ar,ge. The c.iun [1.r,d.; 
that tt,e deienasnt has the ability ar lr.lc,aly future ab1l1ty to pay the JeggJ financial obhg&Hris ~o!.ed 
her~in. RCW 994A 753 

[ J TI:e following extracrdmsry arrumsta11c,;,,; ell'.J st th3t rnske re!.t.ltuticn 111appr~nste (RC\V 9 94A 7 53) · 

[ J The following e:ttrsordmsry crOJin:.tances eJ..,st that make payment of rionrr,anda!cry legal finsnasl 
othgsccr~ :.n~pr~nste 
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Frr 111olait off!:mes, r~ sa,ous offense~ er !!"med offenders reccmmended sentenang agreemeru:s er 
plea agr~ are [ ] at:&ched [ ] !!. follows 

ID.JUDGMENT 

The defaidsnt 1s GUil,TY of the Counts and Charges hsted mParsgr~. 2 1 

[ ] Theccurt.DISMISSES Crunts ____ [ ] The defendsm 1s famd.NOT GUil,TY of Counts 

IV. SENTENCE A.ND ORDER 

IT IS ORDEli'.ED 

41 Defmdant shall psytothe Clerk ofthls CCllrt t'PumComityClti:k,930 TuomaAvoffllO, Ta~oaaWA9i'402) 

9 
J.ASSCODE 

10 RTNJRJN $ Rest.1tllt1<n to _;_ ____ _ 
11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

PCV 

Dz.L4 

PUB 

FRC 

FCM 

$ Resbtuum to 
(N3:ne and Ac!.dres.s--addrest rn:rJ be w1t.'lheld snd prov1ded Cll5den:islly tc Clerk's Office) 

$ 500 00 Crane Victim assessmmt 

$ 100.00 DNA Dstaba!eFee 

$ ____ Court-Appointed Attcmey Fees md Defense Costs 

$ 200 00 Criminal Filing Fee 

$ Fme 

OTHER LEGAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS (specify below) 
S:..,_ ___ OtherCostsftr ___________________ _ 

S:.,__ ___ Othi'r"C~fcr ___________________ _ 

s ffl?.DQ TOTAL 

r J The above tot.al does net mdude all restiwtlm whlch may be set by lam- crdE!!" of the crurt. .An agreed 
re~tilti~ an:le- maybe er.ta-e.i RCW !: 94A ;53 A re:itltut1m hesring. 

[ J shall be set b7 the prcsecutcr. 
[] :?.!>Cheduled fer _________________________ _ 

[ ] RESIII OlluN Order Attached 

[ J The Department ofCcrrecllms iDOC) er de-k oftt.e crurt shall immediately mue s Nctice of Payroll 
I;educt1cr. RC'J.T 9 94A 760Z, R.C"H 9.94A 7(1X_rfj 

[XJ All payments shall be made m sccccdance with the pohaes of the dl!l'X: ca-runenang immediately. 
unle-ss the- court speofically :a'it:. forth the- r&te he-e-m. Net leis than $'-------per mer.tr, 
ccmmencmg _______ RCW 9.94 7f:IJ If the co~ doesncr. set thentte herein, the 
defmdant shall rt!9at to the de'k' s office within 24 hrurs of the entry of the JU~E!llt md ~entence to 
~ t:p a ~~JF.1ent ~lin 

JUDG::.vIEJ,,'T A.."'ID SENTENCE (JS) 
(Felmy) (J IZ<:m) Page 5 of 14 Offlce ol ProseaJ11111t Attorney 

930 Tacema Avm11f S. Room 946 
Tacoma, Washlngto• 98402-1171 
Tdephoae: (253) 798-7-400 1 
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The defendant shall repcrt to tt,e clerk of the crurt er as directed by the clerk of the ccut tc !'l"O'llde 
fir.meal en:i ether mfa:ma:.im a":; requette:i. RCW 9.94A 760(1'.,(b) 

[ ] COSTS OF INCARCERATION In addluai to other costs m,posed he-ein. the court finds that the 
defenrlant .hss er :s likely tchave t.':le :nearu; tc pay the ccsts of 1."lCar:eratim, and the defm.ian:. 1s 
crdered to pay such costs st tne stl!tlltoryrste. RCW 10 01 160 

COLLECTION COSTS The defe-,dsnt shall pay the costs of services to collect unpaid legal flnsnoal 
ob!igat1.m perc.:intraa. ir st.m.ae RCW 3CS 18 1~, 9 g41... 700 &n.i 19. l~SOO 

INTEREST The finanoal obhpams imposed m thu Judgrnait shall bear interest fran the date of the 
J\liign"lent ur.ul payment in full, at thE r&te apphulbl~ to 0\"11 Jil~r.ts RCW l C 8~ 090 

COSTS ON APPEAL An sward of costs en appeal agmrut tht> defendant may be added to the tctal legal 
f~ abllgati-n. RC'.V l0.7316C 

ELECTRONIC MONITORING REIMBURSEMENT. The defendant 1s crdered to reimburse . 
______ ...,....,..(name of electrcmc mcnitmng age1cy) it ____________ .., 

fer the co:;x. of pnttlal electr31!c rr.cr.ita-mg 1n tlle am~ cf$ _______ _ 

[X] DNA TESTING. The defendant shall have a blood/btological s.,mple drffln fcrpiJJ'!3oses of DNA 
1dlrtlfiait.1m ar.&lysis ar.d t."'le ;iefer.dar.t fhall fully :::ocperate m the tescng. The 3,)prq:rtst.e agency, the 
crunty er DOC, stull be respcrwble fer obummg the SBl'll)le prier to the defendant's release fran 
caif~nt. RC'W 43 43 754 

):Q HIV TESTING. TheHealthDt1tartrnent or designee shall test and coun2l the defmdsnt fcrHrV ss 
so::n .1:. poSSJble snd the jaftr.dar:t sr.al! fu!ly :::ocperate m :he talng. RC',Jl 70.24.340 

NO CONTACT 
The defendant shall net hat1e contact w1th __________ (nsree, DOB) including. but ntt 
limited to, pei;a'lal, verbal, taleph-,ruc, wnttm ar c.:mtact through&. third p&tt/ fer ___ yer,. (ntt to 
exceed th~ maxunum statllt.<rj• !oentance) 
)<l Dane!tic Violince No-Contaa Ord!:!', Antibllrawnmt No-1::catact. Order. cc Sexual AssaultPrttec1lcm 
On!e- :s filed w1:h t.'lis. Judgment ar:d Sa-.te.'lce. 

OTHER Prcpgty may halJ'e been taken mto custody in COOJunlllcn with tlus case Property may be 
retmned tc the nghtful C'f.'l\er. A.'T'f =1.lllr.'\ fa- retum c:C !llc.°'1 p:-apety must '.le rnade w1':hi."\ 9C> days. Aft.9" 
90 days, 1f yoo do not malte a claun, p~ety may be disposed of s.cccrdmg to lsw 

JUDGMENT Al~ SENTEN'C'E (JS) 
(Fell:nf) (ln<Xn) ~ 6 of 14 

Ollb of Proo«utl.., ActonRy 
930 "nlm!INIAnnue S. Room 94' 
Taco-, Wasbanetoa98402-21 7J 
TeleJIIM-: (lS.l) 7'8-7400 8 

---------------------------
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[ J All prope'ty lS he-eby fcrfe?t* 

[ ) Pr(l()aty may have been taken into rustody m Ca1Junct1Cl'l with tlus case Property may be returned to 
the nu.tful O?IT,cr Ar.y claun for ret.irn of s.Jdl pr.:>pert"f rro..st be rr.ade w,thm 90 dsy:s.. Aft.a' go drfs, 1f 
yo.i do net make a daun, property ma·1 be disposed of ac:ccrcung to IIWI 

BOND IS HEREBY EXONERATED 

CONFINEMENT OVER ONE YEAR. The defendant 1s ~ntmced as follows 

(a) com:INEMENI' RCW 9 94A.589 Defendant 1s sentenced to the foll01Vmgterm of total 
~~nt m the c-Jsrody .lf th.? D~ artma-.t of Ccrre.::tlcr.s (DOC) 

116 
=t:4 111 manths en Counas .:r: JC :m: 

) 16 months m Count :JZ1I' yOd YU[ 

J/ 6 mmths m Count 'Jr,.:iT;'Er __..,;_____ -
60 mcnths m Count 

60 mcmhs m 1::ount 

mc11ths m Count 

Acrual numbe- of m\3ll:hs of total confinement crdered lS _ .... , ... ,...;6;;;;...._,;i'l.___.,.,,'orr/b,rz...a..u., .. s------­
(Add msndstcry fu-eann. d5dly weapom, and sexual mcttuaum E!\hancement time to run cmsecutlvely to 
tt.'le:- cwnts, ::a; Settim 2 3, Se:i.tencngDlta, ab~e) 

[ ) The confinerllmt tune on Camt(s) ___ contam(s) a mandatay rrllnimum r.erm of ____ ----' 

~ONCURRENI' SENTENCES. RCViT 9 94A.589 All crunts shall be Sl!'Ved 
~~fa-the !)crtlOO of th<>!e counts fer which there is a !i)eoal fmdmg of a firear?n: otha­
deadly weapcn, r.emal mct1-:suc:n, VU CSA :n a pr~eced zcne, :r mm:.lfacn o: m2tl-..am.;,httarn1r.e w1ili 
juve"Ule preSent as set f a ove st Secuai 2.3, and e cect fer the follO\'.r ;g col.ll'l!S w ch shall be s~ 
cai:secut.Ivelv J.......a..WI~Jl~.Qill..~~81.~m:.-15.u::X21:..L1W;.u.Jt'.JZl+_c..tHJ:....L.:.0:.0:2Sc~ULJ.c.. 

~ -~ ccu::c--nu,rhe.r Cf?e/7- 57328/iS. 
The smtence hen>m shall run ansecut1vely to all fel~· sentences. in other cause numbers unposed prier to 
the c.;rn;r.issie11 of the a-.me(s) be~ semeiCEd. The sentE!'\CE hcr~in shall rJli cm.:lJlTilltly with fe!cny 
sentences m other- cause numbE!'!i imposed after the cmimiSSI.>n of the cnmecs) being se,tenced except fer 
the following csuse numb£n P.CW 9 94A589 _________________ _ 

JtEG1v1ENT AlID SENTENCE (JS) 
(Felooy) (1120<11) Pap 7 of 14 Oflke ol ~ Altoney 

930 Tacoma Avt'Due S Room 946 
Tacoma. Washmgton 98402-2171 
Tri.,._ (253) 798-7400 9 
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[ ] COMMUNITY PLACEMENT (pre 7/1/00 offmses) is a-dered as foll0\'1s· 

Cocr~ _____ fcr ___ malths. 

Coor~ _____ fcr ___ mcmhs. 

C,3J?!t _____ fcr ___ maiths. 

~ COMMUNITY CUSTODY (l'o deten:une which offmse. are ehgible fer a- reqwred fer ammuruty 
QJ.:;tooy ~ee RC'N 9 94A. :0l) 

(A) The def'Mdant wll be en cmirtlll1llt'/ 0.1stody fer the longa- .)f -/c he, :S~I~ .J:"'".:r 0.. p,er,,cd 
(l) the pEnod of early release RCW 9 94A 728(1)(2), cr is: ~on~t(r.d/-'7 b)" 
(2) the pa,od impoi~ by the cwrt,8 follows· • 

Crunt(~~,JI: 'Bmonths fer Sena.is Violent Offenses 

Cwnt(s 1 '.lmr 18months fer Violent Offenses 
Coum(s) ________ 12. months (f<r mmes agamst a penm, cirug offenses, er offenses 

involving the unluful p~sessim of a fireann by a 
s:reEt gang mar.her ex- 1!.S-r.coat.e) 

(B) While m a:mmunit'J ~la cement er canmumty custody. the defendant shall (l) repcrt to and be 
~ailable fa- .:aitact with the 6Ssigr,.ed ccrr.a:nur-.ity correctJIYu offica" as directed, (2) wak at DOC­
approved edllcatlcn, empllJ!,ment andlcr ccrnmunity rest1tutim (servli::e), (l) nctify DOC of S'll'f chenge in 

defmdant" !i addre;s tr emplC}-rnent, ~4) net ccnsume controlled substance!. except pura1ant to lawfully 
ismed pre:.c-1pt1cns; (5) nlX urJawfullr pcnes:. c:ri:ro!le;i tutstancet while 4'1 ccm.'llUlity CJ5tedy; (6J :.ex 
(Ril'{). use, er po!iSesS firearms er emrmmitioo. (]) p~ superm1c:n fees as detammed by DOC. (f!) pirl'crm 
affirmative acts as reqwmi by DOC to cmfirrr, ccmphsnce with the <rders of th'? court. {';) sb1de trJ any 
addiuaisl candi.icns mipoSEd b}· DOC undl!!I" R ';W 9 94A 104 ar.d. ';06 irud (10) f.r sez cffeues, s1bm1t 
to electrmic morut~ if imposed by DOC Thi! di!fends.nt' s residmce locatim and hvmg arrmgemt!lll 
sre !ilbject to the pna- ap~oval of DOC while m canmuruty placement er ccmmuruty CU!tod'J 
Car.m:.m;ty :ustcdr fer s'?x offm:ie:s rut. S3lter.ce-d under RC-vi 9 94A 71 Z msy be extended fer up to the 
st!tU[ay ma:iamum te-m of the sel'lU!lCe V ialat1.cn cf cm,mmutr aistody imposed fer a ~.ex off ens'? may 
result m addlua'lAI ccr1finement 

The cwrt crders that dunng the pB1od of supervisim the defmdant shall 

£ 1 ccmum'? nc- akoool 

~ h1ve nc Ca>.Ulct with .1.rn:.ut.ho~CL-id,J-1.U(Ua,;irrc.:,og... __________________ _ 

[ J rernsm [ J w1thln ( J ou1sJde of a sp edfied geograplucsl bcundsry, to w1t _________ _ 

,X not serve in .3nypS1d er vclunteer capaotywhe-ehea- she ha:i cmtrol er ruperv1S1m ofnumn undi:!' 
13ye3J"Scf~ 

[ J psrtlopat'? m tbe follcr.vmg crime-related treatment er coun~lmg :.a-vices ________ _ 

[ J undE!"go sn eqaluiltlrn f<rtreatment fer f ] dc:mest.1cv1olence [ J substance abuse 

[ ] mental health f ) an~ managemerit and fully canply with all reccmmended treatmer>.t 
[ ] comply with the follcwmg mme-relatEd prciub1t1cns· _______________ _ 

lr=:=-::::-=:::-=:-:-:--=--==-=::-:--:::-:'.:=------------------------
JUDG°MD','T .Mm SENTZNCE OS) 
(Felaiy) (Jl20CIT') Page 8 of 14 
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J Oths- coodlucru. 

( ] Fer ssit~ces unp;,sec! imd~ RCW 9 94A 702, .mer ccndlums, including electTauc mmitamg, may 
b!! ur.pc~ minng ~(r.\?I'.ur.1ty OlSl.:>d'J b-; tt.e L-ldetenr~e Sa-.te:::ice Rei11ew Board, er m 3...'"I 
smB"gency by DOC Emergency condltuns unposed by DOC shall net renam m effea. lcnge- than 
:.eoen wcrlang d~ 

Court Orde-cd Treatr.neni If my court crdtfi mental health er chemical dependency treatment. the 
de!er.dar.t must r.ct:fy DOC snrl the dafml!snt :m:st release ::re-a::mert. mfcr.nst!tr. to DOC frr th.? d:Jrat:cr. 
of im:srcerstion and superv1S1a1. RCW 9 94..o..56.l 

PROVIDED. That l.lllda-no araimstsr,ces shall the total term of confmena-.it plu!:. the term of canmuruty 
a.stody &crually sa-ved ..xaed the ::ututay roaxirnurn fa ~ ;,ffense 

[ J WORK ETHIC CAMP p_cw 9 94A690. RCW 72 09 410 The cart finds that the defE!'ld.mt lS 

eli.gibli! and is l~ly to q;,wiff for wa'.t ett.ic camp &nd the court r~crmna;ds tt,at thi! defa-.dar.t serve the­
:xritence at a wa'lt ethic amp Upon canplet1cr1 ofwO?k E!tnlc camp, the defa-,dmt shall !le released on 
canmuruty custody fa sny remauung tl.tm of total caumem!!nt, su~Jec1 tott,e condlna,s bi!low V10latim 
of tlle co:-iditims of' canmurut'J a.:s:.od}· may resu?t ir. a r~ tc tctal cmf':nem«r.. fer the balance of the 
defendant's rema1rung ume oft<Ul ccrlftnement The coodlums of canrnuruty rustody are stated aboue m 
Sectlcn 4.6. 

OFF mms ORDER (known dr.ig tnffidter) F .. CW 10 M 020. The following areas are off linut:i to the 
de!encsr1t while u."ldB" L"i.e 31pervis.i~ of :he Cc:m..>y J..:l c:- Depsrtmmt of Ccr.-ec::J{Xl!. · _____ _ 

V. NOTICES AND SIGNATURES 

COLLATERAL ATIACK ON JODG.MENT Acy petiucn er mot1m fer callatenl attadt m ltJJS 

J-iJ~a-..t. and Senu,r,ce, m.:ludm6 but not hm1ted to ilT,y p~na: restral1.lt p.;tition, ata.:e habeas .::apu~ 
pet1tia:i, motJai to !1ilcste Jucwnent, mrorn to withdraw &l,lllty plea. motion frr r.aw tnal cc mro.an to 
srrest. judgment. must be filed within ane year of the final JUdgmmt m this mstter, exce~t as pro1ided fer in 
RCV/1073100 RCW' 1073.090. 

LENGrH OF SUPER\'ISION Fa- an offS"..se amrrutted pncr to July 1, 2000 the defendant shell 
re:nSl.'"I under t.loie =cut's Jl71sd:cti;:n a.-id tl:.e sup~1sion of th;.i D"1)3:t!'r.er.t of Cc:rretttalS fer a pe-1~ ~p ~ 
10 years frcm the date of sentence er release frcm confmeneru. whtchever 1s lmger, to mure pll'Jmer.it. of 
all le,g.al financial obhgattais unless th~ court mends the crmunsI ju~~ an addJtu:nal 1 0 yem. Fer en 
offensi' ccrnrmtted m tr ifta- .J-.ily 1, 2000, the c~ :.hall retamJ..ir,sdJ.ctcn <:»er ihi! cffender, f~ tt..e 
purpose of the offendsr' s canphance w1tn payment of the legal finsncal o~hgat!cn!i. untll the obhgstia1 1s 
cmipletelr S&tJsfied, regardless of the statutcry mm.mum fer the cnme RCW 9 94A 760 and RCW-
9 94A 505 The clerlt o! the ccurt I!. m.tt..11c:riz.ed to cclJect un~!t!d !e~ :ina:loa! a:hgst!ar.s a: any ume tlie 
offmder rertuUnS Linda" the Jun5d!c:tim of the court fer purposes of his er her legal finsnaal (lt)bgatlms. 
RCW 9 94A 760(4) snd R.CW 9 94A 753(4) 

NOTICE OF INCOME-\lllTHHOLDING ACTION If the cC11rt has noc crdered an unmedlate nctice 
ofpll}Toll deducnm m Serum 4 l, you sre nct1f1ed that the Department of CarectJ.cns er the clerk of the 

JUDGMENT AND SENTENSE (JS) 
(f ;.ilrx,y) (1120(.r,) Page 9 of 14 

Olbce oC ~Im& Attorney 
!130 n.c..ma Avenue S. Room 946 
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ccurt mxJ issue a nocice of payrcll dedudltn wuhout notice to yru if Yl:ll are mere than 30 days past due in 

m:mtluy pa;rr.er.t:t m a."\ emomt eq-.ial ~ cc greater thsr. thi! srr.tt:nt pay able fc:- ~e rno."ltt~ RC'W 
9 94-A ?~2 Other inccml'-Wlt."iholcnng actit11 under RCW 9 94A may be t.ak!n w1thrut further nouce. 
RCW 9 94A 7(:/J may be takm 'IV:thout further nooce. RCW 9 94A 76~ 

RESH! 01 lONBEARING 
[ J Defendant wai11es any nght to be present st aey n.>stillltlcn hesnng (Sign iruual!,) 

CRn-llNAL ENFORCEMENT AND CIVIL COLLECTION. Any v1019t.l<Xi cftlus .fudgrnent and 
Smtena! 1:. pur.ishab-le oy :Jp :o ro cays o! coofme:nent. ;,er 01;,laccr. Per ::.ecttin 2.S of i:.'us doa.:men:, 
legal fmanoS! obhgatlcm sre collaruble by av1l means RCW 9 94-A. 634 

FIREARMS You must immediately surrender any canceall!d pistol license and you may not own, 
u;e or possess any fireann unless your rigJlt ta do so isrestored by a court d record. (The c.:nzt .:leek 
shall fcrwsn1 a cqiy of the aefB'ldsnt's dnver,;. hanse. 1dc!ltlcsrd, er canparable 1dent1f1anm to the 
Department cfl1Gnsmgalm5 wtththe dale of cmv1rum er camrutrrBlt.) RCW 9 41.040. 9 41 047 

SEXAf'mKJDNAPPINCOFFENDFRRECIS'fRATION RCW 9A.44130, 1001200 

l. Gmeral Applicability and Requirements: Because thl,;. mme involve. a sex offmse er kldnepp:nff 
offemi! (e g., ludr.appJD& ir, tr.~ ftt d,1gree, l-Jdnappmg in .hi ~cood deuae, .J" unlswfu! rrnpnscr.n,ent .ts 
defined m chapter 9A40 RCW) w.nere the v1ctun 1s s miner def'med m RCW 9A 44 130, yru are requir!!<1 
to r~ster with the ~.enff of the cwnty .-:,f the state of W ashmgtm whe'e ycu re'!.lde If you are net a 
re-.,i:ient cf Waw.°4a) but 'JCU are a s::uds-.t in W 6-"Ur..pal <r ycu are emplO'Je:! mW as."ur..gr.m <r yai a:rJ 
m a vOOltlm m Waminglm, yoo must register with the shinff of the cwnty of ywr schoal, place of 
~lO'Jmenl, er vocallm Y cu must register nnm!!<lli!tely upon being sentenced unJ~s, y.-:,u sr~ u1 Cll5tcdy. 
1r, whict. caseytr.i rllllstre,gista- at the tun~ of y.urel!a:e snd within thrw (3) bmir.es::. day:. fr.m the time 
of release 

2. Off enders Who Leave the State and Return: If you leave the st.ate following your ~E!lang a­
release fran rustody but !Ster m::we ba::k :a Wa~on, yw Il".Ust register mt.'un th..-w (3) bu:.i.."le:.» d.rJs 
after mooing to this state lf yru are unde!-thejunsd!ct1m oftlus state',;.Dt:psrtment cfCcrrectJoos, you 
must regJSter within three (3) bu'!.l!less day! after mc,;Jing to this state If ycu. Ieave this ::tstc> following ycur 
~enur.g .r re:esse fran CilSt;xiy but l&te- whtle n.-x 3 rasi dmt cf~ ashm@:on yw b~'"'Cnie enployad m 
Washington, arry cuts vOClltlcr. m Waungttn er attmd s&.ocl m Wsshmgtm, yru mwt regi!ter vnttlll'l 
three (3) bllSlness da;"5 after rurung wiool m this state er beccrmng employed or csrrym~ M a vocatlcn m 
t.'us ttste 

3. Changl! d Rujdence Within Stste md Leaving the State: If you change yrur residence within a 
c~·, ycu r.UJ.n ?f'CVJde, !>J• .:e+jfied mSJ!, with reaJrn r-ece:pt :"e<i'Ji~ or :n pinm .sJgr.ed mt:.~ 
l)lXlce of ya.ir dl:mge ofraidl!lC? to the !ihenff within three (3) business days of mm~ lf you ~~ 
yrur residence to s new ccunty within this state, ycu must register with that county shenff w1thm three (3) 
tUSil"ll?SS d&ys ilf ZT.tli1mg. ar.d .rr.u~ within thrae {3) basines,;. da-/s pro.ride, by cerufied mail, Witr, rewrr. 
".:e1pt requested a- in per-sm, signed wnttmnotice of the change of ad:1re:;s m the new camt)' to the 
camty ilienff \V1th whcm you last registered. If you mC'le out of'Washmgtoo State. you must ,;.end wnttm 
r.occe w:th!n t.'lre-e (3) bUSIJl!!~ days. cf zr.ov~ :o L'le =ount"/ g-ia"lf!-,;itt. \\'ha-11 70:.i l.:ist rl!gistere;t m 
Was!ungton Sts:te 

4. Additicmal Requirements Upan Moring to Anlther State: Ifycu mooe to mother stete. cnfyru 
wa'~ carry .:ll a vocstlai. .:a- sttend schoo1 tr, snctt,a· sti.-ie yw must regista- a mr.v address, ftnga'J)l'U'lU. md 
photograph w11:b the new st.ate '!IVlthm three (3) busine~ days after esubhshmg reSJda-.ce. er after beginning 
to wcrx, CJJrf'/ en a vocst1cn, or attend school m the new state Y a.J must al!.D send wntten nctJce within 
tr.ree (3) dsys of r.umr.g to tlle nl!':\" s!ste J" to a fae:gn amtrJ tc th2 ccunty sher.ff wi:h wt.cm y;:u !~ 
registwed m Washlngtm State 
5. Notif"iratian Requirement When Enrolling in or :Employed by a Public or Privatl! Institutian a 
Higller Education or Cammon School (K-12): If yw are a r6ideot. ofWsst.ir.gtoo and f.:1.i are sdlr.ittcd to 
a public er pn'late l1lStltll:ltn cf high~ eaucsucn, yw are reqwred to r.tt/ the sh~f fL the ca.inty of yar 

11 ·.JUD== .. -=a-=-MEN=-=rr=--=-A.'ID=-=-=sm==n=E.N::-: .. :-:-CE-=---:(JS}::::-----------------------
(Felmy) (Jl'Xm) Page 10 of 14 
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~d~ce of 7oor mta'lt to attmd the mstlt:Utltn ~ithm uree (3) busmess ~ pncr to m,.,~ st t.he 
~tn If yru becane enpla~ at a pul:llc :r pn\'ste :nsti:it.!cr. of higher ed'.lCSt!cr., ycu sre reql!ll'ed t:> 

rtCti.fythe sh~tifcrt.he camty ofyairresidmce ofyC1Jf' employment by the mnunm vmtun ttree (3) 
business days pncr to beguuu.ng to .va-k et the iru!Jt!Jtioo. If yar E!ll"011ment er employment st a pubhc cr 
pn.iate imi:Jnaicr-, ct°~gher e-h.catlcn ,s tamnatsd, you &re requu-c!d to n.:dy th.: shenff f cr th~ county of 
your res.idence of your temunatlm of mrollmE!lt er employment within ttr~ (3) bul>Uless days of such 
tannnstim. If yru attend, er plan to attend. a public er pnvate mlOOI regulated under Title 28A RCW er 
cha;>ter 72 40 RCW, yai are required t:l n:xifyt.1le sher.ff cf the C31:lt}· ofyas ret1den=e cfyru:' inter.t tc 
attend the school You rm15l nottfythe shenff witlnn three(3) bus.mess dayspncr to amvmg at the school to 
attend class6. The shEriff shsil prcrnpt.ly nctifythe pnnapal of the school 

6. Registratlan by a Person Who Does Not Have a Find Residence: Ev En if you do not have a fixed 
residence, yru are required to register RegistrsUm mu~ occur witlun three (J) busmess days of release in 
tha .:o-.u-.r:y wt,a-e yru ;n-e tei."lf; !iupa'v'1sc!d if yru do net have a resiiience lit the rune of your release .frar, 
cmtody W!tlun three (3) bur.mess days after !O!lilg your fixed residence. yru mutt. pror,1de signed writter. 
not.lee to the shenffof the! camty where yw last registered If 7CU enta- a different county and stay there 
fer mae thar. 24 h::ru:'S, yCJ wtl! be reqwred tc reg:.ster :n the new a>i.:nt'JWlt.~ th.--ee (3) ~u:.i."less da"JS 
after emenng the new ca.wy Y C11 must abo repcrt weekly m persm to the shenff of the camty wh!!l"e 
yru re registered The weekly rep art 5hall bi? en a day speofied by the coonty shenfl's office, and shall 
OCCJI" dunng n.rn1al business hours.. Y ~ ma-1 't;e reqwr!ii ti) pro.ride a h:;t the lo.:at.ims -where you have 
stayed dunng the last sevm days 'Ihe ladt of a fixed resittence is a factcr th&t rru:y be cmsidc:red m 
det.mnining an offendE!"' s risk level and shall make the offmder SllbJect to dlsclo'.illre of mfmnatlm to the 
pu'thc a!. lar~ pi:nuar.t tc RCW 4 24 55 0 

7. Application for a Name Change: If you apply fa- a name change, you must subnut a copy of the 
&pphotim tc the ccur.ty ~.er.ff cf the C3.l:lt}· ofyrur raidm.:e and b the state pa:ro! nt1 few£!" :her. five 
days. befcre the entry of an crder grant.mg the name change If ya.i receive sn a-der changing your name, 
yru must submit a c~y of the crda- to the county sheiff of the county of yrur residence and to the stste 
pstro\ w1thm three- (3) busmi!ss d&r-, ilf th2" entry .>f the order RCW 9A 44 13°'-'7)· 

[X] The defendant is a sex offmda- subJea to mdetenninste sentencing under RC\V 9 94A 712. 

[ ] The caJrt finds that Count __ 1,; a felmy in the ccrt1m1SSJon of wluch a mot.er vehide was used 
The derlc of fr,e c.ut ,s dir.;ct:c!d to u-.1mi!di.ai:ely frnv ard &n At stract of Crurt R~cad t.> the Dep srtrnett ->f 
Licensing. wh1cn mu!:t iwdt~ t.he defendar~' s dnver' s license RCW 46.20.285. 

If the defendant is er beart1es rubJect to court-crd~ed mental health or chenucal dependmc:y treatmB'lt. 
~ defenda."11.mu:;t :ict.ify DCC and the defen;bnt' s tres:mmt infams.ti<L m:.itt b2 !hared with Doi: f(r 
the ~CJ'l of the defauiar>.t' s mcsrcerstta, and supervisicn RCW 9 94A56Z 

JUDGl.,fENT AND SENTENCE (JS) 
(Felcny) (1nf.lJT) Page 11 of 14 
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Depux:.y Prasewong An.rn£S? 

Print name. ~ ~Se 
WSB # 33747 

VOTINGRIGHTS STATEMENT: RCW 10.64140. I ac:knawledgethstmyright.tovct.ehasbeenlost.dueto 
felon:,· conv1tticni. IfI arn regi::.tcr-~ to vtte:, my voter rcgl5tn11ian wm te car,celle-t My net.t to v.:iti! msy be 
restcnd by a) A cinificate of discharge issued by the sentencing court. RCW 9 ~A.637, b) A cC111t crder issued 
by thi! s~ntalong court resta'lllg the nght. RCW 9. 92 066. c) A finzl order cf dlsct-zge issued b:, the mdet~e 
~er.ce :-~1ew bord, F.C'}I 9 96 050; a- d) A certifia:.e cl res:.crcai iS!lled hy t.~ g~err.a, RCW 9 % 020 
V c:tmg 'befor~ the nght 1s restlred 1s a class C felmy. RCW 92.A.84 660 
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2 CERTIFlCA 'IT OF CLERK 
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I , 3 CAUSE NUMBER ofthiHase 07-1-0S618-3 
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I, KEVIN STOCK Clerk of dus Court, ceruf-1 ths:t the fcregomg IS a full. true end CCITeC?. cq,y of the Judgment and 
Ser.itaice i."l the atcr:e-ent!tled ae!Jai rum O."l rec<rd 1."l thu of:"ice 

WITNESS my hand ar,d ::.ea! of'the !,II.Id SupEricr CaJrt sff1."ted this date _________ _ 

Clerk o!wd County and Stste, by _______________ . Deputy CIB'k 

IDENTIFICATION OF COURT REPORTER 

KIMBERLY A. O'NEILL 

.ruDGMENT AlE SENTENCE (JS:, 
(Fekny) (1120Cff) P~e B of 14 
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APPENDIX '"F' 

The defendant havmg been sentenced to the Department of C:rredl<ns fer a. 

_}(__ sex offense 

- - ----

,1.1,.£a,:.z.c1.z i~.i4.& -u&~4B 

07-1-05618-3 

senrus violent ;;,fferae 
assault in the seccn;i degree == any cnme where the defendant er an accxmphce was armed with a deadly we.B?cn 

__ sny felooyunda- 69 50 ar,d 69 52 

Toe off~der shall repat to and be available fer coot.act. with the as.51~ed canmumty o:rrectims officer as dir~e.i 

The offender shall wait at Departm91t of Carectlcns .3pprmed educatiai, ,;,,mployrnent, and/er cmunuruty wv1ce. 

The cffmder shall net cor.sume cattrolle;i substan.:es a:c~t ptnl..l!nt to lawfully t5Slled pre!\01!)tlc:m 

An offendEr m canmunity 01stody shall net. unlawf;_111y poss~s ca.trolled substances.. 

The offmder shall pay can."Yll.J1llty placement fees as detemuned by DOC 

The residence locstim and hvins arrangements are subJect to the pncr approval of the deyartment of carect.1(m 
dunr.g the pEri3i ;;,f c:rr.rruruty ;>lac.emin. 

The cffmde- shall mhuut to sffumsuve acts necessary to morutcr canpliance with crurt crders as required~­
::)QC 

14 The Coortmay also crdE!' sey of the following speaal conditims 
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__ (I) 

_(II) 

__ (III) 

__ (IV) 

__ M 

__ (VI) 

__ (VII) 

P...PPENDIXF 

The offender shell remsm w1thln, er cumde of. a speofied gc<>graphtcai bamdaJy 

The offender shall ncx ha~e ~ 0::::- contsct with the v1ctun of th~ crune crr a speafied 
dw. of:ndlvidl!Bl:. !!llfl J 

The off aider shall !)3ltlapate m cnme-related treatment <r camsehng services. 

The offmder shall nlX consume alcohol, __________________ _ 

The residence locaticn and living msr,gements of a sex off en~ shell be sub;ect. to th~ pncr 
sppro:,al oftt,e departn~ -,f .:ared.ims. ~ 

ThE' offmder shall cc:mply with .any cnme-r~lsted prohib1tims. 

Other ____________________________ _ 
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IDENTIFICATION OF DEFENDANT 

Date ofButh 00/26/1960 
4 {J.f no SID tske f~erpruu: card fer Stste Patrol) 

5 

• r •" 6 

I • 

" .... .. 

.. J"'.., 
'l ",, ,. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

FBIN.:i 

PCNNo 

37895VC1 

539961888 

Allasname, SSN. DOB· 

Ra,e 
[ 1 Jl~sn/Paa!ic 

Islander 
(] 

[ ] Nat111!c' Jl.mencsn [ ! 

FINc;ERPRINI'S 

BlacrJ Afncan­
Amenc.an 

Othe-

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Local ID No UNI<NOWN 

Ethnirity. 
[ X] CZJc:SSJ.sr. [ 1 F.i~ar.1.c 

Sex 
[ X} 

[ X] Nm- [ J F~e 
HlspillU~ 

© 
I attest that I saw th!c' same defendant who appeared m cart e}PUS _99~ affix his er ha" fl?lEerpnnts ,/ 

signaturethereto ClerkoftbeCrurt,DeputyCla-k, t?f · c!th,~ Dated li_/,f/2-

DEFENDANT'S SIGNATURE ----"'U4~•--1f"""...,..t:.J:1--------------­
DEFENDANT'S ADDP.ESS l 

11------:----------------------------------
JU'DGMENT AlID SElITENCE (JS) 
(Felony) (JruxrT) P~e 14 of 14 

17 

Oflitt of Proseculul,: Attorney 
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1aco-. w..i.111p11198402-JJ71 
Telephone: (253) 798-7400 

··- ---- -------------------



I 

2 
Vtithin three business days of moving to the new state or to a foreign country to the 
county sheriff'Mlh Ydlom you last registered in Washington state. 

3 
5. Notification Requirement When Enrolling in or Employed by a Public or Private 

4 Institution of Higher Education or Common School (K-12): tf you are a resident of 
Washington and you are admitted to a public or prtw'ate institution of higher education, 

5 vou are required to notify the sheriff of th'3 county of your residence of your intent to 

I 
, , ~ • 6 attend the institution v,;thin three business days prior to arrtving at the institution. ff you 
• • ~' become employed at a public or private institution of higher education, you are required 

I 7 to notify the sheriff for the ~ouoty of your residence or your employment by the 
Institution 'Mthin three business days prior to beginning to work at the institution. If your 

I s enrollment or employment at a public or pri\iate institution of higher education is 
I terminated. you are required to notify the sheriff for the county of your residence of your 
I 9 termination of enrollment or employment witt1in three business days of such termination. 

10 If you attend, or plan to attend, a public or private school regulated under Title 28A 
RCW or chapter 72.40 RL"W, you are required to notify the sheriff of the county of your 

i I residence of your intent to attend the school. You must notify the sheriff v.tthin three 
business days prtor to arriVing at the school to att~nd classes. The sheriff shall 

~ ~ ~" 12 promptly noltfy the princip~I of the school. 

13 6. Registration by a Person Who Does Not Have a Fixed Residence. Even ff you 

14 
do not have a fixed residence, you are required to register. Registration must occur 
Vrlithin three business days of release in the county where you are being supervised if 

15 you do not have a residence at th/3 time of your release from custody. Within three 
business days after losing your fixed residence. you must send signed v.mten notice to 

16 the sheriff of the county vdlere you last registered. If you enter a different county and 
stay there for more than24 hours, you will be required to register'Mth the sheriff of the 

17 new county not more than three business days after entering the new county. You must 
18 also repo11 weekf'/ in person to the sheriff of the countyVttlere you are registered. The 

Vreek.ly report shall be on a day specified by the county sheriffs office, and shall occur 
19 during normal business hours. You must keep an accurate accounting of'>Mlere you 

stay during the INeek and provide it to the county sheriff upon request. The lack of a 
20 fixed residence is a factor that may be considered in determining an offender's risk level 

and shall make the offender subject to disclosure of infom1ation lo the public al large 
21 pursuant to RCW 4.24.550. 
22 

7. Application for a Name Change: If you apply for a name change, you must submit 
23 a copy of the application to the county sheriff of the county of your residence and to the 

state patrol not fewer than five days before entry of an order g-anting the name change. 
24 If you receive an order changing your O()me, you must submit a copy of the order to the 

county sheriff of the county of your residence and to the state patrol within three 
25 business days of the entry of the order. RCW 9A.44.130(7). 
26 

21 Date: __ l_(_· _b_·_?,,I)_(_~--

28 
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Ollltc ol l'rcloKudng Attom~y 
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TllllOIIUI, Wallfactoa 98402-1111 
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I CaseName ~v- (A)W 
2 

Cause No. 0 7 - ( ., oe:-b t 8-?, 
3 Sex and Kidnapping Off ender Registration. RCW 9A.44 .130, Laws of 2010, ch. 267 

§ 1, 10.01.200. 
4 

1. General Applicability and Requirements: Because this crime involves a sex 
5 offense or kidnapping offense involving a minor as defined in Laws of 2010, ch. 267 § 1, 

6 
you are required to register. 

7 If you are a resident of Washington, you must register v.ith the sheriff of the county of 
the state of Washington 'lhlere you reside. You must register vwUhin three business 

s days of being sent~nced unless you are in custody, in which case you must register at 
the time of your release 'Wtth the person designated by the agency that has jurisdiction 

9 over you. You must also register Vinthin three business days of your release with the 
sheriff of the county of the state of Washington Ytttere you ~II be residing. 

lO 

11 If you are not a resident of Washington but you are a student in Washington or you are 
employed in Washington or you carry on a vocation in Washington, you must register 

12 vitth the sheriff of the county of your school, place of ernployment, or vocation. You 
must register 1Mthin three busit1ess days of being sentenced unless you are in custody, 

13 in v.klich case you must register at the time of your release with the person designated 

14 
by the agency that has jurisdiction over you. You must also register within three 
business days of your release with the sheriff of the county of your school. where you 

15 are employed. or v.t,ere you carry on a 'location. 

16 2. Offenders Who are New Residents or Returning Washington Residents: If you 
move to Washington or ff you ieave this state following your sentencing or release from 

17 custody but later mo'ie back to Washington, you must register 'within three business 
18 days after moving to this state. ff you leave this state foUO'Ning your sentencing or 

release from custody but later VRlile not a resident of Washington you become 
19 employed in Washington, carry on a vocation in \IVashington, or attend school in 

Washington, you must register 'Mthin three business days after starting school in this 
20 · state or becoming employed or carrying out a vocation in this state. 

- , , • 21 
3. Change of Residence Within State: If you change your residence Vw'ithin a county, 

22 you must provide. by certified mail, 'Mth return receipt requested or in person, signed 
'Mitten notice of your change of residence to the sheriff Ytithin three business days of 

23 moving. rr you change your residence to a new county 'Mthin this state, you must 
register with the sheriff of the new county within three business days of moving. Also 

24 "Whin three business days, you must provide, by c'-:lftffied mail. Vttth return receipt 

25 
requested or in person, signed written notice of your change of address to the sheriff of 
the county '\Nhere you last registered. 

26 
4. Leaving the State or Moving to Another State: If you move to another state, or if 
you work, canyon a vocation. or attend school in another state you must register a new 
address, fingerprints, and photograph v.;th the new state l.hithin three business days 

28 after e51ablishing residence, or after beginning to work, carry on a vocation, or attend 
school tn the new state. If you move out of the state. you must also send VwTitten notice 

@ Oftlttol~Attorney 
930 Tac,ema Aunue S. Room 946 
Tloco,na, Wasllllllfad 98402-2171 

19 TtlophoM: (25l) 798-7400 

-------- -- -- --· -------
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E-FIL 
IN COUNTY CLE K'S OFFICE 

PIERCE COUNTY, ASHINGTON 

KEVIN S CK 
COUNTY LERK 

SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PIERCE COUNTY 

STATE OF WASHINGTON, 

vs. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

DOB: 
PCN#: 

Plaintiff, CAUSE NO. 07-1-05618-3 

INFORMATION 

Defendant. 
SEX:MALE 
SID#: UNKNOWN 

COUNTI 

RACE: WHITE 
DOL#: UNKNOWN 

I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE SECOND DEGREE, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 12 years old but 

less than 14 years old and not married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.076, and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT II 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series ·of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

INFORMATION- I 
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Office of the Prosecuting Attorney 
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Tacoma, WA 98402-2171 
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36 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 12 years old but 

less than 14 years old and not married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.076. and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT III 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 12 years old but 

less than 14 years old and not married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.076, and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT IV 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 14 years old but 

less than 16 years old and not married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.079, and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNTY 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

INFORMATION- 2 

21 
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That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 12 years old but 

less than 14 years old and not married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.076, and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT VI 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than E.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with E.L.K., who is at least 14 years old but 

less than 16 years old and not married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.079, and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT VII 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, on or about the 27th day of 

October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 36 months older than E.L.K., have sexual 

contact with E.L.K., who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 years old, and not married to the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT VIII 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 

same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

INFORMATION- 3 
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That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, on or about the 27th day of 

October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously aid, invite, employ, authorize, or cause E.L.K., a minor, to 

engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such conduct will be photographed or part of a live 

performance, contrary to RCW 9.68A.040(l)(b). and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNT IX 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 

same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

2nd day of November, 2004 and the 14th day of March, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously aid, invite, 

employ, authorize, or cause E.L.K., a minor, to engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such 

conduct will be photographed or part of a live performance, contrary to RCW 9.68A.040(1)(b). and 

against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

DA TED this 1st day of November, 2007. 

PIERCE COUNTY SHERIFF 
WA02700 

mer 

INFORMATION-4 

GERALD A. HORNE 
Pierce County Prosecuting Attorney . 

By: /s/ MARYE. ROBNETT 
MARYE. ROBNETT 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 
WSB#: 21129 
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E-FIL D 
IN COUNTY CLE K'S OFFICE 

PIERCE COUNTY, ASHINGTON 

SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PIERCE COUNTY 

STATE OF WASHINGTON, 

KEVIN S OCK 
COUNTY LERK 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

Defendant. 

CAUSE NO. 07-1-05618-3 

DECLARATION FOR DETERMINATION OF 
PROBABLE CAUSE 

MARYE. ROBNETT, declares under penalty of perjury: 

That I am a deputy prosecuting attorney for Pierce County and I am familiar with the police 
report and/or investigation conducted by the PIERCE COUNTY SHERIFF, incident number 073030751; 

That the police report and/or investigation provided me the following information; 

That in Pierce County, Washington, on or about the period between the 14th day of March, 2001 
and the 29th day of October, 2007, the defendant, WELDON MARC GILBERT, did commit the crimes of 
Rape of a Child in the Second Degree, Child Molestation in the Second Degree, Rape of a Child in 
the Third Degree, and Sexual Exploitation of a Child. 

Pierce County Sheriffs Detective Berg reports that on October 30, 2007, she was contacted by 
two adult men who wanted to report that their younger brothers were being sexually molested by the 
defendant, Weldon Marc Gilbert. The brothers identified their younger brothers as R.L.K. born 03-14-89 
and E.L.K. born 11-04-94. 

Detective Berg reports that she contacted R.L.K. and he reported the following: he met the 
defendant when he was· 12 year old shortly after his father died. R.L.K. often went to the defendant's 
home and he also went on trips with the defendant to Hong Kong, Thailand and Europe. The def end ant 
would frequently spank R.L.K. with his hand or an assortment of paddles while R.L.K. was naked. 
R.L.K. reported that he would have welts, bruises and cuts from the spankings. The defendant would also 
have R.L.K. spank the defendant. The defendant would also touch R.L.K., on the buttocks and genitals, 
they would mutually masturbate and the defendant would perform oral sex on R.L.K. R.L.K. reported the 
events happened regularly and frequently. R.L.K. reports that he eventually found out that the defendant 
would sometimes video tape the spanking and R.L.K. discovered that the defendant had numerous tapes 
of himself spanking R.L.K. and others. The defendant would often pay R.L.K. for the spankings, R.L.K. 
had been living with the defendant for the past several months and the last incident occurred on October 
28, 2007. R.L.K. said the defendant had been showing some interest in his 12 year old brother, and 
R.L.K. told the defendant to stay away from E.L.K. However, R.L.K.'s older brother unknowingly 
brought E.L.K. to the defendant's house on October 29th and E.L.K. thereafter reported that the defendant 
had spanked him and videotaped him. R.L.K. provided the Detective Berg with a video tape of the 
defendant spanking him and the second half of the tape depicts the defendant spanking E.L.K. 

Detective Berg reports that she has reviewed the tape and it includes images of the defendant 
spanking R.L.K. and touching and rubbing and pinching his buttocks and genitals. Detective berg reports 

DECLARATION FOR DETERMINATION 
OF PROBABLE CAUSE -1 
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1 the tape also depicts the defendant spanking E.L.K. and touching and rubbing E.L.K.'s buttocks and 
genitals. 
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Detective Berg reports that on October 31, 2007 she and other detectives executed a search 
warrant at the defendant's residence. The detectives seized numerous video tapes, DVDs, CDs, floppy 
discs, assorted sex toys, numerous paddles, several cameras, a tripod, paddles, blindfolds, ropes, spanking 
devices, bondage implements, computers and two handguns. 

R.L.K. reported that he had taken the defendant to the airport and that the defendant was traveling 
to Atlanta. R.L.K. reported the defendant is due back Saturday, November 3n1_ Detective Berg reports 
that she has been able to determine that the defendant works for UPS as a pilot and he is currently staying 
in Atlanta for job related training. 

I DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF 
WASHINGTON THAT THE FOREGOING IS TRUE AND CORRECT. 

DATED: November 1, 2007 
PLACE: TACOMA, WA 

DECLARATION FOR DETERMINATION 
OF PROBABLE CAUSE -2 

ls/MARYE. ROBNETT 
MARYE. ROBNETT, WSB# 21129 
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FILED 
co 2 

IN OPEN COURT 

NOV O O 2007 

SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PIERCE COUNTY 

STATE OF WASHINGTON, 

vs. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

DOB: 8/26/1960 
PCN#: 

Plaintiff, 

Defendant. 
SEX: MALE 

CAUSE NO. 07-1-05618-3 

CORRECTED INFORMATION 
(AS TO DEFENDANT'S DATE OF BIRTH AND 
COUNTY) 

SID#: UNKNOWN 
COUNTI 

RACE: WHITE 
DOL#: UNKNOWN 

I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF .. 
A CHILD IN THE SECOND DEGREE, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 12 years old but 

less than 14 years old and not married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.076. and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT II 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

CORRECTED INFORMATION- I QO~JGINAL Office of the Prosc<:uting Attorney 
930 Tacoma Avenue South, Room 946 

Tacoma, WA 98402-2171 
Main Office (2S3) 798-7400 
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I 
That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 12 years old but 

less than 14 years old and not married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.076, and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT lll 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts ofa single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 12 years old but 

less than 14 years old and not married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.076, and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT IV 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD lN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, commined as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with RL.K., who is at least 14 years old but 

less than 16 years old and not married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.079, and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNTY 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

CORRECTED INFORMATION- 2 
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lnd/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 14 years old but 

less than 16 years old and not married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.079, and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT VI 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD JN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than E.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with E.L.K., who is at least 14 years old but 

less than 16 years old and not married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.079, and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT VII 

And 1, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION JN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, on or about the 27th day of 

October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 36 months older than E.L.K., have sexual 

contact with E.L.K., who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 years old, and not married to the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT VIII 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 

same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

CORRECTED INFORMATION- 3 
28 

Office oflhe Prosecuting Anomey 
930 Tacoma Annuc South, Room 946 

Tacoma, WA 98402-2171 
Main Offite (253) 798-7400 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

lO 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

41-416 &f-(.~(i. rl? 082:14 

,-and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proofofone charge from proofofthe others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, on or about the 27th day of 

October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously aid, invite, employ, authorize, or cause E.L.K., a minor, to 

engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such conduct will be photographed or part of a live 

perfonnance, contrary to RCW 9.68A.040(l)(b), and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNT IX 

And I, GERALD A. HORNE, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 

same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

2nd day of November, 2004 and the 14th day of March, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously aid, invite, 

employ, authorize, or cause E.L.K., a minor, to engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such 

conduct will be photographed or part of a live perfonnance, contrary to RCW 9.68A.040(1)(b), and 

against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

DATED this 9th day of November, 2007. 

PIERCE COUNTY SHERIFF 
WA02700 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PIERCE COUNTY 

ST ATE OF WASHINGTON, 

vs. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

DOB: 8/26/1960 
PCN#: 

Plaintiff, CAUSE NO. 07-1-05618-3 

AMENDED INFORMATION 

Defendant. 
SEX:MALE 
SID#: 24227529 

COUNTI 

RACE: WHITE 
DOL#: UNKNOWN 

NOV 2 ~~ 2009 

J, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the authority 

of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLEST A TJON IN THE FIRST DEGREE, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, iOOI and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.L.K., have sexual contact with R.L.K., who is less than 12 years old and not 

married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.083, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNT II 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE FIRST DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting pans of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 27th day of October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 
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36 months older than E.L.K., have sexual contact with E.L.K., who is less than 12 years old and not 

married to the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.083, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNT lll 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 

same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 200 I and the 27th day of October, 2007, did unlawful_ly and feloniously aid, invite, 

employ, authorize, or cause S.C., A.H. and A.Y ., minors, to engage in sexually explicit conduct, blowing 

that such conduct will be photographed or part of a live perfonnance, contrary to RCW 9.68A.040(l)(b), 

and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT IV 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR. a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 

same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

I 4th day of March, 200 I and the 27th day of October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously aid, invite, 

employ, authorize, or cause D.R., B.M., C.M., L.C., Z.R. and J.R., minors, to engage in sexually explicit 

conduct, knowing that such conduct will be photographed or part of a live perfonnance, contrary to RCW 

9.68A.040(I)(b), and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNTV 

And I, MARK UNDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 

same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proofof one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

AMENDED INFORMATION- 2 
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That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 200 I and the 27th day of October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously aid, invite, 

employ, authoriz.e, or cause V.Z., S.P., LC., R.M. and O.P., minors, to engage in sexually explicit 

conduct, knowing that such conduct will be photographed or part of a Jive performance, contrary to RCW 

9.68A.040(1 Xb), and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT VI 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 

same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 27th day of October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously aid, invite, 

employ, authorize, or cause K.B., V.P., N.H. and B.Y., minors, to engage in sexually explicit conduct, 

knowing that such conduct will be photographed or part of a live performance, contrary to RCW 

9.68A.040(1Xb), and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNTVll 

And I, MARK LINDQIBST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 

same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 27th day of October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously aid, invite, 

employ, authorize, or cause B.M ., V .C., Y .K., and I.C., minors to engage in sexually explicit conduct, 

knowing that such conduct will be photographed or part of a live performance, contrary to RCW 

9.68A.040(1 )(b), and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT VIII 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 

same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

AMENDED INFORMA TJON- 3 
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and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 200 I and the 27th day of October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously aid, invite, 

employ, authorize, or cause D.D., T.M., A.M., B.V. and D.H., minors to engage in sexually explicit 

conduct, knowing that such conduct will be photographed or part of a live performance, contrary to RCW 

9.68A.040(1 )(b), and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT IX 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 

same conduct or cm a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 27th day of October, 2007, did unlawfuUy and feloniously aid, invite, 

employ, authorize, or cause R.L.K., a minor, to engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such 

conduct wi]] be photographed or part of a live perf onnance, contrary to RCW 9 .68A.040( l )(b ), and 

against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNTX 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 

same conduct or Qn a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 200 I and the 27th day of October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously aid, invite, 

employ, authorize, or cause C.F., a minor, to engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such 

conduct will be photographed or part of a live performance, contrary to RCW 9.68A.040(1 )(b), and 

· against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT XI 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Anomcy for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of SEXUAL 

EXPLOITATION OF A MINOR, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the 
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same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to tim~, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as foJlows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 27th day of October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously aid, invite, 

employ, authorize, or cause N.W., a minor, to engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such 

5 conduct will be photographed or part of a live performance, contrary to RCW 9.68A.040(l)(b), and 

6 against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

7 DATED this 20th day of November, 2009. 
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Superior Court of Washington 
For Pierce County 
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FILED 
co 2 

iN OPEN COURT 

NOV 2 0 2009 

State of Washington 

vs. 
Plaintiff 

Statement of Defendant on Plea of 
Guilty to Sex Offense 
(STTDFG) 

NOV 2 3 2009 
Defendant 

L My true name is: \N4\d0(\ lV\v.(C. G\\'oU't 
2. My age is: Y q ,~Ql's . 
3. The last level of education I completed was \ 'J.~ ~e 1 

4. I Have Been Informed and Fully Understand That: 

(a) I have the right to representation by a lawyer and that if I cannot afford to pay, for a lawyer, 
one will be provided at no expense to me. My la~er's name is: 
1ohn \11\1\j 'Q,'0,4ft) ~ 5ca1'\ l°'r-.. 

(b) 

Statement on Plea of Guilty to Sex Offense (STTDFG) - Page 1 of 10 
CrR 4.2(g) (7/2007) 

z.251 
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(c) (~ill ,fi Additional counts are addressed in Attachment "B" 

5. I Understand I Have the Following Important Rights, and I Give Them All Up 
by Pleading Guilty: 

(a) The right to a speedy and public trial by an impartial jury in the county where the crime is 
alleged to have been committed; 

(b) The right to remain silent before and during trial, and the right to refuse to testify against 
myself; 

(c) The right at trial to hear and question the witnesses who testify against me; 

(d) The right at trial to testify and to have witnesses testify for me. These witnesses can be 
made to appear at no expense to me; 

( e) I am presumed innocent unless the charge is proven beyond a reasonable doubt or I enter a 
plea of guilty; 

(f) The right to appeal a finding of guilt after a trial as well as other pre-trial motions such as 
time for trial challenges and suppression issues. 

6. In Considering the Consequences of my Guilty Plea, I Understand That: 

COWi' 
NO. 

1 

2 

(a) Each crime with which I am charged carries a maximum sentence, a fine, and a 
Standard Sentence Range as follows: 

OFFENl>Ell STANDARD RANGE ACT\JAL Pl.US TOTALACTIJAL COMMIJNTTY cusroov llANGE (Ollly MAXIMUM 
SCORE CONFINl!MENT (IIOI illcludi"I l:!J\h&nCCmcn11• CONFINEMENT lpplicll>le (or crimes c:oa,miual an or allcr July I. TERM AND f1NE 

-....mu) (lllnlbtd nnp mcludiq 2000. FIX' crimes Cl!rlum1lad pri..- 111 July I, 2000, ~, 1«ponani,b6(1).) 

ot IYq-- (o«;~C)(; '{\/p. 3£-ct~~ rt;~~/ 
qt \YC{-(~i~~ ',\~ u--y,~ ' 1?-f,dj) Ii-~ J 

"(F) Firearm, (D) other deadly weapon, (SM) Scx1111I Motivation, RCW 9.94A.533(8). CSCF) Sexual conduct with a child for I fc;c. . 
RCW9.94A-;33(9~ - -~' V\ /A %-~ ~ l'J...~10('() . 
~ ?5-{ l . G\ \ Jo ~-'J 'O ..... V J . 

(b) The standard sentence range is based on the crime charged and my criminal history. 
Criminal history includes prior convictions and juvenile adjudications or convictions, 
whether in this state, in federal court, or elsewhere. 

(c) The prosecuting attorney's statement of my criminal history is attached to this agreement. 

Statement on Plea of Guilty to Sex Offense (STTOFG) - Page 2 of 10 
CrR 4.2(g) (7/2007) 
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Unless I have attached a different statement, I agree that the prosecuting attorney's statement 
is correct and complete. Ifl have attached my own statement, I assert that it is correct and 
complete. If the prosecutor and I disagree about the computation of the offender score, I 
understand that this dispute will be resolved by the court at sentencing. l waive any right to 
challenge the acceptance of my guilty plea on the grounds that my offender score or 
standard range is lower than what is listed in paragraph 6(a). lfl am convicted of any 
additional crimes between now and the time I am sentenced, I am obligated to tell the 
sentencing judge about those convictions. 

(d) If I am convicted of any new crimes before sentencing, or if any additional criminal history 
is discovered, both the standard sentence range and the prosecuting attorney's 
recommendation may increase. Even so, my plea of guilty to this charge is binding on me. 
I cannot change my mind if additional criminal history is discovered even though the 
standard sentencing range and the prosecuting attorney's recommendation increase or a 
mandatory sentence of life imprisonment without the possibility of parole is required by 
law. 

( e) In addition to sentencing me to confinement, the judge will order me to pay $500.00 as a 
victim's compensation fund assessment. lf this crime resulted in injury to any person or 
damage to or loss of property, the judge will order me to make restitution, unless 
extraordinary circumstances exist which make restitution inappropriate. The amount of 
restitution may be up to double my gain or double the victim's loss. The judge may also 
order that I pay a fine, court costs, attorney fees and the costs of incarceration. 

(f) For sex offenses committed prior to Juty 1, 2000: In addition to sentencing me to 
confinement, the judge may order me to serve up to one year of community supervision if 
the total period of confinement ordered is not more than 12 months. If the period of 
confinement is more than one year, the judge will order me to serve three years of · 
community custody or up to the period of earned early release, whichever is longer. During 
the period of community custody, I will be under the supervision of the Department of 
Corrections, and I will have restrictions and requirements placed upon me. My failure to 
comply with these conditions will render me ineligible for general assistance. RCW 
74.04.005 (6) (h). 

For sex offenses committed on or after July I, 2000 but prior to September 11 2001: In 
addition to sentencing me to confinement, the judge may order me to serve up to one year 
of community custody if the total period of confinement ordered is not more than 12 
months. If the period of confinement is over one year, the judge will sentence me to 
community custody for a period of 36 to 48 months or up to the period of earned release, 
whichever is longer. During the period of community custody to which I am sentenced, I 
will be under the supervision oftbe Department of Corrections, and I will have restrictions 
and ~uirements placed upon me. 

For sex offenses committed on or after September 11 2001: 

(i) Sentencing under RCW 9.94A.712: If this offense is for any of the offenses listed in 
subsections (aa) or (bb), below, the judge will impose a maximum term of confinement 
consisting of the statutory maximum sentence of the offense and a minimum term of 

Statement on Plea of Guilty to Sex Offense (STTDFG} - Page 3 of 1 O 
CrR 4.2(g) (7/2007) 
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confinement either within the standard range for the offense or outside the standard range if 
an exceptional sentence is appropriate. The minimum tenn of confinement that is imposed 
may be increased by the Indetenninate Sentence Review Board if the Board detemunes by a 
preponderance of the evidence that it is more likely than not that I will commit sex offenses 
if released from custody. In addition to the period of confinement, I will be sentenced to 
community custody for any period of time I am released from total confinement before the 
expiration of the maximum sentence. During the period of community custody I will be 
under the supervision of the Department of Corrections and I will have restrictions and 
requirements placed upon me, which may include electronic monitoring, and I may be 
required to participate in rehabilitative programs. 

(aa) If the current offense is any of these offenses or attempt to commit any of these 
offenses: · 

Ra in the first de ee 
Rape of a child in the first degree committed 
when I was at least 18 ears old 
Child molestation in the first degree 
committed when I was at least l 8 ears old 

Ra e in the second de ee 
Rape of a child in the second degree 
committed when I was at least l 8 ears old 
Indecent liberties by forcible compulsion 

of sexual motivation: 
Murder in the second de 

(bb) If the current offense is any sex offense and I have a prior conviction for any of 
these offenses or attempt to commit any of these offenses: 

of sexual motivation: 

Assault in the second de ee ee 
Assault of a child in the second de ree 

(ii) If this offense is for a sex offense that is not listed in paragraph 6(t)(i), then in addition 
to sentencing me to a term of confinement, the judge may order me to serve up to one year 
of community custody if the total period of confinement ordered is not more than 12 
months. If the period of confmement is over one year, or ifmy crime is failure to register as 
a sex offender, the judge will sentence me to community custody for a period of36 to 48 
months or up to the period of earned release, wruchever is longer. During the period of 
community custody to which I am sentenced, I will be under the supervision of the 
Department of Corrections, and I will have restrictions and requirements placed upon me, 

Statement on Plea of Guilty to Sex Offense (STTDFG) - Page 4 of 10 
CrR 4.2(g) (7/2007) 
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which may include electronic monitoring. 

For sex offenses committed on or after March 20, 2006: 

For the following offenses and special allegations, the minimum term shall be either the 
maximum of the standard sentence range for the offense or 25 years, whichever is greater: 

1) If the offense is rape of a child in the first degree, rape of a child in the second degree 
or child molestation in the first degree and the offense includes a special allegation that the 
offense was predatory. 

2) Jfthe offense is rape in the first degree, rape in the second decree, indecent liberties by 
forcible compulsion, or kidnapping in the first degree with sexual motivation and the 
offense includes special allegation that the victim of the offense was under 15 years of age 
at the time of the offense. 

3) lfthe offense is rape in the first degree, rape in the second degree with forcible 
compulsion, indecent liberties with forcible compulsion, or kidnapping in the first degree 
with sexual motivation and this offense includes a speciaJ allegation that the victim of the 

· offense was, at the time of the offense, developmentally disabled, mentally disordered, or a 
frail elder or vulnerable adult 

Community Custody Violation: 

If I am subject to a first or second violation hearing and the Department of Corrections finds 
that I committed the violation, I may receive as a sanction up to 60 days of confinement per 
violation. lfl have not completed my maximum term of total confinement and 1 am subject 
to a third violation hearing and the Department of Corrections finds that I committed the 
violation, the Department of Corrections may return me to a state correctional facility to 
serve up to the remaining portion of my sentence. 

[ ] The prosecutor will recommend as stated in the plea agreement, which is incorporated 
by reference. 

(h) The judge does not have to follow anyone's recommendation as to sentence. The 
judge must impose a sentence within the standard range unless there is a finding of 
substantial and compelling reasons not to do so. I understand the following regarding 
exceptional sentences: 
(i) The judge may impose an exceptional sentence below the standard range if the 

judge finds mitigating circumstances supporting an exceptional sentence. 
(ii) The judge may impose an exceptional sentence above the standard range ifl am 

being sentenced for more than one crime and I have an offender score of more 
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than nine. 
(ii,) The judge may also impose an exceptional sentence above the standard range if 

the State and I stipulate that justice is best served by imposition of an exceptional 
sentence and the judge agrees that an exceptional sentence is consistent with and 
in furtherance of the interests of justice and the purposes of the Sentencing 
RefonnAct. 

(iv) The judge may also impose an exceptionaJ sentence above the standard range if 
the State has given notice that it will seek an exceptional sentence, the notice 
states aggravating circumstances upon which the requested sentence will be 
based, and facts supporting an exceptional sentence are proven beyond a 
reasonable doubt to a unanimous jury, to a judge if I waive a jury, or by 
stipulated facts. 

I understand that if a standard range sentence is imposed upon an agreed offender score, 
the sentence cannot be appealed by anyone. If an exceptional sentence is imposed after a 
contested hearing, either the State or I can appeal the sentence. 

(i) lfl am not a citiz.en of the United States, a plea of guilty to an offense punishable as a 
crime under state Jaw is grounds for deportation, exclusion from admission to the United 
States, or denial of naturalization pursuant to the laws of the United States. 

(j) I understand that I may not possess, own, or have under my control any firearm unless 
my right to do so is restored by a court of record and that I must immediately surrender any 
concealed pistol license. RCW 9.41.040. 

(k) I understand that I will be ineligible to vote until that right is restored in a manner 
provided by law. If I am registered to vote, my voter registration will be cancelled. 
Wash. Const. art. VI, § 3, RCW 29A.04.079, 29A.08.520. 

(l) Public assistance will be suspended during any period of imprisonment. 

(m) I will be required to register where I reside, study or work. The specific registration 
requirements are described in the "Offender Registration" Attachment These requirements 
may change at a later date. I am responsible for learning about any changes in the 
registration requirements and for complying with the new requirements. 

(n) I will be required to have a biological sample collected for purposes of DNA identification 
analysis. For offenses committed on or after July 1, 2002, I will be required to pay a 
$ J 00.00 DNA collection fee, unless the court finds that imposing the fee wiJl cause me 
undue hardship. 

(o) I will be required to undergo testing for the human immunodeficiency (HIV/AIDS) virus. 

Notification Relating to Specific Crimes. If Any of the Following Paragraphs Do Not 
Apply, They Should Be Stricken and Initialed by the Defendant and the Judge. 

(p) This offense is a most serious offense or strike as defined by RCW 9.94A.030, and ifl 
have at least two prior convictions for most serious offenses, whether in this state, in federal 
court, or elsewhere, the· offense for which I am charged carries a mandatory sentence oflife 
imprisonment without the possibility of parole. In addition, if this offense is (i) rape in the 
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first degree, rape of a child in the first degree, rape in the second degree, rape of a child in 
the second degree, indecent liberties by forcible compulsion, or child molestation in the first 
degree, or (ii) murder in the first degree, murder in the second degree, homicide by abuse, 
kidnapping in the first degree, kidnapping in the second degree, assault in the first degree, 
assault in the second degree, assault of a child in the first degree, assault of a child in the 
second degree, or burglary in the first degree, with a finding of sexual motivation, or (iii) 
any attempt to commit any of the offenses listed in this sentence and I have at least one 
prior conviction for one of these listed offenses in this state, in federal court, or elsewhere, 
the offense for which I am charged carries a mandatory sentence of life imprisonment 
without the possibility of parole. 

(q) Special sex offender sentencing lternative: 

In addition to other eligibility r uirements under R 9.94A.670, to be eligible for the 
special sex off ender sentencin alternative, I unde d that I must voluntarily a 
affinnatively admit that I co ·ued all of the ele ents of the crime(s) to which am 
pleading guilty. I make my v untary and affirm ive admission in my stateme in 
paragraph I I . 

................ ==~=--==~~;;.;...;;;...;;;;....~==-=~00~1: The judge may suspe d execution of 
the standard range tenn of onfinement under especial sex offender sent cing alternative 
(SSOSA) if I qualify unde former RCW 9.94 .120(8) (for offenses com 1tted before July 
1, 2001) or RCW 9.94A.6 0 (for offenses co itted on or after July I , 001 ). If the judge 
suspends execution ofth standard range te of confinement, I will be laced on 
community custody for e length of the sus ended sentence or three y rs, whichever is 
greater; I will be ordere to serve up to 180 ays of total confinement; will be ordered to 
participate in sex off en r treatment; I will ave restrictions and requ · ements placed upon 
me; and I will be subje t to all of the condi ions described in paragra h 6(f). Additionally, 
the judge could requir me·to devote time o a specific occupation d to pursue a 
prescribed course of dy or occupation training. If a violation the sentence occurs 
during community c stody, the judge m revoke the suspended s ntence. 

execution of the s dard range tenn confinement or the mini um term of confinement 
under the special ex offender senten ing alternative (SSOSA) · I qualify under RCW 
9.94A.670. Ifth judge suspends e cution of the standard ra ge tenn of confinement for a 
sex offense that s not listed in para ph 6(f)(i), I will be pla don community custody for 
the length ofth suspended senten e or three years, whichev r is greater. If the judge 
suspends exec tion of minimum nn of confmement for a ex offense listed in paragraph 
6(t)(i), I will placed on com nity custody for the ten of the statutory maximum 
sentence oft e offense. In add. ion to the term of comm ity custody, I will be ordered to 
serve up to I 0 days of total c nfinement, or for off ens committed on or after 7/1/0S, I 
will be ord ed to serve up 12 months of total co mement; l will be ordered to 
participate n sex offender tr atment; I will have restri tions and requirements placed upon 
me, whic may include electronic monitoring; and l will be subject to all of the conditions 
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described in paragraph 6( Additionally, he judge could quire me to devote time to a 
specific occupation and t pursue a pres bed course of dy or occupational training. If a 
violation of the sentenc occurs du.rin ommunity cust dy, the judge may revoke 
thesuspended sentenc . 

(r) may order m o pay a domestic violence 
assessment of up to $100. . If I, or the vi of the offe e, have a minor child, the court 
may order me to partici te in a domesti violence perpetrator program approved under 
RCW 26.50.150. 

(s) lfl am subject to community custody and the judge finds that I have a chemical 
dependency that has contributed to the offense, the judge may order me to participate in 
rehabilitative programs or otherwise to perform affirmative conduct reasonably related to 
the circumstances of the crime for which I am pleading guilty. 

(t) If this offense involv~r vebi✓-,y drivor;,/cense or privilege to drive will be 
suspended or revoked. 

(u) The crime of _______ ,,,__ __ -r---- ndatory minimum 
sentence of at least ___ .,,...__ The law does not allow any 
reduction of this sentence. is man ory mmunum s ence is not the same as the 
mandatory sentence of life imprisonment without the possibility of parole described in 
paragraph 6[p). 

(v) 

(w) am pleading ilty to inclu a deadly weapon, firearm 
or sexual motivation en cement. Dead weapon, fir or sexual motivation 
enhancements are man ory, they must served in to confinement, and they must run 
consecutively to any ther sentence an to any other d adly weapon, fireann, or sexual 
motivation enhance ents. 

(x) For crimes committed on or after J ul aerstand that if I pleading 
guilty to rape of a child in the first econd, or · a degree or child - olestation in the 
first, second or third degree, an engaged, eed or offered to e age the victim in 
sexual intercourse or sex contact fo fee, or if I attemp , solicited another, or 
conspired to engage, ee or offer to gage the victim in xual intercourse or sexual 
contact for a fee, then a one-year enh cement shall be a ed to the standard sentence 
range. lfJ am pleading guilty to more than one offense, the one-year enhancement must 
be added to the total period of total confinement for all offenses, regardless of which 
underlying offense is subject to the enhancement. 

7. I plead guilty to 'count(s):1; U, in the fW't«it d Information. I have received a 
copy of that Information. 

8. I make this plea freely and voluntarily. 
9. No on~ has threatened hann of any kind to me or to any other person to cause me to make this plea. 
J 0. No person has made promises of any kind to cause me to enter this plea except as set forth in this 

statement. 
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11. The judge has asked me to state what I did in my own words that makes me guilty of this crime. 
This is my statement: ________________________ _ 

~nstead of making a statement, I agree that the court may review the police reports and/or a 
!ta~ent of probable cause supplied by the prosecution to establish a factual basis for the plea. 

12. My lawyer has explained to me, and we have fuJly discussed, all of the above paragraphs and the 
"Offender Registration" Attachment. I understand them all. J have been given a copy of this 
"Statement of Defendant on Plea of Guilty." I have no further questions to ask the judge. 

Prosecuting Attome 

PAT ~AMA/40\LD 
Print Name WSBANo. 

I have read and discussed this statement with the 
defendant and believe that the defendant is 

~iliemkmcnt 

Defendant's Lawyer 

~ Sro11J~o 
Print Name WSBANo. 

The foregoing statement was signed by the defendant in the presence of the defendant's lawyer and 
acknow )edged in open court before the undersigned judge. The defendant asserted that [ check appropriate 

) 

) 

The defendant had previously read the entire statement above and that the defendant understood it 
in full; 
The defendant's lawyer had previously read to him or her the entire statement above and that the 
defendant understood it in full; or 

D ( c) An interpreter had previously read to the defendant the entire statement above and that the 
defendant understood it in full. The Interpreter's Declaration is attached. 

I find the defendant's plea of guilty to be knowingly, intelligently and voluntarily made. Defendant 
understands the charges and the consequences of the plea. There is a factual basis for the plea. The 
defendant is guilty as chyged. 

Dated: J f / 1,-0 L(}j 
I I 
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Interpreter's Declaration 

I am a certified interpreter or have been found otherwise qualified by the court to interpret in the 
_____________ language, which the defendant understands, and I have translated the 
________________ for the defendant from English into that language. (Identify 

document being translated) 
The defendant has acknowledged his or her understanding of both the translation and the subject matter of this 
document I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the state of Washington that the foregoing is true and 
correct 

Dated: _________________ _ 

Interpreter 

Print Name 

Location: 
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Cause No. 01-l-05'rg.3 
"Offender Registration" Attachment: sex offense, or kidnapping offense involving a minor as 
defined in RCW 9A.44.130. (If required. attach to Statement of Defendant on Plea of Guilty.) 

1. General Applicability and Requirements: Because this crime involves a sex offense, or a 
kidnapping offense involving a minor as defined in RCW 9A.44.130, I will be required to register with the 
sheriff of the county of the state of Washington where I reside. )fl am not a resident of Washington but I am 
a student in Washington or 1 am employed in Washington or I carry on a vocation in Washington, I must 
register with the sheriff of the county of my school, place of employment, or vocation. I must register 
immediately upon being sentenced unless I am in custody, in which case I must register at the time of my 
release with the person designated by the agency that has me in custody and I must also register within 24 
hours of my release with the sheriff of the county of the state of Washington where I will be residing, or if 
not residing in the state of Washington, where I am a student, where l am employed, or where I carry on a 
vocation. 

2. Offenders Who Leave the State and Return: Ifl leave this state following my sentencing or 
release ftom custody but later move back to Washington, I must register within three business days after 
moving to this state or within 24 hours after doing so if I am under the jurisdiction of this state's Department 
of Corrections. lfl leave this state following my sentencing or release from custody, but later while not a 
resident of Washington I become employed in Washington, carry on a vocation in Washington, or attend 
school in Washington, I must register within three business days after attending school in this state or 
becoming employed or canying out a vocation in this state, or within 24 hours after doing so if I am under 
the jurisdiction of this state's Department of Corrections. 

3. Change of Residence Within State and Leaving the State: lf I change my residence within a 
county, I must send signed written notice of my change of residence to the sheriff within 72 hours of 
moving. If l change my residence to a new county within this state, I must send signed written notice of the 
change of address at least 14 days before moving to the county sheriff in the new county of residence and I 
must register with the sheriff of the new county within 24 hours of moving. I must also give signed written 
notice of my change of address to the sheriff of the county where last registered within IO days of moving. 
If I move out of Washington State, I must send written notice within 10 days of moving to the new state or 
foreign country to the county sheriff with whom I last registered in Washington State. 

4. Additional Requirements Upon Moving to Another State: If I move to another state, or if I 
work, carry on a vocation, or attend school in another state I must register a new address, fingerprints, and 
photograph with the new state within IO days after establishing residence, or after beginning to work, 
carry on a vocation, or attend school in the new state. I must also send written notice within l O days of 
moving to the new state or to a foreign country to_ the county sheriff with whom I last registered in 
Washington State. 

5. Notification Requirement When Enrolling in or Employed by a Public or Private 
Institution of Higher Education or Common School (K-12): lfl am a resident of Washington and I 
am admitted to a public or private institution of higher education, I shall, within IO days of enrolling or by 
the first business day after arriving at the institution, whichever is earlier, notify the sheriff of the counW.f-
my residence of my intent to attend the institution. J f I become employed at a public or priv instit5/Rfn(bf 
higher education, I am required to notify the sheriff for the county of my residence of my ~~Yit.he 
institution within 10 days of accepting employment or by the first business day after begi m M tbtic"'at ... UURT 
the institution, whichever is earlier. If my enrollment or employment at a public or priv e institution of 
higher education is terminated, I am required to notify the sheriff for the county of my r sidenc~Jn; 0 2009 
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tennination of enrollment or employment within 10 days of such termination. If I attend, or plan to attend, a 
public or private school regulated under Title 28A RCW or chapter 72.40 RCW, I am required to notify the 
sheriff of the county of my residence of my intent to attend the school. I must notify the sheriff within 10 
days of enroJling or 10 days prior to arriving at the school to attend classes, whichever is earlier. The sheriff 
shall promptly notify the principal of the school. 

6. Registration by a Person Who Does Not Have a Fixed Residence: Even if l do not have a 
fixed residence, I am required to register. Registration must occur within 24 hours of release in the county 
where I am being supervised ifl do not have a residence at the time ofmy release from custody. Within 48 
hours, excluding weekends and holidays, after losing my fixed residence, I must send signed written notice 
to the sheriff of the county where 1 last registered. If l enter a different county and stay there for more than 
24 hours, 1 will be required to register in the new county. I must also report in person to the sheriff of the 
county where I am registered on a weekly basis. The weekly report will be on a day specified by the county 
sheriWs office, and shall occur during nonnal business hours. I may be required to provide a list of the 
locations where r have stayed during the last seven days. The lack of a fixed residence is a factor that may 
be considered in determining a sex offender's risk level and shall make me subject to disclosure to the public 
at large pursuant to RCW 4.24.550. 

7. Reporting Requirements for Persons Who Are Risk Level II or Ill: lfl have a fixed 
residence and I am designated as a risk level II or Ill, I must report, in person, every 90 days to the sheriff 
of the county where I am registered. Reporting shall be on a day specified by the county sheriff's office, 
and shall occur during nonnal business hours. If I comply with the 90-day reporting requirement with no 
violations for at least five years in the community, 1 may petition the superior court to be relieved of the 
duty to report every 90 days. 

8. Application for a Name Change: If J apply for a name change, I must submit a copy of the 
application to the county sheriff of the county of my residence and to the state patrol not fewer than five days 
before the entry of an order granting the name change. If I receive an order changing my name, I must 
submit a copy of the order to the county sheriff of the county of my residence and to the state patrol within 
five days of the entry of the order. RCW 9A.44.130(7). 

Date: _____________ _ 
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Attachment "B" Page 1 
Statement of Defendant on Plea of Guilty 
State of Washington v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, Cause No. 07-1-05618-3 

Count III: sexual exploitation of a minor 
The elements are: The defendant did aid, invite, employ, authorize or cause a minor, to 
engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such conduct will be photographed or 
part of a live performance. 

Count JV: sexual exploitation of a minor 
The elements are: The defendant did aid, invite, employ, authorize or cause a minor, to 
engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such conduct will be photographed or 
part of a live performance. 

Count V: sexual exploitation of a minor 
The elements are: The defendant did aid, invite, empJoy, authorize or cause a minor, to 
engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such conduct will be photographed or 
part of a live performance. 

Count VI: sexual exploitation of a minor 
The elements are: The defendant did aid, invite, employ, authorize or cause a minor, to 
engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such conduct wiJI be photographed or 
part of a live performance. 

Count VII: sexuaJ exploitation of a minor 
The elements are: The defendant did aid, invite, employ, authorize or cause a minor, to 
engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such conduct will be photographed or 
part of a live performance. 

Count VIII: sexual exploitation of a minor 
The elements are: The defendant did aid, invite, employ, authorize or cause a minor, to 
engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such conduct will be photographed or 
part of a live performance. 

Count IX: sexual exploitation of a minor 
The elements are: The defendant did aid, invite, employ, authorize or cause a minor, to 
engage in sexually explicit conduct, knowing that such conduct will be photographed or 
part of a I ive performance. 

Count X: sexual exploitation of a minor 
The elements are: The defendant did aid, invite, employ, authorize or cause a minor, to 
engage in sexualJy expJicit conduct, knowing that such conduct wiJJ be photographed or 
part of a live performance. 
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Attachment "B" Page 2 
Statement of Defendant on Plea of Guilty 
State of Washington v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, Cause No. 07-1-05618-3 

Count XI: sexual exploitation of a minor 
The elements are: The defendant did aid, invite, employ, authorize or cause a minor, to 
engage in sexually expJicit conduct, knowing that such conduct will be photographed or 
part of a live performance. 
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PRE-SENTENCE INVESTIGATION 

DATE OF 
REPORT: 

12/01/2009 To: The Honorable Susan K. Serko 
Pierce County Superior Court 
Weldon Marc Gilbert NAME: 

ALIAS(ES): 

DOC NUMBER: 336204 
COUNTY: Pierce 

CRIME(S): Count I/Count II: Child Molestation in the First 
·Degree; 

DATE OF 
OFFENSE: 

Count Ill-Count XI: Sexual Exploitation of a Minor 

Count I: Between March 14, 2001 and March 
13, 2003; 
Count II - XI: Between March 14, 2001 and 
October 27, 2007; 

PRESENT ADDRESS: Pierce County Jail DEFENSE 
ATTORNEY: 

I. OFFICIAL VERSION OF OFFENSE: 

CAUSE#: 07-1.:05618-3 

SENTENCING 
DATE: 

12/11/2009 

John Henry Browne 
821 2nd Ave Suite 2100, 
Seattle, WA 98104 

On November 1, 2007, an lnfonnation formally charging Weldon Marc Gilbert with Rape 
of a Child in the Second Degree, Count I/Count II/Count Ill/Count V; Rape of a Child in 
the Third Degree, Count IV/Count VI; Child Molestation in the Second Degree, Count 
VII; and Sexual Exploitation of a Minor, Count VII I and IX was filed by the Pierce County 
Prosecuting Attorney's Office. On November 9, 2007, a Corrected Information was filed 
correcting the defendant's date of birth only. On November 20, 2009, an Amended 
lnfonnation was filed amending the charges to two Counts of Child Molestation in the 
First Degree and nine Counts of Sexual Exploitation of a Minor. Mr. Gilbert signed a 
Plea Agreement to the charges as filed that same day. He is currently detained in the 
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Pierce _County Jail awaiting Sentencing that has been scheduled for December 11, 
2009. 

According to file material, Mr. Weldon Marc Gilbert (DOB: 08/26/1960) befriended 
R.L.K. (DOB: 03/14/1989) following R.L.K.'s father's suicide when R.L.K. was twelve 
years of age. Mr. Gilbert was introduced to R.L.K. through Gilbert's sister, who lived 
next door to R.L.K. and his family. · 

A few months after Mr. Gilbert met R.L.K., Gilbert took R.L.K. for his first airplane ride, 
at the age of thirteen, and allowed R.L.K. to take the controls of the plane. After the 
airplane ride, Mr. Gilbert took R.L.K. home and provided him with a nice dinner and a 
Mike's Hard Lemonade. After dinner,·Mr. Gilbert put on UGirls Gone Wildn and began 
rubbing R.L.K.'s head, chest, and stomach. Mr. Gilbert then slid his hand down R.L.K.'s 
pants and masturbated R.L.K. 

R.L.K. started spending more time at Mr. Gilbert's home in Lake Tapps, Washington. 
Mr. Gilbert would pay R.L.K. to do odd jobs around the house. In a short time, Mr. 
Gilbert started paying R.L.K. for sexual favors, spankings on his bare buttocks and 
participation in mutual masturbation and oral sex and/or anal sex. He received between 
$50.00 and $100.00 for these sessions; more if R.L.K. accepted a more severe 
spanking or if he participated in oral or anal sex. 

Mr. Gilbert would take R.L.K. into a room decorated with Mario Brothers wallpaper and 
a sign in the closet that read "Boy's Punishment Roomn where a video camera was set 
up to capture the spanking sessions. Mr. Gilbert would instruct R.L.K. to undress; 
sometimes he would bend R.L.K. over his lap, sometimes he would bind him to a 
spanking bench. Mr. Gilbert would then spank R.L.K. with his hand, or a paddle, leather 
strap, or a cane. Mr. Gilbert would touch R.L.K., grabbing, fondling, and pinching 
R.L.K.'s penis/testicles. The spankings that Mr. Gilbert would give R.L.K. would often 
result in welts, bruising, and cuts to R.L.K.'s buttocks. R.L.K. often cried and begged 
Mr. Gilbert to stop or would try to block him from striking him. 

With time R.L.K. would trade positions with Mr. Gilbert and spank Mr. Gilbert and 
masturbate him. Sometimes Mr. Gilbert would beg for R.L.K. to agree to oral and/or 
anal sex saying, "Just get me off real quick. Come on ... please ... please.n At first this 
was more of a joke but eventually progressed to oral and/or anal sex. 

When R.L.K. made mistakes he would be taken to the room and forced to strip, 
chastised for his mistakes, and then sexually assaulted. Mr. Gilbert soon stopped 
offering money for the sexual favors and would say, "Don't forget where your bread is 
buttered ... " or "Don't cut off the hand that feeds you." 

Over the years, many boys would visit Mr. Gilbert's home. R.L.K. would invite his own 
friends over and Mr. Gilbert would pay for their participation in the spanking sessions. 
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Mr. Gilbert lured the boys with lavish dinners, alcohol, access to Gilbert's home, boats, 
jet skis, seaplane and helicopter, and expensive gifts. R.L.K. and his friends would 
often accompany Mr. Gilbert on trips to Lake Isabelle, Whistler Ski Resort, and an old 
mining town at th~ Cascade Foothills. R.L.K. also traveled to Hong Kong, Germany, 
Australia, Jamaica; Thailand, and Europe with Mr. Gilbert. R.L.K. traveled out of the 
country for the first time at the age of fourteen with Mr. Gilbert. 

Mr. Gilbert referred to R.L.K. as the "President Qf Generation Five", which meant R.l.K. 
was the primary victim of the fifth group of boys that Mr. Gilbert had victimized. Mr. 
Gilbert purchased a coffee business in Seattle for· R.L.K. to own and operate. R.L.K. 
would have never been able to afford the lifestyle he had enjoyed if it was not for the 
extravagant gifts provided by Mr. Gilbert. 

As R.L.K. grew older, Mr. Gilbert started to lose interest. Mr. Gilbert preferred boys 
under 18 or without facial hair. Mr. Gilbert requested that R.L.K. invite his younger 
brother, E.L.K. (DOB: 11/04/1994) to the house but R.L.K. did not want to do this. 
Unknowingly, R.L.K. and E.L.K.'s older brother, Y.K., took E.L.K. to the home of Mr. 
Gilbert on the pretense that he was going to go on a helicopter ride with Mr. Gilbert. 

While E.L.K. was in Mr. Gilbert's home, Mr. Gilbert confronted E.L.K. and accused him 
of viewing pornography. Mr. Gilbert· then directed E.L.K. into the room decorated with 
Mario Brothers wallpaper and told E.L.K. he was going to be punished with a spanking. 
Mr. Gilbert ordered E.L.K. to sit on a chair while he set up a camcorder. He then asked 
E.L.K. why they were there and E.L.K. responded because he had done.bad stuff on the 
computer. Mr. Gilbert ordered E.L.K. to remove his pants and had him lie down across 
Mr. Gilbert's lap. Mr. Gilbert then spanked E.L.K.'s bare buttocks with his hand. He 
then told E.L.K. that he should see his butt because it was red. Mr. Gilbert then took 
E.L.K. into Mr. Gilbert's room, where he got a paddle from the wall. Mr. Gilbert then 
ordered E.L.K. to spank him, which E.L.K.·did. Mr. Gilbert ordered E.L.K. to spank him 
harder but E.L.K. refused and placed the paddle back on the wall. 

R.L.K. learned what had happened and reported the abuse to their older brothers, A.K. 
and V.K., who then contacted the Pierce County Sheriffs Department and filed a report. 
A.K. and V.K. expressed concern about making the report because of Gilbert's wealth 
and power, and they feared retaliation. They indicated that a good number of spanking 
sessions had been videotaped and that R.L.K. had one of the videotapes in his 
possession. 

Law enforcement officials met with R.L.K., who stated, "There's shitloads of tapes in the 
house ... you're gonna find a lot of paddles, you're gonna find an endless supply of 
paddles. You're gonna find a lot of videos, mainly of me." R.L.K. provided a videotape 
to law enforcement. The first part of the video tape depicted the first time R.L.K. was 
ever spanked by Mr. Gilbert at the age of 13. R.L.K. was seen being interrogated.by 
Mr. Gilbert as to why he was being punished. Mr. Gilbert then ordered R.L.K. to remove 
his clothing, to which R.L.K. complied. Mr. Gilbert then directed R.L.K. not to cover 
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his clothing, to which R.LK. complied. Mr. Gilbert then directed R.L.K. not to cover 
himself and commented on the size of R.L.K.'s penis. R.L.K. then lay across Mr. 
Gilbert's lap and Mr. Gilbert caressed R.l.K.'s buttocks and between his legs. Mr. 
Gilbert then spanked R.l.K.'s bare buttocks with his hand. R.L.K. began to cry during 
the spanking and attempted to shield himself. Mr. Gilbert grabbed R.l.K.'s hand and 
moved it out of the way and continued to spank R.L.K. After the spanking, Mr. Gilbert 
had R.L.K. kneel before him and he hugged R.L.K. He then pulled R.L.K. on top of him 
on the bed and fondled R.L.K.'s buttocks, which were red and welted. 

The second part of the video tape was E.L.K. being spanked by Mr. Gilbert at the age of 
12. E.L.K. was seen being interrogated by Mr. Gilbert about looking at Internet 
pomography. Mr. Gilbert ordered E.L.K. to remove his clothing and E.L.K. took off 
everything but his shirt. Mr. Gilbert then ordered E.L.K. to lie across his lap, to which 
E.l.K. complied. Mr. Gilbert rubbed E.L.K.'s buttocks and told him to spread his legs. 
Mr. Gilbert asked E.L.K. if viewing the pornography had "made your little dick hard ... " 
Mr. Gilbert then spanked E.L.K. with his hand. E.L.K. initially started to laugh but soon 
started squirming and crying as Mr. Gilbert spanked him harder and faster. E.L.K. 
reached back with hand to shield himself from the spanking and Mr. Gilbert told him, 
"Do you know what happens when you put your hand back here ... we start all over." 
After the spanking Mr. Gilbert asked E.L.K. if the spanking was hard enough and if 
E;L.K. felt better. Mr. Gilbert then had E.L.K. kneel before him between his legs and he 
hugged E.L.K. and caressed E.L.K.'s buttocks. Mr. Gilbert then pulled up E.L.K.'s shirt 
and reached toward his penis and stated, "Holy shit dude this is getting huge." 

An initial search of Mr. Gilbert's home revealed a room decorated with Mario Brothers 
wallpaper and a sign in the closet that read "Boys Punishment Room". Among the 
items seized were a stockpile of paddles, straps, canes, brushes, cuffs, straps, a large 
wooden fraternity paddle, spanking games, several cameras, blindfolds, lengths of rope, 
bondage straps, bondage Implements, four computer hard drives, two video cameras, 
DVD's, CD's, audio cassettes, floppy discs, commercial fetish spanking pornography, 
and numerous homemade videotapes marked with initials or names, a two-page 
contract ("Binding Agreement"", which documented to allow a person identified as R.M., 
the unsupervised use of Gilbert's residence and listed spanking as punishment for 
b~eaking the rules). 

A review of Mr. Gilbert's computers revealed that he had frequented several fetish 
spanking websites including www.malespank.net, www.spankthis.com, and 
www.guyspank.com. It was also determined that Mr. Gilbert authored eleven stories: 
An Awakening at South Prairie High; Austin; Brother Sean; Cool Teenager; High 
Altitude Correction; Jerry; Jerry Spanks Again; Kyle, Part I; Mentoring Kyle (School 
Attendance Agreement): Scott and I Get Spanking; and The Coach). Mr. Gilbert had 
posted these sites under his usemame of barespanker@aol.com. The stories depicted 
young boys between the ages of thirteen and fifteen being subjected to severe 
spankings by older men. The older men became sexually aroused and after the your:ig 
boys got over their fear they too became sexually aroused. An email was also located, 
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which indicated a man identified as Clifton Meador, had helped Gilbert destroy 
videotapes during a prior sex offense investigation in 2001. 

Clifton Meador was interviewed and reported that he and Mr. Gilbert became associated 
due to their common Interest in spanking in 1995 or 1996. Clifton Meador operated a 

· website spankingcentral.com. Mr. Gilbert frequented a variety of spanking websites and 
posted several spankings stories on the website malespank.net under his user name of 
barespanker@aol.com. Clifton Meador was reportedly aware of Mr. Gilbert's interest in 
young boys, those of whom Mr. Gilbert referred to as "baby boys". Mr. Gilbert had ·sent 
Clifton Meador ·a number of spanking videos, but Clifton Meador indicated he could not 
use them because some of the boys were under the age of 18. Mr. Gilbert offered 
Clifton Meador the services of a seventeen year old boy for use in his videos but Clifton 
tv,eador declined the offer since the boy was too young. Clifton Meador indicated that 
Mr. Gilbert believed the boys were able to give consent at the age of sixteen. 

Clifton Meador explained that Mr. Gilbert had contacted him about being investigated for 
sexually abusing a boy in 2001. Mr. Gilbert had expressed concern that the 2001 
investigation was going to spark renewed interest in the allegations surrounding a 
young boy that disappeared from Alaska previously. Mr. Gilbert claimed he had started 
spanking the boy and the boy freaked out and fled Mr. Gilbert's home. 

Clifton Meador reported that he assisted Gilbert in removing over 200 videotapes from 
Gilbert's home. Clifton Meador advised officials there was a secret storage area in 
Gilbert's home behind a fake panel in a downstairs closet where Gilbert kept many of 
his videotapes. On October 31, 2007, Clifton Meador received a call from Mr. Gilbert 
and Mr. Gilbert said, "I think my life is about to change in a big way." 

A second search warrant was served on Mr. Gilbert's residence and the hiding spot was 
located behind a fake panel in a downstairs closet. Inside the storage area officials 
found a spanking bench and several boxes of videotapes. 

The homemade videotapes depicted Mr. Gilbert engaged in ritualistic spanking sessions 
with one or more young boys ranging in ages between eight and seventeen. Although 
there were approximately 40 victims in the videos onty 36 victims were identified and 
interviewed. The videos depicted Mr. Gilbert ordering the boys to strip, often completely 
naked, and then Gilbert would fondle them and comment on the size of their penis 
and/or to their level of arousal. Mr. Gilbert is seen lecturing the boys and/or 
interrogating them about their real or imagined misbehavior, which would necessitate . 
them to be punished. Mr. Gilbert would then lay the boys across his lap with their 
buttocks in the air and their feet off the ground. He would spank their bare buttocks with 
his hand or with same form of spanking instrument such as a paddle, belt, or cane. The 
spankings generally lasted ten to thirty minutes. The victims were almost always left 
crying, screami_ng, writhing, and pleading for him to stop. The victims suffered redness, 
welting, cuts, bruises, blisters, and sometimes bleeding to their buttocks. In many of the 
spanking sessions the victims were bound or forcibly held down by Mr. Gilbert. During 
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the spankings Mr. Gilbert would caress and fondle the victims' bodies. After the 
spankings, Mr. Gilbert would hug the victims and made them thank him for the 
spankings. A few of the scenes depicted traditional sexual conduct to include 
masturbation and oral and anal sex. 

R.L.K. is depicted in 102 of these scenes, which occurred between his ages thirteen 
and eighteen. R.L.K. is seen being spanked by Mr. Gilbert while he is naked or mostly 
naked. Mr. Gilbert is using his hand, paddle, belt, hair brush, cane, and leather strap. 
In many of the scenes, R.L.K. is strapped to the spanking bench or held down by Mr. 
Gilbert. R.L.K. is seen struggling, crying and pleading with Mr. Gilbert to stop. In one 
scene, R.L.K. is seen resisting and Mr. Gilbert whispers "If you don't participate in this, it 
will be ten times worse." During the spanking R.LK. is lifted up ~nd then pulled back · 
down by his penis and spanked more. Some scenes R.L.K. is seen spanking a naked 
Mr. Gilb~rt with a leather strap, paddle or cane. In one scene, Mr. Gilbert asked R.L.K. 
if he liked spanking his bare butt and R.L.K. responded, "No, I hated it." Mr. Gilbert then 
put on a pornographic video and directed R.L.K. to say, "Shut up and suck my cock, 
bitch." Mr. Gilbert is then seen performing oral sex on R.L.K. There is one scene that 
depicts a man identified as Jack Papeggay spanking a naked R.L.K. with a paddle. 
Three scenes depict R.L.K. spanking another naked young boy and Mr. Gilbert is 
instructing them on how to touch themselves. R.L.K. is seen with a boy identified as 
S.C. masturbating and performing oral sex on one another. Mr. Gilbert states, "I wanna 
see the cum on the lips." One scene depicts R.L.K. at the age of 15, and Mr. Gilbert 
inserting a vibrator into R.L.K.'s anus. One scene depicts Mr. Gilbert bathing R.L.K. and 
shaving off all of his pubic hair. Seven scenes depict R.L.K. in a shower or a hot tub. 
One scene depicts R.L.K. lying on a bed with a red ribbon tied around him as if he were 
a Christmas present. 

Jack Papeggay wa interviewed and he admitted he met Mr. Gilbert in 1990 due to their 
mutual interest in spanking. Mr. Papeggay indicated Mr. Gilbert did not enjoy spanking 
men his own age and began getting involved with younger and younger men. He began 
spanking boys as young as sixteen and referred to them as "baf;,y boys". Mr. Papeggay 
questioned Mr. Gilbert about his relationships with young boys and Mr. Gilbert insisted 
that age of consent in Washington was sixteen. Mr. Gilbert showed Mr. Papeggay 
approximately 50 videos of Gilbert spanking young boys. Mr. Gilbert introduced 
Papeggay to R.L.K. and then pulled down R.L.K.'s pants and underwear and spanked 
R.LK. in front of Papeggay. Mr. Gilbert tried to entice Mr. Pa·peggay into spanking 
R.LK. on. three· occasions, at which Mr. Papeggay finally agreed. R.L.K. stated he 
preferred to be spanked by Papeggay because Gilbert's spankings were too severe, 
which Papeggay described as "very hard and vicious." Papeggay also reported that Mr. 
Gilbert's typical fantasy included Gilbert role playing as a fourteen year old boy being 
spanked by an older man. 
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II. VICTIM CONCERNS: 
Although R.L.K. and E.L.K. are clearly identified in the Official Version of the Offense, 
the Department of Corrections did not receive a list of all the victims captured in this 
case. nor did the Department of Corrections rec~ive any contact infonnation for those 
victims identified. 

Ill. GILBERT'S STATEMENT REGARDING OFFENSE: 
On December 2; 2009, Community Corrections Officer Dustin Richey and I met Mr. 
Gilbert in the Pierce County Jail and he agreed to participate in the Pre-Sentence 
Investigation interview. 

Mr. Gilbert indicated there were a "number of discrepancies" in the official version of the 
offense but that he was not going to dispute them because it would undermine the Plea 
Agreement. Mr. Gilbert stated that the file material described him as a sadist. .. he 
stated, "I'm really much more of a masochist." According to Mr. Gilbert, he really 
preferred to be the person subjected to the spankings more so than to dispense the 
spankings. He professed his "love" for R.L.K. and explained that he felt that their 
relationship was· consensual. He stated that R.L.K. "as a disciplinarian was 
phenomenal." 

He insists that the videotapes were rarely viewed afterward. He referred to himself as a 
"pack rat" and stated that he really maintained the videos so he could use them in his 
defense should anyone ever accuse him of illegal conduct. He added ... "I never really 
thought of it as child molestation." 

He explained that as a child, age five or six, his father perfonned corporal punishment 
as a fonn of discipline. He would lecture him and then spank him when he misbehaved 
but always hugged him afterward. As he grew older, at age fourteen or fifteen, his 
father's anger during the spankings was heightened and he described being "terribly 
afraid". It was during this time that his father stopped consoling him with a hug 
afterward. Mr. Gilbert indicated that a psychologist had suggested to him that the area 
of the brain that is stimulated by fear is adjacent to the area that is stimulated by sex. 
The psychologist further suggested that perhaps, in his case, the barrier between fear 
and his sexual arousal was breached leading to him being sexually aroused by fear and 
pain. 

He stated, "It was completely inappropriate behavior." He maintains that R.L.K. was 
thirteen years of age before he and R.L.K. began their intimate relationship and stated, 
"I take full responsibility." 
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IV. CRIMINAL HISTORY: 
SOURCES: 

1. National Crime Information Center (NCIC) and Washington Crime Information 
Center ( WASCIC). 

2. Washington State Department of Corrections Offender Database. 
3. Superior Court Operations Management Information System (SCOMIS). 
4: · Law Enforcement Support Agency (LESA). 
5. District Court Information System (DISCIS). 

Juvenile Felony: 

Adult Felony: 
Date of Offense: 
Crime: 

County / Cause: 
Date of Sentence: 
Disposition: 

Adult Felony: 
Date of Offense: 

Crime: 

County / Cause: 
Date of Sentence: 
Disposition: 

Adult Felony: 
Date of Offense: 

Crime: 

County / Cause: 
Date of Sentence: 
Dis osition: 

Gilbert has no known juvenile felony convictions. 

Before on or about October 31, 2007 
Sexual Exploitation of a Child in the Production of Child 
Pornography, Counts 1- 21, 23-31, and 33 
(Violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 2251{a) and {e) and 2256) 
United .States District Court/ CR07-5732BHS-001 
10/26/2009 
Guilty, Life with the minimum set at 
15 ears. 

On or about 2005 and within five years of on or about October 
31,2007 
Transportation of a Minor to Engage in Illegal Sexual Activity, 
Counts 34 and 35 
(Violation of 18 U.S.C. §§2423(a) and 2) 
United States District Court/ CR07-5732BHS-001 
10/26/2009 
Guilty, Life with the minimum set at 
10 ears. 

Between on or about October 30, 2007 and on or about 
August 28, 2008 
Obstruction of Justice, Count 36 
(Violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1512(b)(3)) 
United States District Court/ CR07-5732BHS-001 
10/26/2009 
Guil , 20 ears maximum. 
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Adult Felony: 
Date of Offense: 

Crime: 

County I Cause: 
Date of Sentence: 
Dis sition: 

Adult Felony: 
Date of Offense: 

Crime: 
County I Cause: 
Date of Sentence: 
Dis osition: 

Adult Felony: 
Date of Offense: 

Crime: 
County/ Cause: 
Date of Sentence: 
Dis osition: 

Between on or about October 30, 2007 and on or about 
August 28, 2008 
Obstruction of Justice, Count 37 (Violation of 18 U.S.C. § 
1512(b)(1) 

·united States District Court I CR07-5732BHS-001 
10/26/2009 

Count I: Between March 14, 2001 and March 13, 2003; 
Count II: Between March 14, 2001 and October 27, 2007 
Child Molestation in the First Degree, Counts I and 11 
Pierce County Cause I 07-1-05618-3 
Pending - current 
Guil , awaitin Sentencin . 

Counts Ill - XI:. Between March 14, 2001 and October 27, 
2007 
Sexual Exploitation of a Minor, Counts Ill - XI 
Pierce County Cause/ 07-1-05618-3 
Pending - current 
Guilt , awaitin Sentencin . 

Misdemeanor(s): Misdemeanors do not affect the offender score but do reflect the 
offender's view of societal values and should be noted by the court. Mr. Gilbert has no 
documented misdemeanor convictions. 

V. SCORING: 
SERIOUSNESS LEVEL 

Count I X 

Count II X 

Count Ill IX 
Count IV IX 
Count V IX 
Count VI IX 
Count VII IX 
Count VIII IX 
Count IX IX 
Count X IX 
Count XI IX 

OFFENDER SCORE 

9+ 

9+ 

9+ 
9+ 
9+ 
9+ 
9+ 
9+ 
9+ 
9+ 
9+ 

57 

STANDARD RANGE 

Life with a minimum set between 
149 and 198 months . 
Life with a minimum set between 
149 and 198 months 
120 months 
120 months 
120 months 
120 months 
120 months 
120 months 
120 months 
120 months 
120 months 
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VI. COMMUNITY CUSTODY: 
SERIOUSNESS LEVEL I OFFENDER SCORE STANDARD RANGE · . 

Count I X 9+ Life 
Count II X 9+ Life 
Count Ill IX 9+ 36 - 48 months 
Count IV IX 9+ 36 - 48 months 
Count V IX 9+ 36 - 48 months 
Count VI IX 9+ 36 - 48 months 
Count VII IX 9+ 36 - 48 months 
Count VIII IX 9+ 36 - 48 months 
Count IX IX 9+ 36 - 48 months 
CountX IX 9+ 36 - 48 months 
Count XI IX 9+ 36 - 48 months 

VU. RISK I NEEDS ASSESSMENT: 
A needs assessment interview was·completed with the offender. The following area(s) 
and strengths have implications for potential risk, supervision, and interventions. 
Unless otherwise noted, the following information was provided by the offender and has 
not been verified. 

Criminal History: 
According to the federal Pre-Sentence Report dated October 15, 2009, on September 
17, 2007, a Grand Jury for the Western District of Washington returned a 37 Count 
Indictment against Weldon Marc Gilbert. Counts 1 - 33 charged Mr. Gilbert with Sexual 
Exploitation of a Child in the Production of Child Pornography. Counts 34 and 35 
charged Mr. Gilbert with Transportation of a Minor to Engage in Illegal Sexual Activity. 
Count 36 and 37 charged Mr. Gilbert with Obstruction of Justice. 

On April 23, 2009, Mr. Gilbert pied guilty to Counts I - 21 , 23 - 31, and 33 - 37 of those 
originally charged. According to the terms of the Plea Agreement, the parties 
acknowledge and agree that the appropriate Sentence to be imposed by the Court is a 
Sentence between 228 and 300 months confinement and a term of Life on Supervised 
Release. No other agreement had been made with regard to the imposition of the 
Sentence in that matter, and the parties indicated they understood that the Court 
retained full discretion to impose a Sentence within the agree range. Per the Pre­
Sentence Report, US Probation Officer Daniel Acker recommended confinement for a 
total of 300 months and Life on Supervised Release. 

Mr. Gilbert is currently being detained on the current charges ii:t the Pierce County Jail. 
He is housed in protective custody housing and Indicated he has not been subjected to 
disciplinary action. 
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ADULT FELONY OFFENSES: 
Date of Offense: Count I: Between March 14, 2001 and March 13, 2003: Count II -
XI: Between March 14, 2001 and October 27, 2007: Child Molestation in the First 
Degree, Count 1/11; Sexual Exploitation of a Minor, Counts Ill - XI (Pierce County 
Cause 07-1-05618-3), Date of Sentence: Pending: DISPOSITION: Guilty; awaiting 
Sentencing. 

(See Page 1; Section I Official Version of Offense) 

Community Corrections Officer Dustin Richey and I met with Mr. Gilbert in the Pierce 
County Jail and he agreed the background infonnation provided in the federal Pre• 
Sentence Report was accurately reported. The following information is a compilation of 
information gathered by file material and the interview. 

Education I Employment: 
Mr. Gilbert reported he graduated from Manson High School in Manson, Washington in 
1978, as Valedictorian and President of the Honor Society. He attended Washington 
State University for less than three years while working for Evergreen Air at the Pullman 
Moscow Airport. He found work at the airport more fulfilling and dropped out of college. 

Mr. Gilbert was originally hired by Evergreen Air as a support person performing menial 
tasks on the tarmac. During this same time he pursued lessons in flying and obtained 
his flying license in early 1980. Shortly after, Evergreen Air was purchased by Palouse 
Aviation and despite the managerial changes, he remained on and was promoted to 
Assistant Manager and Chief Pilot. 

File material indicates he worked for a small international airline company; however, no 
specifi~ information was provided/verified. 

In June 1982, Mr. Gilbert went to work for Evergreen Helicopters in McMinnville, Oregon 
as a co-pilot on a corporate leer jet. He later transferred to their Airfine Division, 
Evergreen International Airtines, as a co-pilot. Within one year he was promoted to 
Captain and was one 9f the nation's youngest captains at the age of 24. 

Evergreen International Airfines contracted for United Parcel Service (UPS) and for this 
reason, Mr. Gilbert w~s given the opportunity to occasionally fly UPS jets. In 1988, UPS · 
took over its airline fleet and Mr. Gilbert was subsequently hired by UPS as their · 
youngest captain. · 

Between August 1988 and November 2007, at the time of Mr. Gilbert's arrest, he was 
employed by UPS in Seattle, Washington making approximately $235,000.00 per year. 
During this same time period, Mr. Gilbert began investing in small business ventures to 
include being the owner and operator of Spencer Aircraft, and Aerocenter. In 2007, Mr. 
Gilbert purchased a coffee shop, Bellino Coffee in Seattle, Washington for R.L.K., and 
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entered into a business partnership with R.L.K. According to Mr. Gilbert, Bellino Coffee 
went under and he lost almost $100,000.00 in investment capital. While he was did not 
provide specific information, he indicated he still has partnership in one or more 
businesses and will continue to reap revenue from the businesses. 

Financial: 
As indicated above, Mr. Gilbert lived a lavish lifestyle prior to his arrest. Due to the 
current offense, he has lost his home and property in Lake Tapps, his personal vehicle, 
his helicopter, his airplane, and his boat in a seizure. Mr. Gilbert lost a considerable 
amount of money on the business venture he entered with his victim, R.L.K., but 
indicates he will manage financially on the revenue with his other businesses. 

Family/ Marital: 
Mr. Gilbert was born Weldon Cecil Gilbert and Sybil Ann Decker on August 26, 1960, in 

. California. His father works in the construction industry and his mother is retired 
teacher. He has two siblings; a brother, Jeffrey Gilbert (age 44), and a sister, Julie 
Montiel (age 38). His brother is an attorney and his sister works in management in the 
hotel industry. 

Mr. Gilbert and his siblings were raised with strong work ethics. Their household was 
void of abuse and although Mr. Gilbert described his father's use of corporal 
punishment as perhaps a trigger for his current sexually deviant behavior, he denies 
ever being sexually abused himself. 

Mr. Gilbert has never been married and has no children. He has always been attracted 
to young males and more so to heterosexual males, Which has always made his sexual 
relationship covert. 

Accommodation: 
Mr. Gilbert \Y8S residing in Lake Tapps; however, as noted above, that residence has 
been seized due to the current offense. He expressed some concern about returning to 
Pierce County and some desire to possibly transfer his Supervised Release to another 
State. 

Mr. Gilbert indicated that he was told he would be supervised by the Federal Probation 
Office and that the State of Washington would Mdefer" supervision to the federal 
g·overnment. It should be noted that I advised Mr. Gilbert that is not the case and he 
would still be supervised by both the State of Washington and US Probation, as they 
are separate jurisdictions. This being the case, I stressed the importance that he 
comply with Conditions of Supervision identified by the Pierce County Superior Court 
and if he wished to pursue an Interstate Transfer tt)en he must first apply through the 
Interstate Compact process, which will be done by the Washington State Department of 
Corrections. 
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Leisure/ Recreation: 
Mr. Gilbert has always enjoyed the company of young boys and provided an 
environment that bred a desire by the boys to be around him. Mr. Gilbert admitted that 
he has never really grown up and has a great relationship with young boys because he 
is easy to talk to and can relate to young boys. He enjoys the same type of 
entertainment as the company he keeps. 

Corn pan ions: 
Mr. Gilbert's obsession with corporal punishment has led him to develop relationships 
with men with the same obsession; i.e., Clifton Meador and Jack Pappegay. 

Alcohol/ Drug Use: 
Mr. Gilbert tried an alcoholic beverage for the first time at the age of fifteen. He refers to 

· himself as a "social drinker" and last drank the night of his arrest. He denies any illicit 
drug use. 

Emotional / Personal: 
Mr. Gilbert denies any familial history or personal history of mental illness. He denies 
any current suicidal ideations or prior suicidal thoughts or attempts. · 

Attitude / Orientation: 
Mr. Gilbert accepted responsibility for his behaviors without hesitation. During this 
interview he spoke freely and passionately of his love for young boys and often 
described himself identifying with many of his victims; whether those feeli_ngs were fact 
or fiction. 

Mr. Gilbert is currently being prosecuted on the "fifth generation", which included as 
many as 40 victims but the true extent of Mr. Gilbert's offending is really unknown. Mr. 
Gilbert poses a threat to any male minor he has contact with. 

· VIII. CONCLUSIONS: 
A Pre-Sentence interview was completed and factors which require attention to reduce 
the risk to re-offend include sexual deviancy. Recommended conditions on Appendix H 
will enable the Department of Corrections to effectively monitor and supervise Mr. 
Gilbert in the community. Intervention applied to these areas would assist in reducing 
potential risk to community safety. Also, the Department of Corrections, as a matter'of 
policy, supervises sex offenders and violent offenders who are placed on supervision, at 
an elevated level. 

IX. SENTENCE OPTIONS: 
~ Confinement within the Standard Range Sentence 
D Exceptional Sentence 
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X. RECOM~ENDATIONS: 
Confinement within the Standard Range Sentence 
The standard range for Child Molestation in the First Degree with an offender score of 
nine plus would be Life with the minimum set between 149 and 198 months. The 
lndetenninate Sentence Review Board will determine his actual release date. While 
incarcerated he could be available for treatment through the Department's Twin Rivers 
Correctional Center's treatment facility. 

Following incarceration he will be required to spend Life on Community Custody under 
the supervision of the Department of Corrections and the authority of the Indeterminate 

· Sentence Review Board for any period of time the person is relec;tsed from total 
confinement before the expiration of the maximum sentence on Counts I and II; Counts 
Ill - XI are subjected to a range of 36 to 48 months. While on Community Custody this 
Department will supervise Mr. Gilbert for any conditions imposed by the Court and for 
the collection of his Qourt-ordered legal financial obligations. Following his release, he 
would continue to be monitored for the full period of his Community Custody by qualified 
sexual deviancy counselors. 

It is my understanding the Deputy Prosecutor in this matter intends to recommend a 
Determinate Sentence of 198 months confinement on Counts I and II and 120 months 
confinement on Counts Ill - xno run concurrent to one another and to US District Court 
case CR07-5732BHS-001, Community Custody for 36-48 months, No Contact Order 
with named victims, No Contact Order with minors without supervision, all Conditions as 
identified in Appendix H, and No Restitution. 

On December 2, 2009, I spoke to Deputy Prosecutor Pat Hammond regarding the 
Sentence recommendations. It was Mr. Hammond's position that the Sentencing option 
would be a Determinate Sentence. Based on Information available to this Department, 
it is our opinion that the Sentencing Guideline imposed is based on the most recent date 
of offense(s); therefore, based on the last date listed in Count I, March 13, 2003; and in 
Count 11, October 27, 2007, these Sentences fall under the Indeterminate Sentence 
Review Board. 

Ultimately, the Department would like to support the recommendation of the Plea 
Agreement and concur with the State's recommendations with the exception the 
Department will recommend a No Contact Order with a// minors. If the Court 
determines that the Department is misinterpreting these Sentencing guidelines, please 
disregard the Standard Range listed. If the Court detennines that the dates listed would 
in fact constitute an Indeterminate Sentence, then we concur with any adjustments to 
the dates of offenses listed in order to correct this. 
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Sentence Type/ Option: Standard Range 
Confinement: 
Count 1/11: 198 months; 
Count 111 - XI: 120 months. 
Community Custody: 
Counts 1/11: 36 months; 
Count Ill - XI: 36 months 
Conditions of Supervision: (See attached Appendix H) 

XI. MONETARY OBLIGATIONS: 

·6892 121'71'2.889 ·8-fl6"6-5 

Restitution: TBD 
Victim Penalty: $500.00 

Drug Fund: $0.00 

Court Costs: $200.00 Other: $100.00 
Attorney Fees: $0.00 

Ki b 'rly Carrillo Date 
Community Corrections Officer Ill 
Pierce County PSI/Intake Unit 
755 Tacoma Ave S 
Tacoma, WA 98402 

"253-207-4749 

Fine: $0.00 

Approved By: 

ine ipworth 
ommunity Corrections Supervisor 

Pierce County PSI/Intake Unit 
755 Tacoma Ave S 
Tacoma, WA 98402 
253-207-4 738 

Distribution: ORIGINAL - Court COPY • Pat Hammond, Prosecuting Attorney; John Browne, Defense 
Attorney, File, wee I RC (Prison) 
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IN TliE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
IN AND FOR TliE COUNTY OF PIERCE 

STATEOFWASHINGTON ] 
1 

Plaintiff ] 
V. ] 

Weldon Marc Gilbert 

DOC No. 334195 

Defendant ] 
1 
1 

Cause No.: 07-1--05618-3 

JUDGEMENT AND SENTENCE (FELONY) 
APPENDIXH 

COMMUNITY PLACEMENT/CUSTODY 

The court having found the defendant guilty of offense(s) qualifying for Community Custody, it . 
is further ordered as set forth below. 

COMMUNITY PLACEMENT/CUSTODY: Defendant additionally is sentenced on convictions 
herein, for the offenses under RCW 9.94A. 712 oommitted on or after September 1, 2001 to 
include up to life community custody; for each sex offense and serious violent offense 
oommitted on or after June 6, 1996 to Community Placement/Custody for three years or up to 
the period of earned eariy release awarded pursuant to RCW 9.94A 150 (1) and (2) whichever 
is longer; and on oonviction herein for an offense categorized as a sex offense or serious 

. violent offense oommitted on or after July 1, 1990, but before June 6, 1996, to oommunity 
placement for two years or up to the period of earned release awarded pursuant to RCW 
9.94A.150 (1) and (2) wh_ichever is longer; and on co,:iviction herein for an offense categorized 
as a sex offense or a serious violent offense committed after July 1, 1988, but before July 1, 
1990, assault in the second degree, any crime against a person where it is detem,ined in 
accordance with RCW 9.94A.125 that the defendant or an acoomplice was armed with a 
deadly weapon at the time of oommission, or any felony under chapter 69.50 or 69.52 RCW, 
committed on or after July 1, 1988, to a one-year term of community placement 
Community Placement/Custody is to begin either upon completion of the term of oonfinement 
or at such time as the defendant is transferred to Community Custody in lieu of early release. 

DOC 09-131 (F,tp Rc:v. 04/0S/2001) OCO 
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(a) MANDATORY CONDITIONS: Defendant shall comply with the following conditions 
during the term of community placement/custody: 

( 1) Report to and be available for contact with the assigned Community Corrections Officer as 
directed; 

(2) Work at a Department of Corrections' approved education, employment, and/or 
community service site; 

(3) Do not consume alcohol or controlled substances except pursuant to lawfully issued 
prescriptions; 

(4) Do not unlawfully possess controlled substances; 
(5) Pay supervision fees as detem,ined by the Department of Corrections; 
(6) Receive prior approval for living arrangements and residence location; 
(7) Defendant shall not own, use, or possess a firearm or ammunition when sentenced to 

community service, community supervision, or both (RCW 9.94A, 120 (13)); 
(8) Notify Community Corrections Officer of any change in address or employment; and 
(9) Remain within geographic boundary, as set fourth in writing by the Community 

Corrections Officer. 

WAIVER: The following above-listed mandatory conditions are waived by the Court: None 

(b) OTHER CONDITIONS: Defendant shall comply with the following other conditions during 
the term of community placement I custody: 

10. Reside at a residence and under IMng arrangements approved of in advance by your 
Community Corrections Officer. You shall not change your residence without first 
obtaining the authorization of you Community Corrections Officer. 

11. Obtain a Psychosexual Evaluation and comply with any recommended treatment by a 
certified Sexual Deviancy Counselor. You are to sign all necessary releases to insure 
your Community Corrections Officer will be able to monitor your progress in treabnent. 

12. You shall not change Sexual Deviancy Treabnent Providers without prior approval 
from your Community Corrections Officer. 

13. Have no contact with the victims to include but not limited to in-person, written, or third• 
party. 

14. Do not possess or peruse pornographic materials. Your Community Corrections 
Officer will consult with the identified Sexual Deviancy Treatment Provider to define 
pornographic material. 

15. Hold no position of authority or trust involving children under the age of 18. 
16. Do not initiate or prolong physical contact with children under the age of 18 for any 

reason. 
17. Inform your Community Corrections Officer of any romantic relationships to verify 

there are no victim-age children involved. 
18. Submit to polygraph and/or plethysmograph testing as deemed appropriate upon 

DOC O'l-131 (F&P Rev. 04/0.S/2001) OCO 
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direction of your Community Corrections Officer and/or therapist at your expense. 
19. Register as a Sex Offender in your county of residence. 
20. Avoid places where children congregate. (Fast-food outlets, libraries, theaters, 

shopping malls, play grounds and parks.) 
21. Submit to DNA/HIV testing. . 
22. Follow all conditions imposed by your Sexual Deviancy Treatment Provider. 
23. Obey all laws. 
24. You shall not have access to the Internet. 
25. No contact with any minors without prior approval of the DOC/CCO and Sexual 

· Deviancy Treatment Provider. 
26. Obtain a Mental Health Evaluation by a state-certified Mental Health Provider and 

comply with recommended follow-up treatment and medication. 

DATE 
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

vs. 

GILBERT, WELDON MARC 

Cause Number: 07-1-05618-3 
MEMORANDUM OF 
JOURNAL ENTRY 

Page: 2 of 2 
Judge: SUSAN K. SERKO 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDING 
Judicial Assistant/Clerk: Candice Augustin Court Reporter:Lanre Adebayo 
Start Date/Time: 12/11/09 1:46 PM 

December 11, 2009 01 :45 PM This matter comes on for sentencing. Present are: Patrick 

Hammond for the State and John Henry Browne with and on behalf of the Defendant who is 

in custody. Mr. Hammond addresses the Court regarding an Amended Information. Court's 

comments and request for briefing regarding determinate versus indeterminate sentencing. 

Counsel address the Court. Sentencing is set over to January 12, 2010 at 3:00 p.m. before 

Judge Serko. 

End DatefTlme: 12/11/09 2:02 PM 

JUDGE SUSAN K. SERKO Year 2009 
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE ST A TE OF WASHINGTON 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PIERCE 

STATE OF WASHINGTON, 

Plaintiff, 

VS. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

Defendant. 

No. 07-1-05618-3 

DEFENDANT'S SUPPLEMENT AL 
BRIEFING REGARDING 
DETERMINATE SENTENCING AND 
THE REMEDIEife&&nf ILE D 
WITHDRAW AL CLERK'S OFFICE 

A.If, 

P/cWE COUNTY, WASH HG N 
BY N STOCK, Coun erfi 

-----..::DEPUN 
COMES NOW the defendant, Marc Gilbert, by and through his attorneys, John 

Henry Browne and Emma C. Scanlan, and submits this supplemental briefing requesting 

that the Court impose the agreed upon determinate sentence of 198 months. 

Should the Court refuse to accept the new Amended Information and detennine 

that the indeterminate sentencing provisions apply, Mr. Gilbert will invoke his right to 

elect to move either for withdrawal of his plea or specific performance of the terms of the 

bargain as based upon the mutual mistake of law at the heart of the agreement. The state 

will then dismiss the present charges and file a new charging document with corrected 

dates- to which Mr. Gilbert will plead guilty as charged. 
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1 This procedure will thus ensure that Mr. Gilbert receives the determinate sentence 

2 the parties agreed to during the extensive plea negotiations on both the state and federal 

3 levels in this case. 
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I. INTRODUCTION 

On November 20, 2009, before this Court, Mr. Gilbert pled guilty to Counts I and 

II, child molestation in the first degree, in violation of RCW 9A.44.083, and Counts lll 

through XI, sexual exploitation of a minor, in violation of RCW 9.68A.040(l)(b), of the 

Amended Information. 

The underlying offense conduct for Counts I and II occurred on March 14, 2001, 

which predated the promulgation of the indeterminate provisions of RCW 9.94A.712. 

As sexual exploitation of a minor is not subject to RCW 9.94A.712, Counts III 

through XI are not at issue. 

The Court infonned Mr. Gilbert during the colloquy that, in accordance with the 

plea agreement, he faced a standard range sentence of I 49 to 198 months, not 149 months 

to life. In the plea agreement, the state recommends that the Court impose a detenninate 

sentence of 198 months on Counts I and II, to run concurrent with a determinate sentence 

of 120 months on Counts lll through XI, all of which is to run concurrently with Mr. 

Gilbert's 300 month federal sentence. The most crucial component of the agreement, in 

fact, was the determinate nature of the agreed upon sentence. 

On December 11, 2009, Mr. Gilbert came before this Court for sentencing. 

During the ensuing proceedings, the state submitted a new Amended lnforrnation 

{"Amended Information II"), listing March 14, 2001 as the sole charging date for all 

counts. As this date precedes enactment of RCW 9.94A.712, which mandates 
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indeterminate sentencing for certain enumerated offenses- including child molestation in 

the first degree- both the state and the defense agreed that the determinate sentencing 

provisions in place in March of 2001 applied to this case and requested a determinate 

sentence of 198 months. 

The Court then stated its position that it would take under advisement the issue of 

the new Amended Information submitted to the Court on December 11, 2009 at 

sentencing. In addition, the Court requested additional briefing regarding the 

applicability of determinate sentencing in this case. 

Should the Court reject Amended Information II, Mr. Gilbert will move, with the 

agreement of the state, to withdraw his guilty plea or request specific perfonnance of the 

terms of the pJea bargain. The state wiJJ then dismiss the present charges and file an 

entirely new Information listing the dates and charges in Amended lnfonnation II. Mr. 

Gilbert will then plead guilty as charged and proceed to sentencing with the top of the 

standard range at 198 months. 

Rather than expend more resources to ensure that Mr. Gilbert receives the 

determinate sentence which the parties agree is appropriate in this case, the defense- in 

accord with the state- respectfully requests that the Court impose the determinate 198 

month sentence which is: (1) appropriate with respect to the charging dates submitted in 

both Amended Informations I and II; and (2) the result of countless hours of negotiations 

over a two year time period. 

II. A DETERMINATE SENTENCE IS APPROPRIATE IN THIS CASE 

Given the Court's ratification of the explicit agreement between the parties that 

Mr. Gilbert's sentence is to be between 149- 198 months, the Court should impose the 
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agreed upon recommendation of a 198 month determinate sentence to run concurrently 

with Mr. Gilbert's 300 month federal sentence. 

First, as the charging periods for the counts Jisted in Amended lnfonnation I, filed 

on November 20, 2009, begin on March 14, 2001, RCW 9.94A.712 was not yet in effect 

so that any sentence must be determinate. 

Next, in Amended Information II, submitted by the state on December 11, 2009, 

the offense date for each count is March 14, 200 I. As this date predates the enactment of 

RCW 9.94A.712, any sentence imposed must therefore be determinate. 

Finally, "{T}he integrity of the plea bargaining process requires that once the 

court has accepted the plea. it cannot ignore the terms of the bargain. unless the 

defendant ... chooses to withdraw the plea." State v. Bisson,156 Wn.2d 507, 520, 130 

P.3d 820 (2006) (adding emphasis) (quoting State v. Miller, 110 Wn.2d 528, 536, 756 

P .2d 122 ( 1988)). 

In Miller, for example, before entering his guilty plea, the defendant was 

misinformed by his attorney- who, in tum, was misinformed by the prosecutor- that the 

possibility of a sentence less than 20 years existed on his first degree murder conviction. 

110 Wn.2d at 529. Defendant thus entered into a plea deal wherein he could argue for an 

exceptional sentence less than 20 years while the state would recommend a term of 

confinement of 20 years, the bottom of the standard range. Id. 

Before sentencing, defendant was correctly informed about the 20 year mandatory 

minimum sentence for murder in the first degree. He then moved to withdraw his plea, 

but the trial court denied the motion. Id. at 529-30. 
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The appellate court held that defendant was indeed entitled to withdraw his plea, 

State v. Miller, 48 Wn.App. 625, 742 P.2d 723 (1987), and the State Supreme Court 

granted the state's petition for review. 110 Wn.2d at 530. 

The Miller noted that "the integrity of the plea bargaining process requires that 

defendants be entitled to rely on plea bargains as soon as the court has accepted the plea." 

Id. at 536 (citing State v. Tourtellote, 88 Wn.2d 579, 585, 564 P.2d 799 (1977)). A trial 

court must therefore detennine the validity of a plea prior to accepting the plea and at that 

point, "the defendant is entitled to rely on the benefit of the bargain." Id. 

The Court thus pennitted defendant to withdraw his plea. Id. at 537. 

As the Miller Court concluded: 

[WJhere the terms of a plea agreement conflict with the Jaw or the 
defendant was not infonned of the sentencing consequences of the 
plea, the defendant must be given the initial choice of a remedy to 
specifically enforce the agreement or withdraw the plea. The 
prosecutor bears the burden of demonstrating that the defendant's 
choice of remedy is unjust. 

Id. at 536. 

The factually analogous In re Murillo, 134 Wn.App. 521, 142 P.3d 6 I 5 (2006), 

provides additional guidance. In Murillo, defendant was sentenced to a determinate term 

of 59.5 months pursuant to his plea of guilty to child molestation in the first degree, 

which is one of the crimes enumerated in RCW 9.94A.712 as requiring an indetenninate 

sentence. Id. at 524-26. During the sentencing hearing, the parties also discussed 

·community custody, which was the first time that the defendant realized he could be 

subject to supervision for the remainder of his life. Id. at 526. 
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The Department of Corrections noticed the error and requested that the defendant 

be re-sentenced. Id. at 529. The court then amended the judgment and sentence to reflect 

an indeterminate sentencing range of 59.5 months to life. Id. 

The Murillo Court first repeated the axiom that a guilty plea "entered on a plea 

bargain that is based upon misinformation about sentencing consequences is not 

knowingly made." Id. at 533 (quoting In re Hoisington, 99 Wn.App. 423, 428, 993 P.2d 

296 (2000) (citing Miller, supra at 531) (citing Tourtellotte, supra at 585)). At that point, 

the sentencing court may pennit the defendant to either withdraw his plea or move for 

specific performance. Id. And, "[t]he fact that the tenns of a plea agreement are contrary 

to the explicit terms of a sentencing statute does not preclude enforcement of the 

agreement, "where fundamental principles of due process so dictate." Id. ( quoting Miller, 

supra at 532 (citing State v. Cosner, 85 Wn.2d 45, 530 P.2d 317 (1975)). These above 

principles "operate to bind the court, as well, once a plea agreement has been validly 

accepted." Id. (quoting State v. Schaupp. 111 Wn.2d 34, 38, 757 P.2d 970 (1988)). 

Under Miller and Murillo, then, a trial court has the authority to order a 

determinate sentence even where RCW 9.94A.712 facially applies; and, a defendant has 

the right to elect between withdrawal of the plea and specific performance where there is 

a conflict in law or where the defendant is improperly informed of the direct sentencing 

consequences of a plea agreement. 

Ill. IF THE COURT SEEKS TO IMPOSE AN JNDETERMINA TE 
SENTENCE, MR. GILBERT WILL ELECT TO WITHDRAW HIS 
PLEA OR MOVE FOR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 

If the Court decides that Mr. Gilbert's sentence is indeterminate, it will be clear 

that Mr. Gilbert did not understand- and was in fact misinformed by his own counsel, the 
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prosecution, and the plea colloquy conducted by this Court. Mr. Gilbert thus has the right 

to elect either withdrawal of his plea or specific performance of the terms of the bargain. 

A defendant's guilty plea must be "knowing, voluntary, and intelligent." Murillo, 

supra at 530 (citing Boykin v. Alabama, 395 U.S. 238, 242, 89 S.Ct. 1709, 23 L.Ed.2d 

274 (1969); In re Isadore, 151 Wn.2d 294, 297, 88 P.3d 390 (2004)). For a plea to be 

voluntary and thus valid, the defendant "must understand the sentencing consequences" 

of his plea. Bisson, supra at 517. 

These constitutional requirements are implemented by court rule in the •State of 

Washington: "The court shall not accept a plea of guilty, without first determining that it 

is made voluntarily, competently and with an understanding of the nature of the charge 

and the consequences of the plea." Murillo, supra at 530 (quoting CrR 4.3(d)). 

A guilty plea is thus involuntary if the plea is entered "without knowledge of the 

direct sentencing consequences," which constitutes a "manifest injustice" requiring the 

court to permit a defendant to withdraw the plea. Id. (citing CrR 4.2(t); Isadore, 15 I 

Wn.2d at 298; State v. Ross, 129 Wn.2d 279,284, 916 P.2d 405 (1996); State v. Walsh, 

143 Wn.2d 1, 8, 17 P.3d 591 (2001)); see also State v. Turley. 149 Wn.2d 395, 398-99, 

69 P.3d 338 (2003) (where a defendant demonstrates that a guilty plea is involuntary­

such as where defendant is not informed of the direct sentencing consequences of the 

plea- this "independently establishes manifest injustice" so that the trial court must permit 

defendant to withdraw his plea). 

As stated above, under such circumstances where defendant has entered an 

involuntary plea, defendant has the right to elect either withdrawal of the guilty plea or 
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specific performance of the terms of the bargain. See,~. Bisson, supra at 517; Turley, 

supra at 399; Murillo, supra at 533. 

The trial court, however, is "not necessarily bound" by the defendant's remedy of 

choice. Bisson, supra at 517. Once defendant has opted for one of the available 

remedies, the state bears the burden of demonstrating that defendant's choice is unjust, 

which requires an affirmative showing "that compelling reasons exist not to allow the 

defendant's choice." Id. at 517-18. 

Here, the state is in accord with the defense that should the Court seek to impose 

an indeterminate sentence, the equities dictate that Mr. Gilbert will either entirely 

withdraw his pJea or, preferably, compel specific performance of the terms of the bargain. 

A. Withdrawal 

Under any and all controlling authority, because Mr. Gilbert was not properly 

informed of the direct sentencing consequences of his guilty plea, he has the right to 

withdraw from the bargain. See, s.,_g,_, Bisson, supra at 517; Turley, supra at 399; Murillo, 

supra at 533. 

As stated by the Murillo Court: 

CrR 4.2(d) imposes a duty on the court to determine that the defendant is 
entering a plea with a correct understanding of the consequences of his 
plea. That rule implements important constitutionally mandated principles. 
See Boykin, 395 U.S. at 242, 89 S.Ct. 1709. That duty was not met here. 
The court apparently misunderstood the sentencing consequences. And 
both the judge's advice to Mr. Murillo and the written plea agreement 
reflect this misunderstanding. We therefore grant Mr. Murillo's personal 
restraint petition and order the superior court to allow him to withdraw his 
guilty plea. See Hunter v. State, 1992 OK CR I, 825 P .2d 1353, 1355. 

Murillo, 134 Wn.App. at 531. 
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The irony is that if this occurs, pursuant to an agreement between the parties, the 

state will simply refile a new Infonnation with charging dates preceding enactment of 

RCW 9.94A.712. Mr. Gilbert will then plead guilty as charged and proceed to sentencing 

with the state recommending the top of the standard range as 198 months determinate. 

As this procedure produces the identical result desired by the parties, it seems 

more expeditious that the Court accept the plea agreement as is and impose the 

determinate sentence that the parties toiled over during a two year period. This will save 

defense, state, and even judicial resources and also enable Mr. Gilbert to formally begin 

what will be a very long period of incarceration. 

B. Specific Performance 

Because both the state and the defense understood that Mr. Gilbert's sentence 

would be a determinate sentence within the standard range, Mr. Gilbert is entitled to 

specific performance ifhe so elects. 

In Murillo, sup~ for example, the court held that the defendant would be entitled 

to specific perfonnance of the determinate sentencing condition of his plea agreement if 

that was the mutual understanding of the parties. 

As stated above, ~e issue in Murillo was whether a defendant who- like Mr. 

Gilbert- pleaded guilty to child molestation in the first degree could move for specific 

performance of the determinate sentence agreed to by the parties in the plea bargain. 

When the trial court accepted the plea agreement, it- like this Court- did not mention that 

it must impose a maximum sentence of life imprisonment; nor did it advise that that Mr. 

Gilbert was subject to a lifetime of community custody if he is released prior to the 

maximum life sentence. Id. at 526. 
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At sentencing, the state recommended a sentence in the middle of the standard 

range. Defendant's attorney responded that the state had agreed to recommend the low 

end of the standard range, but the written statement on plea of guilty stated that the state 

reserved its recommendation as to defendant's time of confinement. The court then 

imposed a mid-range sentence. Id. 

The parties then discussed community custody, which was the first time RCW 

9.94A.712 was mentioned. But• like here- the preprinted community custody paragraphs 

were left blank. Id. at 527. 

ln MurilJo, therefore- as here- because neither the defense nor the state 

contemplated the applicability of RCW 9.94A.712 during sentencing, this is a mutual 

misunderstanding which renders the plea invalid. 134 Wn.App. at 532. 

With respect to specific perfonnance, as both the state and the defense labored 

under the same misunderstanding that defendant would be sentenced to a determinate 

sentence within the standard range, this suggested that "the court and the lawyers were at 

least mistaken about the correct sentence." Id. at 533. This is important because specific 

performance is unavailable where the plea agreement is unambiguous. Id. 

The Murill9 Court then found that "the basis of the plea agreement here was the 

understanding of both the State and the defense that [Defendant's} determinate sentence 

would be in the standard range," for "there is no inconsistency or ambiguity in the 

parties' actual agreement of a standard range sentence." Id. at 535. 

The Court thus concluded: "[Defendant] is entitled to specific perfonnance of a 

plea agreement if the parties understood his correct sentence would be in the standard 

range." Id. 
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Here, therefore, as in Murillo: ( J) the pJea agreement is unequivocal: the state will 

recommend that Mr. Gilbert receive a detenninate sentence of 198 months to run 

concurrent with his 300 month federal sentence; (2) there was no discussion during the 

plea colloquy that Mr. Gilbert would be subject to an indetenninate sentence or a lifetime 

of state community custody; and finally (3) the explicit understanding of the parties is 

that Mr. Gilbert will receive a determinate sentence within the standard range . 

It thus follows that if Mr. Gilbert elects specific performance of the precise tenns 

of the plea agreement, he is entitled to such remedy. Also note that should Mr. Gilbert 

elect specific performance, given that the Court has already accepted the plea, the Court 

is similarly bound by the agreement. Id. at 533 (guoting Schaupp, 111 Wn.2d at 38). 

IV. CONCLUSION 

As Mr. Gilbert and the state are parties to an unambiguous plea agreement in 

which the state will recommend a determinate sentence of 198 months to run 

concurrently with Mr. Gilbert's 300 month federal sentence, should the Court refuse to 

accept Amended Information II, Mr. Gilbert is entitled to elect between withdrawal of his 

guilty plea or specific performance of the precise terms of the bargain 

DATED this 15th day of December, 2009. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

THE LAW OFFIC~ROWN1;:.s. 

~John Henry Browne, WSBA #4677 
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

vs. 

GILBERT, WELDON MARC 

Cause Number: 07-1-05618-3 
MEMORANDUM OF 
JOURNAL ENTRY 

Page: 2 of 2 
Judge: SUSAN K. SERKO 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDING 
Judicial Assistant/Clerk: PAMELA MAYHEW Court Reporter:KYLE STEADMAN 
Start DatefTlme: 01/12/10 3:12 PM 

January 12, 2010 03:12 PM Court convenes for sentencing. DPA Pat Hammond, Atty John 

Browne, Atty Emma Scanlan for the defense, defendant present in custody. Colloquy re: 

defendant could withdraw his guilty plea. Assistant Federal Prosecutor, Roger Rogoff 

present. 03:29 PM Recess. 03:46 PM Court recovenes. Atty Browne indicates that the 

defendant will withdraw his guilty plea, DPA files as an exhibit an Amended Information for 

the record. Court grants motion to withdraw guilty plea is granted. The November 

Amended Information is withdrawn. November 8, 2007, not guilty was taken.on the original 

charge. Colloquy with the defendant about withdrawing his guilty plea. Case will now be set 

for trial on 1/28/2010 in CO2 at 11 AM, Court signs Order Establishing Conditions of 

Release. 04:12 PM Recess. 

Entt Date/Time: 01/12/10 4:12 PM 

JUDGE SUSANK. SERKO Year 2010 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PIERCE COUN 

ST ATE OF WASHINGTON, 

vs. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

DOB: 8/26/1960 
PCN#: 

Plaintiff, CAUSE NO. 07-1-05618-3 

AMENDED INFORMATION 

Defendant. 
SEX: MALE 
SID#:24227529 

COUNTI 

RACE: WHITE 
DOL#: UNKNOWN 

,. 

I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the authority 

of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF A CHILD 

IN THE SECOND DEGREE, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.L.K. (DOB: 03/14/89), engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K. (DOB: 3/14/89), 

who is at least 12 years old but less than I 4 years old and not married to the defendant and not in a state 

registered domestic partnership with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.076, and against the peace 

and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT II 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based .on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

AMENDED INFORMATION-1 Office of the Prosecuting Al!omey 
930 Tacoma Avenue South, Room 946 

Tacoma, WA 98402-2171 
Main Office (253) 798-7400 
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That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 200 I and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least I 2 years old but 

less than 14 years old and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership 

with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.076, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washjngton. 

COUNT Ill 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting partS of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 12 years old but 

less than 14 years old and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership 

with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.076, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNT IV 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 14 years old but 

less than I 6 years old and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership 

with the defendant, contnuy to RCW 9A.44.079, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Wast\ington. 

COUNTY 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

AMENDED INFORMATION- 2 OfficcofthcProsccutingAnomcy 
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A CHILD IN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 14 years old but 

less than I 6 years old and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership 

with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.079, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNT VI 

And I, MAR~ LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of "".'ashington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 14 years old but 

less than 16 years old and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership 

with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.079, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNTVII 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, on or about the 27th day of 

October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 36 months older than 

E.L.K. (DOB: 11/4/94), have sexual contact with E.L.K. (DOB: 11/4/94), who is at least 12 years old but 

less than 14 years old, and not married to the defen~t and not in a state registered domestic partnership 
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with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNTVlll 

And I, MARK UNDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD • 

MOLESTATION IN THE FIRST DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 6th 

day of April, 2005 and the 5th day of April, 2006, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 36 

inonths oJder than C.D.F. (DOB: 4/6195), have sexual contact with C.D.F. (DOB: 4/6/95), who is Jess 

than 12 years old and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with 

the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.083, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT IX 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN TIIE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to tinie, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 6th 

day of April, 2006 and the 1st day of October, 2006, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 36 

months older than C.D.F., have sexual contact with C.D.F., who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 

years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNTX 

And l, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

13th day of March, 2007 and the 30th day of September, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at 

AMENDED INFORMATION- 4 Office of the: Prosecuting Attanicy 

85 930 Tacoma Avenue South, ROOll'I 946 
Tacoma, WA 98402-2171 

Main Office (253) 798-7400 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

JI 

12 

13 

J4 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

·801"3 3/"l"'t'./20Ut 2 818.7 
07-1--05618-3 

least 48 months older than V .Z. (DOB: I 0/ I /91 ), have sexual contact with V .Z. (DOB: I 0/1/91 ), who is at 

least 14 years old but less than 16 years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered 

domestic partnership with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.089, and against the peace and dignity 

of the State of Washington. 

COUNT XI 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELOON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN TIIE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GJLBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

20th day of March, 2004 and the 19th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than S.N.P. (DOB: 3/20/91 ), have sexual contact with S.N.P. (DOB: 3/20/91), who is at 

least 12 years old but Jess than 14 years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered 

domestic partnership with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity 

of the State of Washington. 

COUNT XII 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GU.BERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLEST AT ION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

12th day of November, 2004 and the I 1th day of November, 2006, did unlawfully and feloniously, being 

at least 36 months older than T.M. (DOB: 11/12/92), have sexual contact with T.M. (DOB: 11/12/92), 

who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state 

registered domestic partnership with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace 

and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT XIII 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of Cfffi.,D 

MOLESTATION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 
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scheme or pllUl, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of ~ne charge from proof of the others, committed as fol lows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

12th day of November, 2004 and the I Ith day of November, 2006, did unlawfully and feloniously, being 

at least 36 mc,nths older than T.M.,_ have sexual contact with T.M., who is at least 12 years old but less 

than 14 years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with 

the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT XIV 

And l, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of 

POSSESSION OF DEPICTIONS OF MINOR ENGAGED IN SEXUALLY EXPLICIT CONDUCT, a 

crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the same conduct or on a series of acts 

connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respeet 

to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the 

others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, on or about the 30th day of 

October, 2007, did unlawfully, feloniously, and knowingly possess visual or printed matter depicting a 

minor engaged in sexually explicit conduct, contrary to RCW 9.68A.070, and against the peace and 

dignity of the State of Washington. 

DATED this 12th day of March, 2010. 

PIERCE COUNTY SHERIFF 
WA02700 

caf 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PIERCE COUNTY 

ST A TE OF WASHJNGTON, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

Defendant. 

CAUSE NO. 07-1-05618-3 

SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION FOR 
DETERMINATION OF PROBABLE CAUSE 

PATRICK HAMMOND, declares under penalty of perjury: 

That the Declaration for Detennination of Probable Cause dated the I st day of 
November, 2007, is by reference incorporated herein; 

That I am a deputy prosecuting attorney for Pierce County and I am familiar with the 
police report and/or investigation conducted by the PIERCE COUNTY SHERIFF, incident 
number 073030751; 

ST ATE v. GILBERT 

The Declaration for Detennination of Probable Cause by Deputy Prosecutor Mary Robnett, dated 
November 1, 2007, is incorporated herein by reference. In the time that has elapsed since that document 
was filed, substantial infonnation has been developed concerning the defendants systematic abuse of under­
age boys over decades. This Declaration will refer to infonnation developed by State and Federal 
Authorities. 

GenQ:l!I Background: 

Prior to his arrest, in November, 2007, the defendant was quite successful financially, which 
allowed him to own a number of possessions that were quite attractive. The investigation revealed that the 
defendant would provide trips in his sea-plane, boat and helicopter to under-age males. Numerous 
witnesses have confirmed that the defendant would also provide the under-age males with alcohol. The 
defendant's abuse of these males consisted mostly of a spanking ritual that usually involved the boys 
dropping both their pants and underwear, lying over his lap with their their bare buttocks exposed, and 
being subjected to spankings, either with bare hands, or with a variety of implements. The defendant often 
altemated between spanking the boys, and rubbing their naked buttocks. In several cases, the defendant's 
abuse then proceeded to masturbation, oral sex, and anal sex. In many cases, the defendant engaged in this 
activity with boys who were already 16, and therefore could legally consent to his behavior. However, the 
defendant also videotaped many of his activities with these boys. Although the acts portrayed in the videos 
may have been legal, the depiction of those acts with minors under the age of 18 violated both State and 
Federal laws pertaining to the Sexual Exploitation of Minors. The defendant also videotaped sex acts with 
boys 15 years and younger. The Federal Presentence Investigation indicates that videos seized from the 
defendant's residence depicted 250 different scenes, involving approximately 40 individuals. 

The State is alleging multiple counts of child molestation, which requires the State to show 
probable cause that the defendant's actions were for the sexual gratification of himself or others. Because 
the defendant's actions fall outside the mainstream, it is unfonunately necessary to explain why the 
spanking ritual employed by the defendant was in fact done for sexual gratification. This is best 
summarized by the Federal Presentence Investigation's summary of the information developed by 
authorities investigating this case: 
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"Among the items seized [in the search of the defendant's residence on October 31, 2007) was an audio 
cassette tape on which Gilbert discussed his spanking fantasies . .. Agents later conducted a forensic review 
of Gilbert's computer. They determined that he had frequented several fetish spanking websites including 
[websites omitted). They further determined that Gilbert had authored 11 stories [titles omitted) that he had 
posted to these sites under the usemame of barespanker@aol.com. The stories involved older men 
punishing young boys (ages I 3 to I 5) with severe spankings. In the stories, the older men became sexually 
excited by spanking the young boys and the young boys eventually overcame their fear and became 
sexually excited by the span/cings as well." [emphasis added) 

The foHowjng facts are alleged with regards to victims listed in the Federal Jndictment to which the 
defendant has already pleaded guilty. New charges are in bold font (The State references uncharged 
victims in response to the Defendant's request for djsclosure of"other facts' evidence: 

R.L.K., born 3/14/89: 

This is one of the two victims listed in the Original Infonnation and Corrected Information filed under this 
cause in November, 2007. R.L.K. was "John Doe I" in the Federal Indictment. Because the defendant has 
been convicted of the Federal Crime of Sexual Exploitation of a Minor for his conduct with R.L.K., the 
Amended Information drops the State Law allegation of Sexual Exploitation of a Minor originally charged 
in Count VIII, but leaves intact the original allegations of Child Rape and Child Molestation involving 
R.L.K., for which probable cause has already been established. 

E.L.K., born l l/4/94: 

This is the second of the two victims listed in the Original Information and Corrected Information filed 
under this cause in November, 2007. E.L.K. was "John Doe 2" in the Federal Indictment. For the same 
reasons outlined above for R.L.K., the State is dropping the allegation of Sexual Exploitation of a Minor 
that was originally contained in Count IX. 

C.D.F .• born 4/6/95: 

This victim, who was "John Doe 3" in the Federal Indictment, was interviewed by the Chelan County 
Sheriff's Department on November 11, 2007. During the interview, C.D.F. disclosed multiple occasions of 
spankings administered by the defendant. C.D.F. explained how he had first met the defendant, who was 
already developing a "relationship" with his older brother, S.W.F. (born l/21/88). C.O.F. was also able to 
describe several other identified victims. 

In the Chelan interview, C.D.F. said that he had last visited the defendant in the Summer of2006. C.D.F. 
also said he had not been videotaped. However, the summary of rhe video evidence in the Federal 
Presentence Investigation indicates that C.D.F. was in fact depicted in one scene which was filmed at his 
age 10. Apparently C.D.F. cried out in pain and eventually began crying. When C.D.F. reached his hand 
back to shield himself; the defendant allegedly told him: "Put your hand back down." After the spanking, 
the defendant allegedly caressed the victim's buttocks. This is the basis for one Count of Child 
Molestation in the First Degree, occurrin& during the time period between April 6, 2005, and April S, 
2006. C.D.F.'s disclosures are also the basis of one count of Child Molestation in the Second Degree, 
occurring during the time period between April 6, 2006, and October J, 2006. 

N.C.W .• born 6/5/87: 

This victim, depicted in eight scenes, was "John Doe 4" in the Federal Indictment. However because it is 
believed that N.C. W. was 16 or older in those scenes, and because the defendant has already been 
convicted of Sexual Exploitation of a Minor for this conduct, the State is not filing any additional counts 
involving N.C.W.. However, the State does intend to call him to testify pursuant to ER 404{b) and 
RCW I 0.58.090. 
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S.C. born 9/6/88: 

Thi~ victim, depicted in fourteen scenes, was "John Doe 5" in the Federal Indictment. However, because it 
is believed that he was I 6 or older in those scenes, and because the defendant has already been convicted of 
Sexual Exploitation of a Minor for this conduct, the State is not filing any additional counts involving S.C .. 
However, the State does intend to call him to testify pursuant to ER 404(b) and RCW I 0.58.090. 

This victim, depicted in eight scenes, was "John Doe 6" in the Federal Indictment. However, because it is 
believed that he was I 6 or older in those scenes, and because the defendant has already been convicted of 
Sexual Exploitation of a Minor for this conduce, the State is not filing any additional counts involving A.H .. 
However, the State does intend to call him to testify pursuant to ER 404(b) and RCW 10.58.090. 

A.Y., born 10/9/86: 

This victim, depicted in ten scenes, was "John Doe 7" in the Federal Indicnnent. The statue of limitations 
has run for any third degree child molestation counts the State might have filed against the defendant for 
the conduct depicted in those scenes. However, the State does intend to call· A.Y. pursuant to ER 404(b) 
and RCW I0.58.090. 

D.R .. born 3/13/87: 

This victim, depicted in 31 scenes, was "John Doe 8" in the Federal Indictment. The statute of limitations 
has run for any second or third degree child molestation counts the State might have filed against the 
defendant for the conduct depicted in those scenes . However, the State does intend to call D.R. pursuant to 
ER 404(b) and RCW 10.58.090. 

B.M .• born 1/9/82: 

This victim, depicted in five scenes, was "John Doe 9" in the Federal lndicnnent. The statute oflimitations 
has run for any third degree child molestation counts the Stare might have filed against the defendant for 
the conduct depicted in those scenes . However, the State does intend to call B.M. pursuant to ER 404(b) 
and RCW I 0.58.090. 

This victim, depicted in two scenes, was "John Doe IO" in the Federal Indictment . The State intends to call 
L.C. pursuant to ER 404(b0 and RCW I 0.58.090. 

Z.M.R .• born 9/13/86: 

This victim, depicted in two scenes, was "John Doe 11" in the Federal Indictment. As in other cases 
invQlving victims 16 years or older where the defendant's conduct has already resulted in a Federal 
conviction for exploitation of a minor, the State will only call him to testify pursuant to ER 404(b) and 
RCW I0.58.090. 

J.M.R., born 6/10/84: 

This victim, depicted in 54 scenes, was "John Doe 12" in the Federal Indictment. The statute of limitations 
has run for any third degree child molestation counts the State might have filed against the defendant for 
the conduct depicted in those scenes. However, the State does intend to call J.M.R. pursuant to ER 404(b) 
and RCW 10.58.090. 
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v.z., born 10/1/91: 

This victim, depicted in six scenes filmed when he was between 15 and 17 years old, was "John Doe 13' in 
the Federal Indictment. V.Z. said he met the defendant when he was 15, and though he was a "cool guy" 
because he always provided alcohol and a place to hang out. According to V.Z. shortly after he first met 
the defendant, he was enticed into a "spanking contest'' involving him and several of his fiiends. 

The statute of limitations for Child Molestation in the Third Degree is three years. V.Z. turned 16 on 
October I, 2007. The State is therefore chariing the defendant with a single count of Child 
Molestation in the Third Degree with V.Z. as the alleged victim. The charging period for this count 
is between March 13, 2007, and September 30, 2007. 

S.N.P., born 3/20/91: 

This victim, depicted in four scenes filmed when he was between 13 and 15 years old, was "John Doe 14" 
in the Federal lndicnnent. S.N.P. told Detective Merod that he was 13 years old when he met the 
defendant, and the defendant agreed to give him flight lessons in his helicopter. S.N.P. says the first time 
the defendant spanked him, was a couple of weeks later. S.N.P. said the defendant told him to drop his 
pants, which he thought was nonnal for a spanking. However, S.N.P. thought it was odd when the 
defendant asked him to remove his shirt. S.N.P. said he thought it was very odd when the defendant then 
asked him to remove his underwear. Nonetheless, S.N.P. complied, and the defendant spanked him 
repeatedly with a bare hand, as S.N.P. lay naked across the defendant's lap. S.N.P. said the defendant also 
rubbed his buttocks while he was laying naked on the defendant's lap. This is the basis for one count of 
Child Molestation in the Second Degree, alleged to have occurred between March 20, 2004, and 
March 19, 2005. 

S.N.P. disclosed several other incidents, following his first experience, which the State will seek to 
introduce under ER 404(b) and RCW 10.58.090. 

C.S.M., born 4112181: • 

This victim, depicted in four scenes filmed when he was 15, was "John Doe 15" in the Federal Indictment. 
As with several other victims, the statute of limitations has run for the behavior depicted in those scenes. 
Nonetheless, the State intends to call him as a witness pursuant to ER 404(b) and RCW 10.58.090. 

A.1.G .• born 11/22/87: 

This victim, depicted in one scene filmed when he was 14 or IS, was "John Doe 18" in the Federal 
lndictiment. As with several other victims, the statute of limitations has run for the behavior depicted in 
that scene. Nonetheless, the State intends to call him as a witness, pursuant to ER 404(b) and RCW 
10.58.090. 

A.S.C., born 10/7/89: 

This victim, depicted in four scenes filmed between his ages of 15 and 16, was •'John Doe 17" in the 
Federal Indictment. As with C.S.M. and A.J.G., the State seeks to call him only for purposes of 
introducing evidence under ER 404(b) and RCW 10.58.090. 

The following facts are alleged with regards to victims not listed in the Federal Indictment but listed in the 
discovery. New charges are in bold font (The State references uncharged victims in response to the 
Defendant's reguest for disclosure of "other facts' evidence): 

T.M., born 11/12/92: 

Based on T.M.'s disclosures during his interview with the Chelan County Sheriffs Office, it appears that 
he was either 12 or 13 when he visited the defendant at Lake Tapps with C.D.F.. The State is chargine 
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the defendant with two counts of Child Molestation in the Second Degree for the defendant's 
spanking ofT.M., during the time period from 11/12/04, to 11/11/06. 

T.M. described how the defendant would give him and C.D.F. alcohol, then spank them both on their bare 
buttocks. They would also sit with the defendant in his hot tub, nude. T.M. said he and COF had to give 
the defendant a massage while the defendant was naked both front and l>ack. T.M. cried throughout his 
interview, and said he was concerned for C.D.F., because C.D.F. spent more time with the defendant than 
he did. 

A.R.M., born 7/12/82: 

The State will not be seeking to introduce evidence of the defendant groping A.R.M. when he was 13 . 

R.W.M. ,born 9/29/88: 

The State will not be seeking to introduce any evidence of inappropriate touching by the defendant against 
R.W.M .. 

However, the State will be calling R.W.M. as a witness concerning his observations ofthe defendant with 
E.L.K. on October 27,2007. The State may also call him as an impeachment witness, depending on 
R.L.K.'s testimony. 

S.F.P., born 12/2/80: 

The State will seek to introduce testimony from S.F.P. concerning the defendant's sexual abuse of him, the 
defendant's threats against him, and his observation of the defendant with other alleged victims. 

A.T.M., born 12/17/90: 

This witnes1' will be called by the State pursuant to ER 404{1>) and RCW l0.58.090. Should this witness 
disclose abuse, the State reserves the right to file additional charges based on new disclosures. 

R.N.M., born 9/6/83: 

This victim will be called by the State pursuant to ER 404(b) and RCW I0.S8.090(statute of limitations has 
run) 

A.S.D., born 10/13/74: 

The State is electing not to call this witness under 404(b). 

I.S.C., born 5/18/86: 

This victim will be called by the State pursuant to ER 404(b) and RCW I0.58.090(statute of limitations has 
run). 

D.P.D., born 8/26/89: 

This victim will be called by the State pursuant to ER 404(b) and RCW I0.58.090(statute of limitations has 
run). 

Y.A.K., bom 11/13/88: 

This victim will be called by the State pursuant to ER 404(b) and RCW I0.58.090 (statute of limitations 
has run). 
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A.M., born 6/26/88: 

The State will not be calling this witness. 

The State anticipates calling the following additional witnesses pursuant to ER 404(b) and RCW 10.58.090: 

-0.M., born 9/2/87 
-S.W.F., born 1/21/88 
-1.A.C., born 12/12/83 
-J.8.C., born 7/20/89 
-K.J.B., born 5/27/87 
-B.R.M., born 1/9/82 
-0.N.P., born 6/25/89 

Possession of Depictions of Minors Engaged in Sexually Explicit Conduct: 

The Federal Prosecution did not rely on all of the child pornography seized from the defendant's residence 
as a factual basis for the defendanr's Federal convictions. As a consequence, the State is relying on the 
pornographic materials that were not a part of the Federal Prosecution to support a single count of 
Possession of Depiction(s) of a Minor in Sexually Explicit Conduct. 

More specifically, the Presentence Investigation confinns that scenes depicting l.A.C., R.N.M, O.N.P, 
K.J.B, B.R. M. were not the basis of any federal counts. 

I DECLARE UNDER PENAL TY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF 
WASHINGTON THAT llIE FOREGOING IS TRUE AND CORRECT. 

DATED: March 12, 2010 
PLACE: TACOMA, WA 

PATRICK HAMMOND, WSB# 23090 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PIERCE COUNTY 

ST A TE OF WASHINGTON, 

vs. 

WELOON MARC GILBERT, 

DOB: 8/26/1960 
PCN#: 

Plaintiff, CAUSE NO. 07-1-05618-3 

CORRECTED AMENDED INFORMATION 

Defendant. 
SEX: ~ALE 
SID#:24227529 

COUNT! 

RACE: WHIT 
DOL#: UNKNOWN 

I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the authority 

of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF A CHILD 

IN THE. SECOND DEGREE, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.L.K. (DOB: 03/14/1989), engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K. (DOB: 

03/14/&9), who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 years old and not married to the defendant and not 

in a state registered domestic partnership with the defendant, contnuy to RCW 9A.44.076, and against the 

peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT II 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 
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That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 13th day of March. 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 12 years old but 

less than 14 years old and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership 

wirh the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.076, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNT III 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect ~o time, place and occasion that it .would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being aJ least 

36 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 1°2 years old but 

less than 14 years old and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership 

with the defendant, contnuy to RCW 9A.44.076, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNT IV 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD IN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constiMing parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

ptoof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as foJJows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 14 years old but 

less than 16 years old and not married ro the defendant and not in a state registered domestic pannership 

with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.079, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNTY 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 
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A CHILD CN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

4& months older than R. L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 14 years old but 

less than 16 years old and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership 

with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.079, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNT VI 

And l, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of RAPE OF 

A CHILD fN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on 

the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, 

and/or so closely connected in respect to time, p_lace and occasion that it would be difficult to separate 

proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than R.L.K., engage in sexual intercourse with R.L.K., who is at least 14 years old but 

less than 16 years old and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership 

with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.079, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNTVll 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, on or about the 27th day of 

October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 36 months older than E.L.K. (DOB: 

I 1/04/94), have sexual contact with E.L.K. (DOB: 11/04/94), who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 

years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 
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COUNT VIII 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE FIRST DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 6th 

day of April, 2005 and the 5th day of April, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 36 

months older than C.D.F. (DOB: 04/06/95), have sexual contact with C.D.F. (DOB: 04/06/95), who is 

less than 12 years old and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership 

with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.083, and against the peace and dignity of the State of 

Washington. 

COUNT IX 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GU.BERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, commined as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 6th 

day of April, 2007 and the 1st day of October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 36 

months older than C.D.F., have sexual contact with C.D.F., who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 

years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNTX 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE TIIlRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, pl.ace and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

13th day of March, 2007 and the 30th day of September, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at 

least 48 months older than V .Z. (DOB: I 0/0 l /9 l ), have sexual contact with V .Z. (DOB: I 0/0 I /91 ), who is 
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at least 14 years old but less than 16 years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state 

registered domestic partnership with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.089. and against the peace 

and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT XI 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime ofCJill.,D 

MOLES'f A TION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

20th day of March, 2004 and the 19th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than S.N.P. (DOB: 03/20/91), have sexual contact with S.N.P. (00B: 03/20/91), who is 

at least 12 years old but less than 14 years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state 

registered domestic partnership with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace 

and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT XII 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as foJlows: 

'fhat WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

12th day ofNovember, 2004 and the I Ith day of November, 2006, did unlawfully and feloniously, being 

at least 36 months older than T.M. (DOB: 11/12/92), have sexual contact with T.M. (DOB: I 1/12/92), 

who is at least 12 years old but less than I 4 years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state 

registered domestic partnership with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace 

and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT XIII 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELOON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 
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S<:heme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

J 2th day of November, 2004 and the 11th day of November, 2006, did unlawfully and feloniously, being 

at least 36 months older than T.M., have sexual contact with T.M., who is at least 12 years old but less 

than 14 years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with 

the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT XIV 

And l, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of 

POSSESSION OF DEPICTIONS Of MINOR ENGAGED IN SEXUALLY EXPLICIT CONDUCT, a 

crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime based on the same conduct or on a series of acts 

connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect 

to time, place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the 

others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, on or about the 30th day of 

October, 2007, did unlawfully, feloniously, and knowingly possess visual or printed matter depicting a 

minor engaged in sexually explicit conduct, contrary to RCW 9.68A.070, and against the peace and 

dignity of the State of Washington. 

DA TED this 12th day of March, 2010. 

PIERCE COUNTY SHERIFF 
WA02700 

caf 
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E-FILED 
IN COUNTY CLERK'S OF ICE 

PIERCE COUNTY, WASHIN TON 

October 29 2012 11:33 M 

THE HONORABLE KA THERINE M. STOLZ 
KEVIN STOCK 

COUNTY CLERK 
NO: 07-1-05618-3 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PIERCE 

STA TE OF WASHINGTON, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

Defendant. 

No. 07-1-05618-3 

DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS 
PURSUANT TO RCW 10.43.040 

13 I. MOTION 

14 COMES NOW the Defendant, Weldon Marc Gilbert, pro se, and moves this 

15 Court, pursuant to RCW 10.43.040, to dismiss all charges because his prior federal 

16 convictions for the same acts bar the entirety of this prosecution. 

17 II. 

18 

RELEVANT FACTS 

On December 10, 2008, the Defendant was charged in Western District of 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Washington No. CR-07-5732-BHS with, among others, Counts 1-33- sexual exploitation 

of a child in the production of child pornography, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 225l(a) 

and (e); 2256. See Fourth Superseding Indictment, Exhibit A. On April 23, 2009, the 

Defendant pied guilty to Counts 1-21, 23-31, and 33. See Plea Agreement at 1:25-27, 

Exhibit B. 

To convict, the government had to demonstrate that the Defendant "employed, 

DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS 
PURSUANT TO RCW 10.43.040 - I 
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used, persuaded, induced, enticed or coerced the victim to take part in sexually explicit 

conduct for the purpose of producing a visual depiction of such conduct ... " Id. at 2: 15-

17. In other words, the Defendant (1) used, persuaded, induced, enticed, or coerced (2) a 

minor (3) to engage (4) in sexually explicit conduct (5) for the purpose (6) of producing a 

visual depiction of such conduct and (7) the visual depiction was produced using 

materials that travel in interstate or foreign commerce. See 18 U.S.C. § 2251(a). 

The plea agreement lays out the facts encompassing the Defendant's former 

conviction in paragraph 6: Statement of Facts. 

First, all of the videos were created in Washington State. Ex B 6: 24-25. 

Second, the videos show seventeen different victims, the youngest of which were 

10, 12, 13, 14 when they first appear in the video. Ex B 6:7-8. 

Next, the visual depictions of minors engaged in sexually explicit conduct 

specifically includes the following acts: the Defendant "engaged in some sort of sex act 

with the victim"; the Defendant "striking the unclothed victim with his hand, or with an 

implement, such as a paddle, belt, or cane"; the Defendant "caressing the nude bodies of 

the victims while striking them"; the Defendant "touching or attempting to touch the 

victim's genitalia. EX B 6:10-20. Each and every one of the videos, therefore, contained 

depictions of minors engaged in sexually explicit conduct. 

Sexually explicit conduct," is defined as: (a) sexual intercourse, whether genital­

genital, oral-genital, anal-genital, or oral-anal between persons of the same or opposite 

sex or with animals; (b) vaginal or anal penetration; (c) masturbation; (d) 

sadomasochistic abuse for the sexual stimulation of the viewer; (e) defecation or 

urination for sexual stimulation of the viewer; (f) Lascivious exhibition of the genitals or 

DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS 
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pubic area for the sexual stimulation of the viewer; or (g) touching of a person's clothed 

or unclothed genitals, public area, buttocks, or breasts for the sexual stimulation of the 

viewer. 

The Defendant is presently charged by Corrected Information dated September 

21, 2012 with Counts: I-III second degree rape of a child, in violation of RCW 

9A.44.076; IV-VI third degree rape of a child, in violation of RCW 9A.44.079; VII, IX, 

and XI-XIII - second degree child molestation, in violation of RCW 9A.44.086; VIII­

first degree child molestation, in violation of RCW 9A.44.083; 10 - third degree child 

molestation, in violation of RCW 9A.44.089; and XIV- possession of depiction of minors 

engaged in sexually explicit conduct, in violation of RCW 9.68A.070. 

For Counts I-III, the state will have to prove that the Defendant had intercourse 

with another at least twelve years old but less than 14 years of age. RCW 9A.44.076(1 ). 

For counts IV -VI, the state will have to prove that the Defendant had intercourse 

with another at least 14 years old but less than 16 years of age. RCW 9A.44.079. 

For first degree child molestation, the state will have to prove that the Defendant 

had- or knowingly caused another under 18 years of age to have- sexual contact with 

another less than 12 years old. RCW 9A.44.083(1). For second degree, the state must · 

prove the same, but the victim must be at least twelve- but less than 14- years old. RCW 

9A.44.086(1 ). For third degree, the elements are again the same, but the victim must be 

at least 14- but less than 16- years old. RCW 9A.44.089(1). 

"Sexual Contact" is defined as any touching of the sexual or other intimate parts 

of a person done for the purpose of gratifying sexual desire of either party or a third 

party. RCW 9A.44.010 

DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS 
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1 Finally, to convict the Defendant of possessing a depiction of a minor engaged in 

2 sexually explicit conduct, the state need show that he knowingly possessed such 

3 depiction. RCW 9.68A.070(1). 

4 As the pending charges are thus, in fact, the precise acts for which the Defendant 

5 has already been convicted in federal court, RCW 10.43.040 mandates dismissal. 

6 III. RCW 10.43.040 PROHIBITS THIS PROSECUTION 

7 

8 

9 

10 
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As the Defendant was already convicted in federal court of the same acts which 

the state now also seeks to prosecute, dismissal under RCW 10.43.040 is required. 

While dual sovereignty typically permits successive federal and state prosecutions 

for even identical offenses, the State of Washington rejected this doctrine by statute 

through the codification of RCW 10.43.040- as stated in the seminal case of State v. 

Caliguri, 99 Wn.2d 501, 511, 66 P.2d 466 (1983). Under current RCW 10.43.040: 

Whenever, upon the trial of any person for a crime, it appears that the 
offense was committed in another state or country, under such 
circumstances that the courts of this state had jurisdiction thereof, and that 
the defendant has already been acquitted or convicted upon the merits, in a 
judicial proceeding conducted under the criminal laws of such state or 
country, founded upon the act or omission with respect to which he or she 
is upon trial, such former acquittal or conviction is a sufficient defense. 

Although the statute mentions only "another state or country," it specifically 

includes federal prosecutions. Id. at 512. In addition, because the statute refers to a prior 

acquittal or conviction based upon an "act or omission" - as opposed to the "same 

offense" - the prior "act or omission" must be identical only in fact alone. Id. at 513-14. 

Stated differently, a state prosecution is prohibited where the Defendant was 

already prosecuted for offenses which are in fact, alone, identical to or include the state 

charges. Id. at 514. This test- focusing on fact alone and thus broader than the standard 
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double jeopardy test- is "justified because crimes defined by different sovereigns may 

differ in certain technical respects which have little to do with the interest protected." Id. 

Here, the Defendant was convicted in federal court of 31 counts of sexual 

exploitation of a minor in the production of child pornography. Under Washington law, 

each of the acts in the depictions underlying the convictions is also alleged to involve 

either second or third degree rape of a child or any degree of child molestation. 

While the state may argue that the state charges involve acts "different in 

character" from those required for conviction under the federal statutes and thus do not 

trigger the protections of RCW 10.43.040, it is important to note that the government 

failed to specify which definitional prong(s) of 18 U.S.C. § 2256 each count satisfied. 

The situation is thus analogous to an ambiguous jury verdict, "which, under the rule of 

lenity, must be resolved in the defendant's favor." State v. Kier, 164 Wn.2d 798, 811, 

194 P .3d 212 (2008). 

The rule of lenity and its strict construction in favor of the accused, moreover, 

specifically apply to interpretation of plea agreements. State v. Bisson, 156 Wn.2d 507, 

522-523, 130 P .3d 820 (2006). 

Here, then, taking into consideration the federal charging document, the 

Defendant's federal guilty plea, the current pending charges, and the rule of the lenity, 

the identical facts underlying the state charges, any ambiguity must be resolved in the 

defendant's favor. Had the government simply delineated which prong(s) of§ 2256 each 

count fulfilled, the ambiguity could have been eliminated. See Kier, 164 Wn.2d at 812 

(citing State v. DeRyke, 110 Wn.App. 815, 41 P.3d 1225 (2002)). 
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And, more generally, the principles of lenity also apply to the construction of 

RCW 10.43.040 in this case. 

There is, finally, no question that Count XIV, possession of child pornography­

the unit of possession for which is one, see State v. Sutherby. 165 Wn.2d 870, 204 P.3d 

916 (2009)- is necessarily precluded by the federal production convictions. 

As, therefore, this prosecution is premised upon charges- all of which are identical 

in fact to or included within the Defendant's prior federal convictions- RCW 10.43.040 

and the rule lenity mandate dismissal. 

IV. CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, the Defendant respectfully requests that the Court 

dismiss all charges and remand him to the custody of the United States Marshals Service 

and the federal government. 

DATED this 29th day of October, 2012 at Tacoma, Washington. 

DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS 
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Respectfully Submitted, 

14 'I(/~~ tJdle'lt 
Weldon Marc Gilbert 
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Case 3:07-cr-05732-BHS Document 202 Filed 12/10/08 Page 1 of 8 

2 Presented to the Court by the foreman of tie 
Grand Jury 111 open Court, In the pmence of 

3 the Grand Jary and FILED In The U.S. 
DISTIICT COURT at Seattle, W aslllngton. 

4 
·17/::4,:-~pc{'( f. 6 D o.---· 

s / ""'-.. ~-Bi'uc~N; 1'ck;f 
6 / ~ " ~ Deputy 

7 ·~~ . 

s UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON 

9 AT TACOMA 

10 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
NO. CR07-5732BHS 

11 Plaintiff, 
FOURTH SUPERSEDING 

12 

13 

14 

15 

I 6· 

17 

18 

19 

.v. INDICTMENT 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 
--, -illlll° 1111111111 Hlll lllll lHII 11111 llliil ____ 

Defendant. I lllllll l,lllll llll 1111111111 111111 1111111 
07-CR-05732-INDI 

The Grand Jury charges that: 
'• ·--·- - - · ··- · 

COUNTS ONE THROUGH THIRTY-THREE 
(Sexual Exploitation of a Child in the Production of Child Pornography) 

On exact dates unknown, but before on or about October 31, 2007, within the 

20 Western District of Washington and elsewhere, the defendant, WELDON MAR~ 

21 GILBERT, did use, persuade, induce, entice, and coerce the following minor males, who 

22 at the time were under the age of eighteen (18). years, to engage in sexually explicit 

23 conduct for the purpose of producing visual dep_ictions of such conduct, that is, 

24 videotapes and digital video discs (DVDs), such visual depictions having been produced 

25 using materials that had been mailed, shipped, and transported in interstate and foreign 

26 commerce, with each such production constituting a separate Count.of this Fourth 

21 Superseding Indictment: 

28 
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COUNT MINOR VICTIMS DISCOVERY TAPE #, SCENE# 

2 One John Doe 1 Tape SW2-7, Scene 2 

3 Two John Doe 2 Exhibit 6, Scene 2 

4 Three John Doe 3 Exhibit 3, Scene 4 

5 Four John Doe 4 Exhibit 5, Scene 4 

6 Five John Doe 5 Tape SW2-2, Scene 1 

7 Six John Doe 6 Exhibit 9, Scene 1 

8 Seven John Doe 7 Exhibit 9, Scene 4 

9 Eight John Doe 8 Exhibit 9, Scene 5 

10 Nine John Doe 9 Exhibit 9, Scene 7 

11 Ten John Doe 10 Exhibit 11, Scene 5 

12 Eleven John Doe 11 Exhibit 5, Scene 5 

13 Twelve John Doe 12 Exhibit 9, Scene 11 

14 Thirteen John Does 1 and 13 Exhibit 3, Scene 2 

15 Fourteen John Does 1 and I 4 Tape SW2-34, Scene 1 

16 Fifteen · John Does 8 and 15 Exhibit 16, Scenes 12-14 

17 Sixteen John Doe 1 Tape SW2-28, Scene 1 

18 Seventeen John Doe I Tape SW2-68, Scene 1 

19 Eighteen John Doe 1 Tape SW2-43, Scene 2 

20 Nineteen John Doe 1 Exhibit 13, Scene 4 

21 Twenty ·John Doe 1 Exhibit 14, Scene 4 

22 Twenty-One John Doe 1 Exhibit 15, Scene 7 

23 Twenty-Two John Doe 1 Exhibit 12, Scene 5 

24 Twenty-Three John Doe 1 Tape SW2-29, Scene 3 

25 Twenty-Four John Doe 1 Exhibit 8, Scene 2 

26 Twenty-Five John Doe 4 Exhibit 1, Scene 7 

27 Twenty-Six John Doe 4 Exhibit 12, Scenes 3 and 4 ( connected) 

28' 
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I COUNT MINOR VICTIMS 

2 Twenty-Seven John Doe 8 Exhibit·9, Scene 6 

3 Twenty-Eight John Doe 8 Tape SW2-67, Scene S 

4 Twenty-Nine John Doe 8 Tape SW2-71, Scene 3 

5 Thirty · John Doe 18 Tape SW2-70, Scene 3 

6 Thirty-One John Doe 12 Tape SW2-65, Scene 5 

7 Thirty-Two John Doe 12 Tape SW2-39, Scene 5 

8 Thirty-Three John Doe I Tape SW2-27, Scenes 3 and 4 

9 All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 225l(a) and (e) and 

10 Section 2256. 

11 

12 

13 

COUNTS THIRTY-FOUR AND THIRTY-FIVE 
(Transportation of a Minor to Engage in Illegal Sexual Activity) 

On or about the dates set forth below, within the Western District of Washington 

and elsewhere, the defendant, WELDON MARC GILBERT, did knowingly and willfully 
14 

15 

16 

17 

\8 

transport and caused to be transported the following minor males, who at the time were 

under the age of eighteen ( 18) years, in interstate and foreign commerce from Pierce 
. . 

County, in the State of Washington, to Canada, with the intent that the minor male engage 

in sexual activity under circumstances as would constitute a criminal offense by a person 

unde_r Revised Code of Washington (RCW) Section 9A.44.089, Child Molestation; 
\9 

RCW Section 9.68A.090, Communication with a Minor for Immoral Purposes; 
20· 

RCW Section 9.68A.040, _Sexual Exploitation of a Minor; RCW Section 9A.44.093, 
21 

Sexual Misconduct with a Minor in the First Degree; RCW Section 9A.44.096, Sexual 
22 

Misconduct with a Minor in the ,Second Degree; and Title 18, United States Code, 
23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

. Section 225 l(a), Sex~al Exploitation of a Child in the Production of Child Pornography, 

with each transportation constituting a separate Count of this Fourth Superseding 

Indictment: 

II 

ii 
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I II 

2 

3 COUNT DATE 

4 Thirty-four In or about 2005 

s Thirty-five 

6 

On a date unknown 
but within five years 
of on or about October 
31,2007 

MINOR VICTIMS 

John Doe l 

John Does 1, 5, 13, 17 

TAPE# 

SW2-5 

SW2-13 

7 

8 

9 

AJI in_violation of Title 18, United·States Code, Section 2423(a) and Section 2. 

COUNT THIRTY-SIX 
(Obstruction of Justice) 

10 Beginning on or about October 30, 2007, and continuing until on or _about August 

11 28, 2008, within the Western District of Washington and elsewhere, the defendant, 

12 WELDON MARC GILBERT, with others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, 

13 knowingly did corruptly persuade, attempt to corruptly persuade, and engage in 

14 misleading conduct toward John Doe l, by trying to convince John Doe 1 not to cooperate 

15 with law enforcement and judicial officers, wi~h intent to hinder, delay and prevent the 

16 communication to a law enforcement officer and judge of the United States, of 

17 information relating to the commission or possible commission of a Federal offense, 

18 namely Production of Child Pornography, as charged in Counts 1, 13, 14, and 16 through 

19 24 of this Indictrnent, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2251, and 

20 Transportation of a Minor With Intent to Engage in Criminal Sexual Activity, as charged 

21 in Counts 29 and 30 of this Indictment, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 

2~ Section 2423(a). 

23 All in violation ofTitle 18, United States Code, Section 1512(b)(3). 

24 COUNT TIDRTY-SEVEN 
(Obstr.uction of Justice) 

25 
Beginning on or about October 30, 2007, and continuing until on or about August 

26 
28, 2008, within the Western District of Washington and elsewhere, the defendant, 

27 

28 
WELDON MARC GILBERT, with others known and unknown to the Grand 
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I Jury ,knowingly did corruptly persuade, attempt to corruptly persuade, and engage in 

2 misleading conduct toward John Doe 1, by trying to convince John Doe I not to cooperate 

3 with law enforcement and judicial officers, with intent to influence, delay, or prevent the 

4 testimony of any person in an official proceeding, namely, proceedings related to the 

5 conduct that fonns the basis of the charges in this Indictment. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 15 I 2(b )(I). 

ASSET FORFEITURE ALLEGATIONS 

The allegations contained in Counts l - 28 of this Fourth Superseding Indict~ent 

are hereby re-alleged and incorporated by reference for the purpose of alleging forfeitures 

pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253(a). 

Upon conviction of the offenses in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 

Sections 2252(a) and (e) and 2256 set forth in Counts 1-28 of this Fourth Superseding 

Indictment, the defendant, WELDON MARC GILBERT, shall forfeit to the United States 

of America, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253(a)(3), any property, 

16 rec!,l or personal, Qsed or intended to be used, to commit or to promote the commission of 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

. . 

such offenses and any property traceable to such property, including but not limited to: 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d. 

e. 

One 2004 blue Lexus GX470, bearing Washington license plate 029RYB, 
VIN JTJBT20X940035115; . 

One 2006 white Ford Fl 50 pick-up, Washington license plate A68898Z, 
VIN IFTRF12206NB15476; 

A 1981 Bell 206B-III helicopter bearing tail number N32SJR and serial 
number 3296, and all flight logs and maintenance logs associated with this 
aircraft; · 

One 1968 Cessna A185E Float Plane, Tail #N2210T, Serial #185-1362, and 
all flight logs and maintenance logs associated with this aircraft; 

One 2003 Sea Ray Boat, model l 85BR, bearing license number 
WN8212NM, Boat Hull #SERV5716E303185BR3560 and One Shore 
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6 

7 

8 

9· 

· 10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 
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f. 

Land'r trailer, Washington license plate 0059RG, VIN 
1MDJ2JR163A248711J; . · 

Real froperty located at 2901 21 Ith Avenue East, Lake Tapps, Washington 
9839 , parcel number 8996010100, its buildings, improvements, 
appurtenances, fixtures, attachments and easements, more particularly 
<fescribed as: Lot 10 ofTapps Island Division No. 1, accorcling to the Plat 
thereof recorded in volume 48 of Plats at pages 30 to 34, inclusive, records 
of Pierce County, Washington; and, Lot 11 of Tapps Island Division No. 1, 
according to Plat recordecfin Book 48 of Plats at pages 30 to 34, inclusive, 
records of Pierce County, Washington; 

g. Real froperfy located at 2901 211th Avenue East, Lake Tapps, Washington 
9839 , parcel number 8996010110, its buildings, improvements, . 
appurtenances, fixtures, attachments and easements, more 2articularJy 
<fescribed as: Lot 10 ofTapps Island Division No. 1, accorcling to the Plat 
thereof recorded in volume 48 of Plats at pages 30 to 34, inclusive, records 
of Pierce County, Washington; and, Lot 11 ofTapps Island Division No. l, 
according to Plat recordecf in Book 48 of Plats at pages 30 to 34, inclusive, 
records of Pierce County, Washington · 

If any of the property described above, as a result of any act or omission of the defendant: 

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence; 

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party; 

c. 

d. 

e. 

has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court; 

has been substantially diminished in value; or 

has been commingled with other property which c_annot be divided without 
difficulty, 

2) 

22 

20 the United States shall be entitled to forfeiture of substitute property pursuant to Title 21, 

United States Code, Section 853(p), as incorporated by Title 18, United States ~ode, 

Section 2253(b ). 
23 

The allegations contained in Counts 29 - 30 of this Fourth Superseding Indictment 
24 

are hereby re-aUeged and incorporated by reference for the purpose of alJeging forfeitures 
2S 

26 

27 

28 

pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253(a). 
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Upon conviction of the offenses in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 

2 Section 2423(a) set forth in Counts 29 - 30 of this Fourth Superseding·Indictment, the 

3 defendant, WELDON MARC GILBERT, shall forfeit to the United States of America, 

4 pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253(a)(3}, any property, real or 

s personal, used or intended to be used, to commit or to promote the commission of such 

6 offenses and any property traceable to such property, including but not limited to: 

7 

8 

9 

JO 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

a. One 2004 blue Lexus GX470, bearing Washington license plate 029RYB, 
IN JTJBT20X9400351 l 5. · 

If any of the property described above, as a result of any act or omission of the 

defendant: 

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence; 

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party; 

fl 

II 

II 
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c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court; 

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or 

e. has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without 
difficulty, 

6 the United States· shall be entitled to forfeiture of substitute property pursuant to Title 21, 

7 United States Code, Section 853(p), as incorporated by Title 18, United States Code, 

s Section 2253(b). 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Assistant United States Attorney 

MICHAEL D10~ 
Assistant United States Attorney 

I 

I 
i 

A TRUE BILL: 

DATED: 

The signature of the foreperson has been 
redacted pursuant to the policy of the Judicial 
Conference of the United States 

FOREPERSON 
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07-CR-05732-PLAGR 

Judge Settle 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON 

AT TACOMA 

UNITED ST A TES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 
NO. CR07-5732BHS 

V. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

Defendant. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

The United States of America, by and through Jeffrey C. Sullivan, United States 

16 Attorney for the Western District of Washington, and Roger Rogoff and Michael Dion, 

17 Assistant United States Attorneys for said District, and the defendant, WELDON MARC 

18 GILBERT, and his attorneys, John Henry Browne and Emma Scanlan, enter into the 

19 following Agreement, pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure l l(c)(l)(C): 

20 l. The Charges. Defendant, having been advised of the right to have this 

21 matter tried before a jury, agrees to waive that right and enter a plea of guilty to the 

22 following charges contained in the Fourth Superseding Indictment ("Indictment"). By 

23 entering this plea of guilty, Defendant hereby waives all objections to the form of the 

24 charging document. 

25 a. Sexual exploitation of a child in the Production of Child 

26 Pornography, as charged in Counts 1 through 21, 23 through 31, and 33, in violation of 

27 Title 18, United States Code, Section 2251(a) and (e), and 2256; 

28 
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1 b. Transportation of a minor to engage in illegal sexual activity, as 

2 charged in Counts 34 and 35, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 

3 

4 

2423(a) and Section 2; 

c. 
3-' 

Obstruction of justice, as charged in Count 3-5-, in' violation of Title 

5 18, United States Code, Section 1512(b)(3); and !3~ 

6 d. Obstruction of justice, as charged in Count l8; in violation of Title 

7 18, United States Code, Section l 5 l 2(b )( l ). 

8 Defendant further understands that before entering his pleas of guilty, Defendant 

9 will be placed under oath. Any statement given by Defendant under oath may be used by 

to the government in a prosecution for perjury or false statement. 

11 

12 

2. Elements of the Offenses. The elements of the offenses are as follows: 

a. The elements of the offense of Production of Visual Depictions of 
. . 

13 Minors Engaged in Sexually Explicit Conduct, as charged in Counts 1 through 21, 23 

14 through 31, and 33, of the Indictment, are: 

15 First, Defendant employed, used, persuaded, induced, enticed or coerced the 

16 victim to take part in sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing a visual 

11 depiction of such conduct; 

Second, at the time, the victim was a minor; and 18 

19 Third, the visual depiction was produced or transmitted using materials that 

20 had been mailed, shipped, or transported in or affecting interstate or foreign commerce. 

21 b. The elements of the offense of Transportation of Minors to Engage 

22 in Illegal Sexual Conduct, as charged in Counts 34 and 35 of the Indictment, are: 

23 First, Defendant knowingly transported an individual in interstate 

24 commerce; 

25 Second, the individual was under 18 years of age when the transportation 

26 took place; and 

27 Third, Defendant intended that the person engage in sexual activity for 

28 which any person can be charged with a criminal offense. 
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c. The elements of the offense of Obstruction of Justice, as charged in 

2 Count 36 of the Indictment, are: 

3 First, Defendant knowingly did corruptly persuade, attempt to corruptly 

4 persuade., or engage in misleading conduct toward another by trying to convince such 

s person not to cooperate with law enforcement and judicial officers; 

6 Second, Defendant did so with intent to hinder, delay and prevent the 

7 communication to a law enforcement officer or judge of the United States, of infonnation 

8 relating to the commission or possible commission of a Federal offense. 

9 d. The elements of the offense of Obstruction of Justice, as charged in 

10 Count 37 of the Indictment, are: 

JI First, Defendant knowingly did corruptly persuade, attempt to corruptly 

12 persuade, and engage in misleading conduct toward another, by trying to convince that 

13 person not to cooperate with law enforcement and judicial officers; and 

14 Second, Defendant did so with intent to influence, delay, or prevent the 

ts testimony of any person in an official proceeding. 

16 3. The Penalties. 

11 a. The statutory penalties for Production of Visual Depictions of 
. ~3 

1 s Minors Engaged in Sexually Explicit Conduct, as charged in Counts 1 through 21, ~ 

19 through 31, and 33, of the Indictment, are, as to each count: imprisonment for not less 

20 than fifteen ( 15) years and not more than Life, a fine of up to two-hundred and fifty 

21 thousand dollars ($250,000.00), or both, a one-hundred dollar ($100.00) penalty 

22 assessment, and a period of supervision following release from prison of not less than five 

23 (5) years and up to the lifetime of the offender. 

24 b. The statutory penalties for Transportation of Minors with Intent to 

2.5 Engage in Illegal Sexual Conduct, as charged in Counts 34 and 35 of the Indictment are: 

26 imprisonment for not less than l O years nor more than Life, a fine of up to two-hundred 

27 and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00), or both, a one-hundred dollar ($100.00) penalty 

28 
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1 assessment, and a period of supervision following release from prison of not less than five 

2 (5) years and up to the lifetime of the offender. 

3 c. The statutory penalties for Obstruction of Justice, as charged in 

4 Count 36 and 37 of the Indictment are: imprisonment for not more thwt 20 years, a fine of 

s up to two-hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00), or both, a one-hundred dollar 

6 ($100.00) penalty assessment, and a period of supervision following release from prison 

7 of not more than three (3) years. 

8 Defendant understands that supervised release is a period of time following 

9 imprisonment, during which he will be subject to certain restrictions and requirements. 

10 Defendant further understands that if supervised release is imposed wtd he violates one or 

11 more of its conditions, he could be returned to prison for aJI or part of the tenn of 

12 supervised rel~ase that was originaJly imposed. This could result in Defendant serving a 

13 total term of imprisonment greater than the statutory maximum stated above. 

14 Defendant agrees that any monetary penalty the Court imposes, including the 

15 special assessment, fine, costs or restitution, is due and payable immediately, and further 

16 agrees to submit a completed Finwtcial Statement of Debtor form as requested by the 

11 United States Attorney's Office. 

18 4. Rights Waived by Pleadin& Guilcy. Defendant understands that, by 

19 pleading guilty, he knowingly and voluntarily waives the following rights: 

20 

2) 

22 peers; 

23 

a. 

b. 

C. 

The right to plead not guilty, and to persist in a plea of not guilty; 

The right to a speedy and public trial before a jury of Defendant's 

The right to the effective assistance of counsel at trial, including, if 

24 Defendant could not afford an attorney, the right to have the Court appoint one for 

25 Defendant; 

26 d. The right to be presumed innocent until guilt has been established at 

27 trial, beyond a reasonable doubt; 

28 
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e. The right to confront and cross-examine witnesses against Defendant 

2 at trial; 

3 f. The right to compel or subpoena witnesses to appear on Defendant's 

4 behalf at trial; 

5 g. The right to testify or to remain silent at trial, at which trial such 

6 silence could not be used against Defendant; and 

7 h. The right to appeal a finding of guilt or any pretrial rulings 

s 5. United States Sentencing Guidelines. Defendant understands and 

9 aclmowledges that, absent applicable intervening law: 

10 a. The United States Sentencing Guidelines, promulgated by the 

11 United States Sentencing Commission, are applicable to this case; 

12 b. The Court will determine Defendant's applicable Sentencing 

13 Guidelines range at the time of sentencing; and 

14 c. Except as provided in paragraph 7 below, Sentencing, Defendant 

15 may not withdraw a guilty plea solely because of the sentence imposed by the Court. 

16 6. Statement of Facts. The parties agree on the following facts in support of 

11 Defendant's guilty plea and sentencing. Defendant admits he is guilty of the charged 

J s offenses an·d expressly waives any right to have these facts determined by a jury beyond a 

J 9 reasonable doubt. 

20 Back&round 

21 a. At all relevant times, WELDON MARC GILBERT resided at his house in 

22 Lake Tapps, Washington. GILBERT was born on August 26, 1960. 

23 Child Porno1raphy Production Chafies 

24 b. GILBERT used one or more foreign-made video cameras to create videos 

25 of minors engaged in sexually explicit conduct. All of the videos described below were 

26 created using those foreign-made video cameras, and those cameras traveled to 

27 Washington state in interstate and foreign commerce before being used to create those 

28 videos. 
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c. GILBERT filmed all of the videos described below with the purpose and 

2 intent of creating visual depictions of minors engaged in sexualJy explicit conduct. 

3 GILBERT knew that the victims shown on the videos were minors, and he knew that they 

4 were engaging in sexually explicit conduct. 

s d. GILBERT created thirty-one visual depictions of minors engaged in 

6 sexually-explicit conduct, as charged in Counts 1 through 21, 23 through 31, and 33 of 

7 the Indictment. The videos show 17 different victims. The youngest victims are 10, 12, 

s 13, and 14 when they first appear in the videos. GILBERT arranged the lighting, camera 

9 angle, and the victims' bodies to ensure that the victims' genitalia would be clearly caught 

10 on film. AU of the videos fall into one of the following two categories: (a) GILBERT 

11 engaged in some fonn of sex act with the victim, or the victim masturbating at 

12 GILBERTs direction; or (b) a lascivious display of the-victims' genitalia. With respect 

13 to category (b ), each and every one of those videos also displayed one or more of the 

14 following: (1) GILBERT striking the unclothed victim with his hand, or with an 

15 implement, such as a paddle, belt, or cane; (2) GILBERT restraining the victim, either by 

16 hand or by tying the victim down; (3) the victim indicating that GILBERT was inflicting 

17 pain upon them; (4) welts, bruises, or blisters inflicted by GILBERT, (5) GILBERT 

18 caressing the nude bodies of the victims while striking them; (6) GILBERT commenting 

19 upon the victims' genitalia; (7) GILBERT touching, or attempting to touch, the victims' 

20 genitalia; and (8) GJLBERT engaging in a sexual discussion with the victim. 

~ 21 e. There was no legitimate reason for GILBERT to create any of these visual 

22 depictions of minors engaged in sexually explicit conduct. GILBERT created the videos 

23 for the purpose of producing child pornography that he could watch whenever he wanted 

24 to. GILBERT created these videos over a period of several years. All of the videos were 

2s created in Washington State. GILBERT agrees and acknowledges that all of the videos 

-26 were sexually explicit, in that each and every one of the videos showed one or more of the 

21 following: (1) actual or simulated sexual intercourse; (2) masturbation; (3) sadistic abuse; 

28 and ( 4) lascivious exhibition of the genitals and pubic area. 
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f. GILBERT used, persuaded, and induced each of the victims to appear in the 

2 videos. 

3 Transportation of minors charees 

4 g. In 2005, GILBERT transported a minor male victim ("John Doe I") from 

5 Washington State to Whistler, British Columbia, Canada. One of GILBERT's dominant 

6 purposes in transporting John Doe 1 to Canada was to engage in illegal_ sexual conduct 

7 with John Doe 1, namely, GILBERT intended to produce pornographic videos of John 

8 Doe I in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2251(a). GILBERT d(d in fact produce a pornographic 

9 video of John Doe I, the content of which was along the lines of the videos described 

10 above. GILBERT used a video recorder that had traveled in interstate or foreign 

11 commerce, GILBERT knew that John Doe I was a minor, and GILBERT deliberately 

12 created a visual depiction of John Doe 1 engaged in sexually explicit conduct. 

13 h. In 2007, GILBERT transported four minor male victims, John Doe 1 and 

14 three of his friends, from Washington State to Whistler, British Columbia, Canada. One 

1s of GILBERT's dominant purposes in transporting these victims to Canada was to engage 

16 in iUegal sexual conduct with the victims, namely, GILBERT intended to produce 

11 pornographic videos of the victims in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 225l(a). GILBERT used a 

JS video recorder that had traveled in interstate or foreign commerce, GILBERT knew that 

19 the victims were minors, and GILBERT deliberately created a visual depiction of the 

20 victims engaged in sexually explicit conduct along the lines of the other videos described 

21 above. 

22 Obstruction of justice char&es 

23 i. Qn October 30, 2007, GILBERT learned that he was being investigated by 

24 law enforcement. GILBERT soon learned that the subject of the investigation was child 

2s abuse, child molestation, and production of child pornography. GILBERT knew that the 

26 evidence would prove that he committed these crimes. GILBERT knowingly and 

27 intentionaUy set out to obstruct the investigation and eventua_l prosecution of these crimes. 

28 GILBERT repeatedly attempted to tamper with John Doe l. GILBERT's goals were: (1) 
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to prevent John Doe l from telling law enforcement the truth about GILBERT' s crimes; 

2 (2) to prevent John Doe 1 from testifying at trial; and (3) to convince John Doe 1 to make 

3 false statements in a legal proceeding that would support GILBERT's efforts to suppress 

4 evidence seized during the investigation. 

s j. GILBERT was charged in federal court in this case on November 2, 2007. 

6 From that point on, GILBERT knew that he was the subject of a federal criminal 

7 proceeding before the·United States District Court for the Western District of 

s Washington, and his attempts to tamper with John Doe l :were aimed at (1) corruptly 

9 persuading John Doe I to lie, or to refuse to testify, in that proceeding, and (2) to prevent 

10 John Doe l from communicat~~mformation to federal agents and federal judicial 

11 officers in connection with that proceedingf. 

12 k. GILBERT made several attempts to tamper with John Doe I in the manner 

13 described above. In January of 2008, GILBERT wrote a letter to John Doe I. GILBERT 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

2S 

26 

27 

28 

arranged for a third party to meet with John Doe I and convey the contents of the letter to 

him, The letter encouraged John Doe I to make false statements to the federal judge in 

the context of the federal criminal case. GILBERT believed that these false statements 

would support an effort by defense to have the search warrant declared invalid and the 0-) 

critical evidence suppressed. As an i11ducemea., GILBERT offe1ed J6hn Doe I a /)1 ~ 
fin~eial r.wafti. In February of 2008, GILBERT wrote another letter to the third party 

he had previously used to contact John Doe l. In the letter, GILBERT instructed the third 

paJ'!Y about hpw to l\l)prOi\ch John Doe I anti ee!Winee llim iwt io lestifJ tnstldun,- to the 
'I i a,.. J. ( drt 111 tt( F' IJ i,., t " 1tfl/, I\~ 

~~~e-ft'M cooperate with federal agents, in the pending criminal case regarding the 

federal offense of production of child pornography. GILBERT told the third party to 

mention to John Doe I an incident in which one of John Doe l's :friends was charged with 

stealing a television from GILBERT. The third party was to tell John Doe 1 that 

GILBERT was wi1ling to falsely tell the police that the friend had permission to take the 

television. GILBERT hoped that, in return for his willingness to lie to protect John J?oe 
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l's friend, John Doe I would stop cooperating with the federal investigation and 

2 prosecution of the case against GILBERT. 

3 

4 

7. Sentencing. 

Pursuant to Rule l l(c)(l)(C) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, the 

s parties acknowledge and agree that the appropriate sentence-of imprisonment to be 

6 imposed by the Court at the time of sentencing should be within the range of 228 to 300 

7 months, to be followed by supervised release for life. If the sentencing court rejects the 

8 agreement of the parties and seeks to impose a sentence outside the agreed upon 

9 sentencing range, both the defendant and the United States reserve the right to withdraw 

10 from this agreement pursuant to Rule l l(c)(l)(C) of the Federal Rules of Criminal 

11- Procedure and to proceed to trial. No other agreement has been made with regard to the 

12 imposition of the sentence in this matter, and the parties understand that the Court retains 

13 full discretion to impose a sentence within the range agreed to above. 

14 8. Presentation of Evidence at Sentencing. The Government agrees to the 

15 following restrictions on the evidence that it will present in support of its sentencing 

16 recommendation: (I) the Government will not present any videos, excerpts from videos, 

17 or stills from videos, unless requested by the Court; and (2) the Government will not 

18 present the document it has marked as trial Exhibit 75 (and sub-exhibits), unless 

19 requested by the Court. 

20 With respect to (I), the Government is free to describe videos in as much detail as 

21 it wishes. Furthermore, if Defendant disputes the accuracy of the Government's 

22 description of a video, the parties agree to request that a judicial officer of this District, 

23 other than the sentencing judge, review the video at issue and report to the sentencing 

24 judge about whether the Government's description is accurate. 

2s Defendant acknowledges and understands that this Paragraph will not bar the 

26 Government from providing whatever infonnation it is required to provide to the United 

27 States Probation Office. 
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9. Non-Prosecution of Additional Offenses. As part of this Plea Agreement, 

2 the United States Attorney's Office for the Western District of Washington agrees to 

3 move to dismiss the remaining counts in the Indictment at the time of sentencing and not 

4 to prosecute Defendant for any additional offenses known to it as of the time of this 

s Agreement that are based upon evidence in its possession at this time, or that arise out of 

6 the conduct giving rise to this investigation. In this regard, Defendant recognizes that the 

7 United States has agreed not to prosecute all of the criminal charges that the evidence 

8 establishes were committed by Defendant solely because of the promises made by 

9 Defendant in this Agreement. Defendant acknowledges and agrees, however, that for 

10 purposes ofprep~g the Presentence Report, the United States Attorney's Office will 

11 provide the United States Probation Office with evidence of all relevant conduct 

12 committed by Defendant. 

13 The United States Attorney's Office for the Western District of Washington also 

14 agrees not to prosecute any other person based upon evidence in its possession at this 

JS time, or that arise out of the conduct giving rise to this investigation, relating to witness 

16 tampering, obstruction of justice, or related offenses, in connection with this case. 

11 Defendant agrees and acknowledges that any charges to be dismissed before or at 

18 the time of sentencing were substantially justified in light of the evidence available to the 

19 United States, were not vexatious, frivolous or taken in bad faith, and do not provide 

20 Defendant with a basis for any future claims under the "Hyde Amendment," Pub.L. No. 

21 105-119 (1997). 

22 10. Voluntariness of Plea. Defendant acknowledges that he has entered into 

23 this Plea Agreement freely and voluntarily, and that no threats or promises, other than the 

24 promises contained in this Plea Agreement, were made to induce Defendant to enter these 

2s pleas-of guilty. 

26 11. Statute of Limitations. In the event that this Agreement is not accepted by 

27 the Court for any reason, or Defendant has breached. any of the terms of this Plea 

28 Agreement, the statute of limitations shall be deemed to have been tolled from the date of 
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J the Plea Agreement to: (1) 30 days following the date of non-acceptance of the Plea 

2 Agreement by the Court; or (2) 30 days following the date on which a breach of the Plea 

3 Agreement by Defendant is discovered by the United States Attorney's Office. 

4 12. Post-Plea Conduct. Defendant understands that the terms of this Plea 

5 Agreement apply only to conduct that occurred prior to the execution of this Agreement. 

6 If, after the date of this Agreement, Defendant should engage in illegal conduct, or 

7 conduct that is in violation of his conditions of release or confinement (examples of 

8 which include~ but are not limited to: obstruction of justice, failure to appear for a court 

9 proceeding, criminal conduct while pending sentencing, and false statements to law 

10 enforcement agents, the Pretrial Services Officer, Probation Officer or Court), the United 

l l States is free under this Agreement to seek a sentence that takes such conduct into 

12 consideration. Such a sentence could include, to the extent the United States Sentencing 

13 Guidelines are applicable, a sentencing enhancement or upward departure. 

14 13. Forfeiture of Property: Defendant agrees to forfeit to the United States 

15 immediately all of his right, title and interest in any property, real or personal, used or 

16 intended to be used, to commit or to promote the commission of the offense of Sexual 

17 Exploitation of a Child.in the Production of Child Pornography and any property 

18 traceable to such property, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253(aX3), 

19 including the following properties: 

20 a. One (l) 2004 blue Lexus GX470, bearing Washington license plate 

21 029RYB, VIN JTJBT20X9400351 l 5; 

22 b. One (1) 2006 white Ford Fl50 pick-up, Washington license plate A68898Z, 

23 VIN 1FTRF12206NB15476; 

24 c. One ( 1) 1981 Bell 206B-III helicopter bearing tail number N325JR and 

2s serial number 3296, and all flight logs and maintenance logs associated with this aircraft; 

26 d. One (1) 1968 Cessna Al85E Float Plane, Tail #N22I0T, Serial #185-1362, 

27 and all flight logs and maintenance logs associated with this aircraft; 
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e. One (1) 2003 Sea Ray Boat, Model 185BR, bearing license number 

2 WN8212NM, Boat Hull #SERV5716E303185BR3560 and One Shore Land'r trailer, 

3 Washington license plate 0059RG, VIN IMDJ2JR163A248710; 

4 f. Real property located at 2901 211th Avenue East, Lake Tapps, Washington 

s 98391, parcel numbers 8996010100, its buildings, improvements, appurtenances, 

6 fixtures, attachments and easements, more particularly described as: Lot 10 ofTapps 

7 Island Division No. 1, according to the Plat thereof recorded in volume 48 of Plats at 

s pages 30 to 34, inclusive, records of Pierce County, Washington; and, 

9 g. Real property located at 2901 211th Avenue East, Lake Tapps, Washington 

10 98391, parcel numbers 8996010110, its buildings, improvements, appurtenances, fixtures, 

11 attachments and easements, more particularly described as: Lot 11 of Tapps Island 

12 Division No. 1, according to Plat recorded in Book 48 of Plats at pages 30 to 34, 

13 inclusive, records of Pierce County, Washington~ 

14 h. One (1) Sony Digital Handicam Digital 8 cam corder, model: 

1s DCR-TRV250, sin: 388947; 

16 1. One (1) Sony Video 8 Handycam cam corder, model: model: CCD-TR40, 

11 sin: 3009669; 

18 j. One (1) Averatec laptop computer, model: 5500 series, sin obliterated; 

19 k. One (1) Fry's Intel Pentium 4 computer tower, model: FS7470, sin:_ 

20 747FSX340000296; 

21 I. One (1) Averatec Notebook computer, model: 2200 series, sin partially 

22 obliterated, starting with NW04CE06040; 

23 m. One ( 1) Seagate Medalist 13640 hard drive, model: ST3 I 3640A, sin: 

24 7 AE054NA; 

25 

26 n. One (1) Western Digital WD1600 Enhanced IDE hard drive, model: 

21 WD1600BB-00DAA0, sin: WMACK2069917; 

28 
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o. One (1) Western Digital WD400 Enhanced IDE hard drive, model: 

2 WD40QJB.00ENA0, s/n: WCAD19728957; 

3 p. One (1) Western Digital WD1600 Enhanced IDE hard drive, model: 

4 WD l 600JB-75GVC0, sin: WCAL96008970; and 

q. One (I) MX 1000 Camera tripod. s 

6 Defendant agrees to forfeit to the United States immediately all of his right, title 

7 and interest in any visual depiction described in Title 18, United States Code, Section 

s 2251, or any book, magazine, periodical, film, videotape or other matter which contains 

9 any such visual depiction, which was produced, transported, mailed, shipped, or received 

10 in violation of this chapter, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253(a)(l), 

11 including the following properties: 

12 a. Any and all images of child pornography, in whatever fonn and however 

13 stored, including but not limited to, those store4 on zip disks, CDs/DVDs, video cassette 

14 tapes, and floppy disks. 

15 Defendant agrees to forfeit to the United States immediately all of his right, title 

16 and interest in any property, real or personal, used to commit or to facilitate the 

11 commission of the violation of Transportation of a Minor to Engage in Illegal Sexual 

18 Activity, and any property traceable to such property, pursuant to Title 18, United States 

19 Code, Section 2428(b)(l)(A), including the following property: 

20 a. One (1) 2004 blue Lexus GX470, bearing Washington license plate 

21 029RYB, VIN JTJBT20X940035115. 

22 Defendant agrees to fully assist the United States in the forfeiture of the listed· 

23 assets, including but not limited to: surrendering title and executing any documents 

24 necessary to effectuate such forfeiture; assisting in bringing any assets located outside the 

25 United States within the jurisdiction of the United States; and taking whatever steps are 

26 necessary to ensure that assets subject to forfeiture are not sold, disbursed, wasted, 

27 hidden, or otherwise made unavailable for forfeiture. Defendant further agrees to 
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1 withdraw an claim(s) to the listed properties in the related civil forfeiture action, United 

2 . States v. One 2004 Blue Lexus, GX470, et al., Docket No. C08-5084BHS. 

3 The United States agrees that once the preliminary order of forfeiture is entered, 

4 forfeiting the defendant's interest in the above-listed assets, the government will negotiate 

s with counsel representing the defendant in the related civil forfeiture case in this district 

6 to attempt to achieve the objective of applying the assets, or proceeds from the sale of the 

7 assets, for the benefit of the victims of the crimes to which the defendant is pleading 

8 guilty and any related crimes, with the exception of the visual depictions, or those 

9 electronic items containing visual depictions, being forfeited to the United States. In 

Io addition, the government will seek to obtain all necessary approvals to achieve the goal of 

11 utilizing the forfeited assets to compensate the victims of the defendant's crimes, in lieu of 

12 obtaining final orders of forfeiture for the assets. The defendant in tum will take all steps 

13 necessary to ensure that these assets in fact are utilized for the benefit of the victims and 

14 will not go back to him or any of his relatives, including the removal of any liens or 

ls interests in the assets that currently exist in favor of any of his relatives. 

16 14. Interdt:J)endence of Plea Agreements. The parties agree that this Plea 

11 Agreement shall be conditioned upon the defendant entering a plea in Pierce County 

18 Superior Court in the matter of State of Washington v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, cause 

19 number 07-1-05618-3, as set forth in the Memorandum attached as Appendix A to this 

20 plea agreement. 

2 J Defendant understands, therefore, that this Agreement is pa.rt of a package plea 

22 agreement with the United States and the State of Washington, to wit, if Defendant does 

23 not enter into, and£:' ~ }hursuant to the respective Plea Agreements in Federal 

24 District Court and .'1"~ounty Su~rior Court, or if Defendant subsequently seeks to 

25 withdraw from either guilty plea, then the United States will withdraw from the instant 

26 Plea Agreement and will seek an indictment against Defendant for all crimes for which 

21 the United States has sufficient evidence. Defendant's plea of guilty in State of 

28 Washington v. Weldon Marc Gilbert is integral to the instant plea agreement. If the State 
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J of Washington fails to abide by the agreement set forth in Appendix A, the defendant may 

2 withdraw his federal plea agreement. 

3 15. Accg,tance of Responsibility. The United States acknowledges that 

4 Defendant has assisted the United States by timely notifying the authorities of his 

s intention to plead guilty, thereby permitting the United States to avoid preparing for trial 

6 and pennitting the Court to allocate its resources efficiently. If at the time of sentencing, 

7 the United States remains· satisfied that Defendant has accepted responsibility, then it will 

8 recommend a sentence that takes this acceptance of responsibility into consideration. 

9 Defendant understands and agrees that the United States will base its recommendation on 

10 factors set forth in the United States Sentencing Guidelines, including Section 3El .1. 

)1 16. Waiver of Appeal. As part of this Plea Agreement and on the condition that 

12 the Court imposes a tenn of imprisonment that does not exceed the sentencing range set 

J 3 forth in this Agreement, Defendant waives to the full extent of the law: 

14 a. any right conferred by Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 to 

ts appeal the sentence, including any restitution order imposed; and 

16 b. any right to bring a collateral attack against the conviction and 

17 sentence, including any restitution order imposed, except as it may relate to the 

18 effectiveness of legal representation 

19 Furthermore, this waiver does not preclude Defendant from bringing an 

20 appropriate motion pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 2241, to address the conditions of his 

21 confinement or the decisions of the Bureau of Prisons regarding the execution of his 

22 sentence. 

23 If Defendant breaches this Plea Agreement at any time by appealing or collaterally 

24 attacking (except as to effectiveness of legal representation) the conviction or sentence in 

25 any way, the United States may prosecute Defendant for any counts, including those with 

26 mandatory minimum sentences, that were dismissed or not charged pursuant to this Plea 

21 Agreement. 
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17. Completeness of Agreement. The United States and Defendant 

2 acknowledge that these terms constitute the entire Plea Agreement between the parties. 

3 This Agreement only binds the United States Attorney's Office for the Western District of 

4 Washington. It does not bind any other United States Attorney's Office or any other 

s office or agency of the United States, or any state or local prosecutor. 

: Dated wv-(day of t+i ~\ \ , 2009. 
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Pierce County 

Memo 

Tbr Asst. U.S. Attomey Roger Rogoff 
fnNN Patrick J. Hammond 
o.tae 4/23/2009 

Gerald A. Horne 
Prosecuting Attorney 

be State v. Weldon Marc Gilbert. Pierce County Cause No. 07-1-05618-3 

la, 002/002 

The purpose of this memorandum is to outline the Pierce County Prosecutor's Office plea 
agreement in Mr. Gilbert's case in State court Because the primary focus of the plea negotiations 
has been on Mr. Gilbert's federal case, only the broadest parameters of the agreement in State 
court can be outlined at this time. However, this should be sufficient to enable the federaJ plea 
agreement to go forward. 

If Mr. Gilbert pleads auillY under the terms negotiated wi\h federal prosecutors on April 23, 2009, 
the Pierce Co\Dlty Prosecutor's Office will qree to file an Amended Information in which Mr. 
Gilbert is charged wilh multiple offenses, the most serious of which will be Child Molestation in 
the First Degree. The Amended lnfonnation will not include any allegations of Child Rape, in any 
degree. The Amended Information will result in Mr. Gilbert having ari offender score of nine, 
which will eive him a determinate sentencing range of 149-198 months in prison. The State will 
recommend that Mr. Gilbert receive a sentence of 198 months in prison, to run concurrently with 
the sentence Mr. Gilbert receives in Federal Court. Mr. Gilbert's term of community custody has 
not yet been detennined. However, the State will recommend the conditions of probation that are 
typically included in Appendix "H" (e.g. deviancy treatment, restrictions on cont.act with minors. 
etc.). 

The State wm recommend the typical Jegal financial obligations associated with a case of this 
nat\1?'8, including the crime victim• a penalty assessment, coun costs, DNA assessment, and 
restirution. The Amended Information filed in State Court as part of this pica agreement will 
contemplate all of the known victims who have come to light in the course of the investigation and 
prosecution of Mr. Oilbert. for whom the statute of limitations has not already nm. 

File . 

132 



,· 

2 

3 

4 

5 

07- 1-05618-3 39456489 SRSP 

\, 

11-01-1 2 

6 SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PIERCE COUNTY 

7 ST A TE OF WASHINGTON, 

8 

9 

10 

11 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

vs. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

Plaintiff, CAUSE NO. 07-1-05618-3 

Defendant. 

STATE'S RESPONSE TO 
DEFENDANTS MOTION TO DISMISS 
PURSUANT TO RCW 10.43.040 

MOTION 

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, State of Washington, by and through Pierce County 

Prosecuting Attorney Mark E. Lindquist, by and through his Deputy Tim Lewis, respectfully 

moves this Court to deny the Defendant's motion to dismiss pursuant to RCW I 0.43.040. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On April 23, 2009, the Defendant pied guilty in the United States District Court for the 

Western District of Washington to thirty-one counts of Sexual Exploitation of a Child in the 

Production of Child Pornography, contrary to 18 U.S.C. §§ 225l{a) and {e) and 2256; two counts 

of Transportation of a Minor to Engage in Illegal Sexual Activity, contrary to 18 U.S.C. §§ 

2423(a) and 2; one count of Obstruction of Justice, contrary to 18 U.S.C. § 1512(bX3); and one 

count of Obstruction of Justice, contrary to 18 U.S.C. § 1512(b)(l). The Defendant was 

sentenced on November 16, 2009. 
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The Defendant is presently charged in the Superior Court of the State of Washington, in 

and for Pierce County, with three counts of Rape of a Child in the Second Degree, contrary to 

RCW 9A.44.076; three counts of Rape of a Child in the Third Degree, contrary to RCW 

9A.44.079; one count of Child Molestation in the First Degree, contrary to RCW 9A.44.083; five 

counts of Child Molestation in the Second Degree, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086; one count of 

Child Molestation in the Third Degree, contrary to RCW 9A.44.089; and one count of 

Possession of Depictions of Minor Engaged in Sexually Explicit Conduct. contrary to RCW 

9.68A.070. 

ARGUMENT 

Pursuant to the doctrine of dual sovereignty, neither the Fifth Amendment to the United 

States Constitution nor Article I § 9 of the Washington State Constitution, prohibits successive 

prosecutions at the hands of separate sovereigns so long as each sovereign punishes the offender 

no more than once. State v. Kenney. 83 Wash. 441 (1915); Petite v. United States, 361 U.S. 529 

(1960). However, individual states may abandon this doctrine statutorily. State v. Caliguri, 99 

Wash.2d 501,512 (1983). The State of Washington did precisely that in 1909, via RCW 

I 0.43.040, which abrogates the doctrine of duaJ sovereignty in this state. Caliguri at 51 1. In 

other words, a criminal defendant in the State of Washington may not be prosecuted when that 

same defendant has already been prosecuted elsewhere for the same offense. State v. Ivie, 136 

Wash.2d 173, 179 (1998). Here, the Defendant's argument fails. 

In order for the Defendant to establish that the current prosecution is barred by RCW 

10.43.040, he must first estabJish that he is being prosecuted for the same "act or omission" for 

which he has already been prosecuted elsewhere. Caliguri at 512. In that the tenn "act or 

omission" is not defined by RCW 10.43.040, our Supreme Court has held that since the statute 
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pertains to the concept of double jeopardy, courts should look to double jeopardy jurisprudence 

to define the term. Caligwi at 512-514. Under Washington State law, a defendant is placed in 

double jeopardy only if the offenses for which he has been previously, and is presently being, 

prosecuted are identical in fact. Caliguri at 514. The fact that the State may rely upon or utilize 

the same evidence produced in the prior prosecution is not dispositive. State v. Rudy, 105 

Wash.2d 921,928, (1986). 

The facts relied upon by the State in the present prosecution of the Defendant are not 

identical to those utilized in forming the factual basis for his federal convictions. The facts 

underlying the Defendant's convictions for thirty-one counts of Sexual Exploitation of a Child in 

the Production of Child Pornography required that the Defendant's underlying purpose for 

having minors engaging in sexually explicit conduct was for production of visual depictions of 

such conduct in the form videotape and digital video discs. No such purpose underlies the 

State's charges as listed in counts one through thirteen of the presently filed Corrected Amended 

Infonnation. As to Count XIV, Possession of Depictions of Minor Engaged in Sexually Explicit 

Conduct, the charge is predicated upon the possession of depictions of minors engaged in 

sexually explicit conduct not included or named as victims in the federal convictions. 

CONCLUSION 

In that the facts underlying the basis for the charges presently pending against the 

Defendant in this Court are not identical in fact to the charges for which the Defendant has 

previously been convicted in federal court, the Defendant cannot establish jeopardy as defined by 

the double jeopardy jurisprudence of this state, and is therefore not entitled to dismissal under 
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RCW 10.43.040. For the foregoing reasons, and pursuant to the cited authority of law, the State 

respectfully moves this Court to deny the Defendant's motion to dismiss. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 31 s1 day of October, 2012. 

ti 
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MARK LINDQUIST 
Prosecuting Attorney ,--~ By. (!? ...... 

. 4. 

Tim Lewis 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 
WSB # 33767 
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

VS. 

GILBERT, WELDON MARC 

Cause Number: 07-1-05618-3 
MEMORANDUM OF 
JOURNAL ENTRY 

Page: 2 of 9 
Judge: 
KATHERINE M. STOLZ 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDING 
Judicial AssistanflClerk: LINDA SHIPMAN Court Reporter:KIMBERL Y ONEILL 
Start DatefTime: 10/22/12 10:05 AM 

October 22, 2012 10:04 AM Court convened on the day set for jury trial with State of 

Washington represented by co-counsel Patrick Hammond and Tim Lewis; defendant pro se 

present (in custody) with standby counsel Ann Stenberg also present. Scheduling issues 

addressed. Case is called and recessed until 10/29/12. 10:10 AM Court at recess. 

End DatefTime: 10/22/1210:10 AM 

Judicial Assistant/Clerk: LINDA SHIPMAN 
Start Date/Time: 10/29/121:33 PM 

Court Reporter.KIMBERL y ONEILL 

October 29, 2012 01 :33 PM Court reconvened with State of Washington represented by 

co-counsel Patrick Hammond and Tim Lewis; defendant pro se present (in custody) with 

standby counsel Ann Stenberg also present. 01 :35 PM Defendant addresses the court; 

court addresses the defendant. 01 :39 PM Discussions re: proposed juror questionnaire; 

defendant's objections noted for the record. 02:16 PM Defendant addresses the court; 

response by the court. 02:23 PM Court at recess. 03:30 PM Court reconvened with 

counsel (T. Williams and P. Hammond) present; defendant present pro se (in custody); 

standby counsel A. Stenberg also present. Colloquy between defendant and the court. 

03:35 PM Plaintiff/defendant are in agreement with the final draft of the juror questionnaire. 

03:37 PM Defendant addresses the court regarding his motion to sever (double jeopardy 

motion). 03:40 PM Court at recess. 03:45 PM Court reconvened with counsel (T. Williams 

and P. Hammond) present; defendant present pro se (in custody); standby counsel A. 

Stenberg also present. 03:46 PM Order re: media coverage is addressed; the same is 

signed and filed. 03:49 PM Scheduling issues addressed. 03:51 PM Further 

discussions/argument between counsel/defendant/ court re: newty disclosed expert witness. 

04:01 PM Scheduling issues addressed. 04:00 PM Court at recess until Tuesday, 

10/30/12 at 9:30 a.m. 
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STATE OF WASHINGTON 

vs. 

GILBERT, WELDON MARC 

Cause Number: 07-1-05618-3 
MEMORANDUM OF 
JOURNAL ENTRY 

Page: 3 of 9 
Judge: 
KATHERINE M. STOLZ 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDING 

End DatefTlme: 10/29/12 4:06 PM 

Judicial Assistant/Clerk: LINDA SHIPMAN 
Start Date/Time: 10/30/12 9:41 AM 

Court Reporter:KIMBERL Y ONEILL 

October 30, 2012 09:40 AM Court reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T. Lewis and 

standby counsel A. Stenberg) present; defendant present in custody. Scheduling issues 

addressed. 09:43 AM Colloquy between defendant and the court. 09:43 AM Objection by 

defendant noted for the record. 09:47 AM Court at recess. 10:04 AM Court reconvened 

with counsel (P. Hammond, T. Lewis and standby counsel A. Stenberg) present; defendant 

present in custody. 1 O: 19 AM Jury box is filled with Jurors 1-30; prospective jurors are 

sworn (Oath on voir dire). Court instructs jurors 1-30 to look at question #45 on the 

questionnaire and mark if necessary. Jurors 1-30 excused to jury administration to 

complete the questionnaire at which time they are to return to jury administration on Wed, 

10/31/12 at 9:30 a.m. 10:24 AM Jury box is filled with Jurors 31-60; prospective jurors are 

sworn (Oath on voir dire). 10:30 AM Court instructions jurors 31-60 to look at question #45 

on the questionnaire and mark if necessary. 10:39 AM Jurors #31-60 excused to jury 

administration to complete the questionnaire at which time they are to return to jury 

administration on Wed, 10/31/12 at 9:30 a.m. 10:40 AM Court at recess. 

End Date/Time: 10/30/1210:41 AM 

Judicial Assistant/Clerk: LINDA SHIPMAN 
Start Date!Tlme: 10/30/12 3:28 PM 

Court Reporter:KIMBERL Y ONEILL 

October 30, 2012 03:40 PM Court reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T. lewis and 

standby counsel A. Stenberg) present; defendant present in custody. Scheduling issues 

addressed. 03:45 PM Court admonishes counsel/defendant to not conduct any 

investigation regarding any jurors. 03:46 PM Court at recess until 9:30 a.m. on Wed. 
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDING 
10/31/12. 

End DatefTime: 10130112 3:46 PM 

Judicial Assistant/Clerk: LINDA SHIPMAN 
Start Daten-lme: 10/31/12 9:36 AM 

Court Reporter:KIMBERL Y ONEILL 

October 31, 2012 09:36 AM Court reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T. Lewis and 

standby counsel A Stenberg); defendant present in custody. 09:37 AM Plaintiff and 

defense motions to excuse jurors for cause: Juror #49 excused for cause by agreement. 

09:41 AM Juror #3 excused for cause by agreement. 09:42 AM Juror #7 excused for cause 

by agreement. 09:43 AM Juror #9 excused for cause by agreement. 09:43 AM Juror #12 

excused for cause by agreement. 09:44 AM Juror #17 excused for cause by agreement. 

09:45 AM Juror #25 excused for cause by agreement. 09:46 AM Juror #27 excused for 

cause by agreement. 09:4 7 AM Juror #48 excused for cause by agreement. 10:00 AM 

Juror #24 excused for cause. 10:09 AM Juror #43 excused for cause by agreement. 

10:16 AM Juror #56 excused for cause by agreement. 10:39 AM Court at recess. 10:51 

AM Court reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T . Lewis and standby counsel A 

Stenberg) present; defendant present in custody. 10:53 AM Juror #2 questioned 

individually; excused until Thurs, 11/1 at 9:30 a.m. 11:02 AM Juror #4 questioned 

individually; excused until Thurs, 11/1 at 9:30 a.m. 11:11 AM Juror #13 questioned 

individually; defense motion to excuse for cause; motion denied; cautioned and excused 

until Thurs, 11/1 at 9:30 a.m. 11:25 AM Juror #15 questioned individually; cautioned and 

excused until Thurs, 11/1 at 9:30 a.m. 11:36 AM Jury #16 questioned individually; 

cautioned and excused until Thurs, 11 /1 at 9:30 a.m. 11 :37 AM Discussions regarding 

other potential juror conflicts. 11 :59 AM Court at recess. 

End DatefTime: 10/31/1212:00 PM 
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDING 
Judicial Assistant/Clerk: LINDA SHIPMAN Court Reporter.KIMBERLY ONEILL 
Start Datemme: 10/31/12 1:40 PM 

October 31, 2012 01:40 PM Court reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T. Lewis and 

standby counsel A. Stenberg) present; defendant present in custody. Individual questioning 

of potential jurors continues. Juror #19 questioned individually; Juror #19 excused for cause 

by agreement. 02:00 PM Juror #30 questioned individually; defense motion to excuse for 

cause; Juror #30 excused for cause. 02:29 PM Court at recess. 02:41 PM Court 

reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T. Lewis and standby counsel A. Stenberg) 

present; defendant present in custody. 02:42 PM Juror #31 questioned individually; 

defense motion to excuse for cause; motion denied; cautioned and excused until Thurs, 

11/1 at 9:30 a.m. 03:07 PM Juror #33 questioned individually; Juror #33 excused for cause 

by agreement. 03:24 PM Juror #54 questioned individually; Juror #54 excused for cause by 

agreement. 03:36 PM Court at recess. 

End OatefTime: 10/31/12 3:36 PM 

Judicial Assistant/Clerk: LINDA SHIPMAN 
Start DatefTime: 11101/12 9:39 AM 

Court Reporter.KIMBERLY ONEILL 

November 01, 2012 09:38 AM Court reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T. Lewis and 

standby counsel A. Stenberg) present; defendant present in custody. Individual questioning 

continues. 09:42 AM Juror #20 questioned individually; defense moves to excuse for cause; 

Juror #20 excused for cause. 09:58 AM State's motion to excuse Juror #37; Juror #37 

excused for cause. 10:01 AM Juror #38 questioned individually; defense motion to excuse 

for cause; motion denied. 10:13 AM Colloquy re: standby counsel. 10:17 AM Juror #38 

continued questioning individually; defense motion to excuse for cause denied. 1 O: 19 AM 

P. Hammond addresses the court re: voir dire procedure and requests the court to 

admonish the voir dire jury panel. 10:27 AM Court at recess. 10:43 AM Court reconvened 

with counsel (P. Hammond, T. Lewis and standby counsel A. Stenberg) present; defendant 
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDING 

present in custody. 10:43 AM Jury box is filled. Court admonishes the jurors to not discuss 

any specifics re: this case. 10:45 AM Voir dire - P. Hammond. 11 :03 AM Voir dire - pro se 

defendant (Y-1. Gilbert). 11 :23 AM Court addresses the defendant pro se regarding his voir 

dire questioning. 11 :24 AM 2nd round voir dire - T. Lewis. 11 :50 AM 2nd round voir dire -

pro se defendant (W. Gilbert). 11 :58 AM Voir dire jury panel cautioned and excused until 

1 :30 and should report to jury administration. 12:00 PM Juror #4 excused for cause. 

12:02 PM Court at recess. 

End Date/Time: 11/01/12 12:02 PM 

Judicial Assistant/Clerk: LINDA SHIPMAN 
Start Date/Time: 11/01/121:31 PM 

Coun Reporter.KIMBERL y ONEILL 

November 01, 2012 01:31 PM Court reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T. Lewis and 

standby counsel A. Stenberg) present; defendant present in custody. 01 :33 PM Defense 

motion to exclude voir dire jury panel by pro se defendant (YI/. Gilbert); argument by 

defendant prose and DPA P. Hammond; motion denied. 01 :36 PM Scheduling issues also 

addressed. 01 :47 PM Voir dire jury panel returns to courtoom. Court admonishes the voir 

dire jury panel to not discuss any specifics about this case during the voir dire process. 

01:49 PM Continued 2nd round voir dire - defendant pro se 0,N. Gilbert). 01:55 PM 3rd 

round voir dire - P. Hammond. 02:18 PM 3rd round voir dire - defendant pro se (W. 

Gilbert). 02:36 PM 4th round voir dire - T. Lewis. 02:44 PM 4th round voir dire -defendant 

pro se (W. Gilbert). 02:59 PM Voir dire jury panel cautioned and excused until Monday, 

11/5/12 at 9:30 a.m. 03:02 PM Juror #36 excused for cause by agreement. 03:03-PM 
Juror #141 excused for cause by agreement. 03:06 PM Court at recess. 

End Date/Time: 11/01/12 3:06 PM 

Judicial Assistant/Clerk: LINDA SHIPMAN 
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDING 
Start DatelTlme: 11/02/12 1 :43 PM 

November 02, 2012 01:42 PM Court reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T. Lewis and 

standby counsel A. Stenberg) present; defendant present in custody. Case proceeds this 

afternoon with two motions: motion to recuse and motion to dismiss. 

01:44 PM Defense motion to recuse: Argument by defendant prose r.y./. Gilbert) and DPA 

P. Hammond; motion to recuse denied. 

01:53 PM Defense motion to dismiss: Argument by defendant prose (W. Gilbert) and DPA 

T. Lewis; court's ruling given - motion to dismiss denied. 

02:08 PM Court at recess. 02:34 PM Court reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T. 

Lewis and standby Ann Stenberg) present; defendant present in custody. Scheduling 

issues addressed. Colloquy re: defense motions in limine; motions in limine will be argued 

11/5/12 at 1:30 p.m. 02:44 PM A. Stenberg addresses the court re: logistics; colloquy. 

02:48 PM Court at recess until Monday, 11/5/12 at 9:15 a.m. 

End Date/Time: 11/02/12 2:49 PM 

Judicial Assistant/Clerk: LINDA SHIPMAN 
Start Date/Time: 11/05/12 9:39 AM 

Court Reporter:KIMBERL Y ONEILL 

November 05, 2012 09:38 AM Court reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T. Lewis and 

standby counsel A. Stenberg) present; defendant present in custody. Scheduling issues 

addressed. Peremptory procedures addressed. 09:42 AM Defendant motions for 

additional peremptories; motion denied. 09:50 AM Juror #44 questioned individually; State 

moves to remove Juror #44 for cause; Juror #44 excused for cause. 10:23 AM Vair dire 

jury panel returns to courtroom. Court questions Juror #39. 10:26 AM Peremptory 
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDING 

challenges taken. 11 :04 AM Jurors are sworn {oath) and impaneled to try this cause. 

11 :05 AM Preliminary cautionary instruction "open minds". 11 :OB AM Judge's preliminary 

instruction to jury {outline course of trial). 11: 17 AM Jury excused to the jury room. 11 :29 

AM Jury returns to courtroom. 11 :32 AM Jury cautioned and excused until Tuesday, 

11/6/12 at 9:15 a.m. 11:33 AM Court at recess. 

End Date/Time: 11/05/1211:33 AM 

Judicial Assistant/Clerk: LINDA SHIPMAN 
Start Date/Time: 11/05/12 1:38 PM 

Court Reporter:KIMBERL Y ONEILL 

November 05, 2012 01 :37 PM Court reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T. Lewis and 

standby counsel A. Stenberg) present; defendant present in custody. Defendant's motions 

in limine argued by pro se defendant and counsel; court's rulings given. 01 :56 PM 

Witnesses excluded. 02:35 PM Court addresses the defendant re: making any reference to 

representing himself. 02:37 PM Court at recess. 

End DatelTlme: 11/05/12 2:43 PM 

Judicial Assistant/Clerk: LINDA SHIPMAN 
Start Date/Time: 11/06/12 9:58 AM 

Court Reporter.KIMBERLY ONEILL 

November 06, 2012 09:58 AM Court reconvened with counsel (P. Hammond, T. Lewis and 

standby counsel A. Stenberg) present; defendant present in custody. Media issue is 

addressed. 09:59 AM DPAs P. Hammond and T. Lewis address the court. 10:01 AM 

Court comments. 10:01 AM T. Lewis continues to address the court re: proposed 

acceptance and filing of the 2nd Amended Information. 10:07 AM Court accepts the 2nd 

Amended Information. 10:08 AM Pleas of guilty entered. 10:09 AM Court proceeds with 

the reading of the Plea Agreement. 10:19 AM Court accepts the plea agreement. 10:25 

AM Court accepts the plea. Case proceeds to sentencing; court sentences the defendant. 
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDING 
10:40 AM Jury returns to open court. Jurors are discharged from this case. 10:55 AM 

Sentencing documents are signed and filed. The defendant is served with the no contact 

orders in open court. 11 :05 AM Court at recess. 

End Datemme: 11/06/1211:06 AM 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PfERCE COUNTY 

STATE OF WASHINGTON, 

vs 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

DOB: 8/26/1960 
PCN#: 539961888 

Plaintiff, CAUSENO 07-1-05618-3 

SECOND AMENDED [NFORMATION 

Defendant. 
SEX MALE 
SID#: 24227529 

COUNT! 

RACE: WHITE 
DOL#: UNKNOWN 

I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the authority 

of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2001 and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R K , have sexual contact with R.K., who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 

years old, and not mamed to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT II 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION TN THE SECOND DEG REE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 200 l and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 
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36 months older than R.K., have sexual contact with R.K., who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 

years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT III 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the cnme of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE SECONTI DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 200 I and the 13th day of March, 2003, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than R.K., have sexual contact with R K., who is at least I 2 years old but less than 14 

years old, and not married to the defendant and not JO a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and agamst the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT IV 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected JO respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, dunng the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than R.K ., have sexual contact with R.K., who is at least 14 years old but less than 16 

years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.089, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington 

COUNTY 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the cnme of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a senes of acts conne<:ted together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows· 
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That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than R.K., have sexual contact with R.K., who is at least 14 years old but less than 16 

years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.089, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT VI 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, m the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected m respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, m the State of Washington, during the period between the 

14th day of March, 2003 and the 13th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

48 months older than R.K, have sexual contact with R.K., who is at least 14 years old but less than 16 

years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.089, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNTVll 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION lN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC Gil..BERT, in the State of Washmgton, on or about the 27th day of 

October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 36 months older than E.K., have sexual 

contact with E.K., who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 years old, and not married to the defendant 

and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44 086, and 

against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington 

COUNT VIII 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 
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scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows· 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 6th 

day of April, 2007 and the 1st day of October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, bemg at least 36 

months older than C.F., have sexual contact with C.F., who 1s at least 12 years old but less than 14 years 

old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and digmty of the State of Washington. 

COUNT IX 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a cnme 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a smgle 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 6th 

day of April, 2007 and the I st day of October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 36 

months older than C.F., have sexual contact with C.F., who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 years 

old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNTX 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecutmg Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE TI-IlRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a sen es of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State ofWashmgton, during the period between the 

11th day of May, 2003 and the I 0th day of May, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 48 

months older than V.Z., have sexual contact with V.Z., who 1s at least 14 years old but less than 16 years 

old, and not married to the defendant and not m a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.089, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT XI 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION IN THE SECOND DEGREE, a cnme of the same or similar character, and/or a cnme 
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based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

20th day of March, 2004 and the 19th day of March, 2005, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 

36 months older than S.P., have sexual contact with S.P ., who is at least 12 years old but less than 14 

years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the 

defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington 

COUNT XII 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION fN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, during the period between the 

12th day of November, 2004 and the 11th day of November, 2006, did unlawfully and feloniously, being 

at least 36 months older than T.M., have sexual contact with T.M., who 1s at least 12 years old but less 

than 14 years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with 

the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and d1gn1ty of the State of Washington. 

COUNT XIII 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELOON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 

MOLESTATION TN THE SECOND DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 

based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that 1t would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, m the State of Washington, during the period between the 

12th day of November, 2004 and the I Ith day of November, 2006, did unlawfully and feloniously, bemg 

at least 36 months older than T.M., have sexual contact with TM., who is at least 12 years old but less 

than 14 years old, and not married to the defendant and not in a state registered domestic partnership with 

the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington. 

COUNT XIV 

And I, MARK LINDQUIST, Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the 

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse WELDON MARC GILBERT of the crime of CHILD 
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1 · MOLESTATION IN THE THIRD DEGREE, a crime of the same or similar character, and/or a crime 
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based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single 

scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time, place and occasion that it would be 

difficult to separate proof of one charge from proof of the others, committed as follows: 

That WELDON MARC GILBERT, in the State of Washington, on or about the 30th day of 

October, 2007, did unlawfully and feloniously, being at least 48 months older than J.C., have sexual 

contact with I.C , who is at least 14 years old but less than 16 years old, and not married to the defendant 

and not in a state registered domestic partnership with the defendant, contrary to RCW 9A 44 089, and 

against the peace and dignity of the State ofWashmgton. 

DATED this 5th day of November, 20 I 2. 

PIERCE COUNTY SHERIFF 
WA02700 

mac 
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-­FILED 
DEPT, 2 

\N OPEN coURT 

NO\J - 610\2 

Superior Court of Washington 
For Pierce County 

No 07-1-05618-3 

State of Washington 
Statement of Defendant on Plea of 
Guilty to Sex Offense Plaintiff 

vs. (STTDFG) 
Weldon Marc Gilbert 

Defendant 

My true name is: Weldon Marc Gilbert 

2. My age is: 52 4).la/v O . 
3. The last level of education I completed was College ';JI_ fl1- • 
4. I Have Been lnfonned and Fully Understand That: 

(a) I have the right to representation by a lawyer and if I cannot afford to pay for a lawyer, one 
will be provided at no expense to me. My lawyer's name is: 
Pro Se w/ Standby Counsel Ann Stenberci . 

(b) I am charged with the cnme(s) of· Child Molestation 2nd and 3rd Degree 
as set out m the amended Information, dated, 11/5/12 • a copy of which l hereby 
acknowledge previously receiving and reviewing with my lawyer. - ------..,,.r 

(Defendant's imtia 
The elements of D this crime 0 these crimes 
are as set out in the amended Tnfonnation, dated 11 /5/12 a copy of which I hereby 
acknowledge previously receiving and reviewing with my lawyer 

(Defendant's initials) 

--+?( ____ Additional counts are addressed in Attachment "B" 

s. I Understand I Have the Following Important Rights, and I Give Them Up by 
Pleading Guilty: 

(a) The right to a speedy and public trial by an impartial Jury in the county where the crime 
statement on Plea of Guilty to Sex Offense (STT0FG) - Page 1 of 9 
CrR 4 2{g) (212012) 
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COUNT 
NO 

I 

2 

3 

was allegedly committed; 

(b} The nght to remain silent before and during trial, and the right to refuse to testify against 
myself; 

(c) The nght at trial to hear and question the witnesses who testify against me; 

(d} The nght at trial to testify and to have witnesses testify for me. These witnesses can be 
made to appear at no expense to me, 

(e) The nght to be prcswned innocent unless the State proves the charge beyond a reasonable 
doubt or I enter a plea of guilty, 

(f) The nght to appeal a finding of guilt after a trial as well as other pre-trial motions such as 
time for trial challenges and suppression issues. 

6. In Considering the Consequences of My Guilty Plea, I Understand That: 

(a) Each crime with which I am charged carries a maximum sentence, a fine, and a 
Standard Sentence Range as follows· 

OFFENDER STANDARD RANGE PLUS TOTAL ACTIJAL COMMUNITY CUSTODY MAXIMUM 
SCORE ACTUAL CONFINEMENT Enhancements• CONFINEMENT (standard (Only appbcable for cnmes TERM AND 

(not mcludmg enhancements) range mcludmg committed on or after July I, FINE 
enhancement) 2000 For cnmes commmed 

pnor to July I, 2000 see 
paragraph 6(f}) 

39 87-116 Months 87-116 Months 36 Months 10yr/$20I 

39 87-116 Months 87-116 Months 36 Months 10yr/$20I 

39 87-116 Months 87-116 Months 36 Months 10yr/$20I 

• Each sentencing enhancement will run consecutJvely to all other parts of my entue sentence, mcludmg other enhancements 
and other counts The enhancement codes are: (F) Fucann, RCW 9 94A S33, (D) Other deadly weapon, RCW 9.94A S33, 
(SM) Sexual Mouvauon, RCW 9 94A 533(8), (SCF) Sexual conduct with a child for a fee, RCW 9 94A 533(9), (CSG) 
Cnmmal street gang mvolvmg minor, RCW 9 94A 533, (A£) Endangennent while attempting to elude. RCW 9 94A 533 

(b) The standard sentence range is based on the cnme charged and my criminal history. 
Cruninal history includes prior convictions and juvenile adjudications or convictions, 
whether in tins state, in federal court, or elsewhere. 

(c) The prosecuting attorney's statement ofmy criminal history is attached to this statement. 
Unless I have attached a different statement, I agree that the prosecuting attorney's 
statement 1s correct and complete. !fl have attached my own statement, I assert that it is 
correct and complete. If the prosecutor and I disagree about the computation of the 
offender score, I understand that this dispute will be resolved by the court at sentencing. I 
waive any right to challenge the acceptance of my guilty pl ea on the grounds that my 
offender score or standard range is lower than what is listed in paragraph 6(a). Ifl am 
convicted of any additional crimes between now and the time I am sentenced, r am 
obligated to tell the sentencingjudge about those convictions. 

(d) If I am convicted of any new cnmes before sentencing, or if any additional criminal history 
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CrR 4 2(g) (2/2012) 

153 



is discovered, both the standard sentence range and the prosecuting attorney's 
recommendation may increase Even so, my plea of guilty to this charge is binding on me. 
l cannot change my mind if additional criminal history is discovered even though the 
standard sentencing range and the prosecuting attorney's recommendation increase or a 
mandatory sentence of life imprisonment without the possibility of parole 1s required by 
law. 

( e) 1n addition to sentencing me to confinement, the Judge will order me to pay $500.00 as a 
victim's compensation fund assessment and any mandatory fines or penalties that apply to 
my case. If this crime resulted in injury to any person or damage to or loss of property, the 
judge will order me to make restitution, unless extraordinary circumstances exist which 
make restitution inappropriate. The amount of restitution may be up to double my gain or 
double the victim's loss. The judge may also order that I pay a fine, court costs, attorney 
fees and the costs of incarceration. 

(f) For sex offenses committed prior to July 1. 2000: In addition to sentencing me to 
confinement, the judge may order me to serve up to one year of community custody if the 
total penod of confinement ordered is not more than 12 months. If the period of 
confinement is more than one year, the Judge will order me to serve three years of 
community custody or up to the period of earned early release, whichever 1s longer. During 
the period of community custody, I will be under the supervision of the Department of 
Corrections, and I will have restrictions and requirements placed upon me. 

For se:1 offenses committed on or after July 11 2000 but prior to September I. 2001: In 
addition to sentencing me to confinement, the judge may order me to serve up to one year 
of community custody if the total period of confinement ordered is not more than 12 
months. If the period of confinement is over one year, the judge will sentence me to 
community custody for 36 months or up to the period of earned release, whichever is 
longer. During the period of community custody to which I am sentenced, I will be under 
the supervision of the Department of Corrections, and I will have restrictions and 
requirements placed upon me. 

For sex offenses committed on or after September I. 2001: (i) Sentencing under RCW 
9.94A.507: If this offense is any of the offenses listed in subsections (aa) or (bb), below, 
the Judge will impose a maximum term of confinement consisting of the statutory 
maximum sentence of the offense and a minimum term of confinement either within the 
standard range for the offense or outside the standard range if an exceptional sentence is 
appropriate. The minimwn term of confinement that is imposed may be increased by the 
Jndetermmate Sentence Review Board if the Board determines by a preponderance of the 
evidence that it is more likely than not that I will commit sex offenses if released from 
custody. In addition to the period of confinement, J will be sentenced to community 
custody for any period oft1me I am released from total confinement before the expiration 
of the maximum sentence. During the period of community custody I will be under the 
supervision of the Department of Corrections and I will have restrictions and requirements 
placed upon me, which may include electronic monitoring, and I may be required to 
participate in rehabilitative programs 

(aa) If the current offense 1s any of these offenses or attempt to commit any of these 
offenses: 

Statement on Plea of Guilty to Sex Offense (STTOFG) • Page 3 of 9 
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(i) 

~ 

(I) 

(m) 

(n) 

(o) 

I understand that I may not possess, own, or have under my control any firearm, and 
under federal law any firearm or ammunition, unless my right to do so is restored by the 
court in which l am convicted or the superior court in Washington State where I hve, and 
by a federal court if reqwred. I must immediately surrender any concealed pistol license 

l understand that I will be ineligible to vote until that right is restored in a manner 
provided by law lfl am registered to vote, my voter registration will be cancelled. 
Wash. Const art VI,§ 3, RCW 29A.04.079, 29A.08.520. 

Government assistance may be suspended dunng any penod of confinement 

I will be required to register where I reside, study or work. The specific registration 
requirements are described in the "Offender Registration" Attachment. 

I will be required to have a biological sample collected for purposes ofDNA 
identification analysis, unless it is established that the Washington State Patrol crime 
laboratory already has a sample from me for a qualifying offense I will be requll'ed to pay 
a $100.00 DNA collection fee. 

I will be required to undergo testing for the human immunodeficiency (HN/AIDS) virus. 

Notification Relating to Specific Crimes: If any of the following paragraphs DO NOT 
APPLY, counsel and the defendant shall strike them out. The defendant and the 
judge shall initial all paragraphs that DO APPLY 

(p) 

Special sex offender sentencing altematlve· ln addition to other eligibility requiiemems 
under RCW 9.94A.670, to be eligible for the s e · encmg alternative, I 
lll1derstand that I must voluntar1l d mnatively admit that I comnutted all of the 
elements of the c · o which I am pleading guilty. I make my voluntary and 

ve admission in my statement in paragraph I 1. 

~fenses committed before September C:200p.=r-trejtfdge=may_$),§J)end execution of 
the standard ran.:=--···· nfinement under the special sex offender sentenciinngir----
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-- (r) 

- - (s) 

- (t) 

-- (u) 

alternative (SSOSA) if l qualify under fonner RCW 9 94A.120(8) (for offenses commi 
before July I, 2001) or RCW 9.94A 670 (for offenses committed on or after Jul , O<H). 

e suspends execution of the standard range tenn of confinement 1 I be placed 
on comm um ty for the length of the suspended sentence or t years, whichever is 
greater; r will be ordered to u to 180 days of total co ent; I will be ordered to 
participate in sex offender treatment; · ons and requirements placed upon 
me, and r will be subject to all of the condi · escribe e . Additionally, 
the judge could require me to d 1me to a specific occupation and to pursue a 

· prescnbed course of or occupational training. If a violation of the sentence occurs 
during corn · custody, the judge may revoke the suspended sentence. 

For offenses committed on or after September I, 2001: The judge may suspend 
execution of the standard range term of confinement or the minimum tenn of confinement 
under the special sex offender sentencing alternative (SSOSA) 1f l qualify under RCW 
9.94A.670. If the judge suspends execution of the standard range tenn of confinement for a 
sex offense that is not listed in paragraph 6(f)(i), r will be placed on community custody for 
the length of the suspended sentence or three years, whichever is greater. If the judge 
suspends execution of the minimum term of confinement for a sex offense listed in 
paragraph 6(f)(i), I will be placed on community custody for the length of the statutory 
maximum sentence of the offense. [n addition to the tenn of community custody, I will be 
ordered to serve up to 180 days of total confinement if I committed the crime prior to July 
1, 2005, or up to 12 months with no early release ifl committed the crime on or after July 
I, 2005; I will be ordered to participate m sex offender treatment; r will have restrictions 
and requirements placed upon me, which may include electronic monitoring; and I will be 
subject to all of the conditions described in paragraph 6(e). Additionally, the judge could 
require me to devote time to a specific occupation and to pursue a prescribed course of 
study or occupational training. If a violation of the sentence occurs during community 
custody, the judge may revoke the suspended sentence. 

If this is a crime of domestic violence, the court may order me to pay a dom e 
assessment ofup to $100.00. lfl, or the victim of the o ea minor child, the court 
may order me to partici a · ence perpetrator program approved under 

If I am subject to community custody and the judge finds that I hav~eJ!a..cblemiettt­
dependency that has contributed to the offense, the ·uruu~ravorder me to participate in 
rehabilitative prOwar!!S o · onn affirmative conduct reasonably related to 
t ces of the crime for which I am pleading guilty. 

I understand that RCW 46.20 285( 4) regyj,[es.that.my-dfin,c.ls:lic~e 
jwge finds I wed a llioror vehlcleintlie commission of this felony. 

The crime of ________ _____ has a mandatory minimum sentence 
of at least _____ years of total confinement. This law does~pplyt~ 
committed on or after July 24, 2005, by a Juvenile who_was-trfecfas an adult after decline of 
juvenile court jurisdiction. ~.oot-a11~y reduction ofth1s sentence. This 
mandatory ~mence 1s not the same as the mandatory sentence of life 
~ without the possibility of parole described in paragraph 6[p ]. 
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in the first de ee 
Rape of a child in the first degree 
committed when I was at least 18 ears old 
Child molestation in the first degree 
committed when I was at least 18 ears old 

Assault of a child m the second de 

Ra in the second de ee 
Rape of a child in the second degree 
committed when I was at least 18 ears old 
Indecent liberties by forcible compulsion 

ee 

(bb) If the current offense is any sex offense and I have a prior conviction for any of 
these offenses or attempt to cormmt any of these offenses: 

(ii) rfttus offense 1s a sex offense that is not listed in paragraph 6(f)(i), then in addition to 
sentencing me to a tenn of confinement, the Judge may order me to serve up to one year of 
community custody if the total period of confinement ordered is not more than 12 months. 
Tfthe period of confinement is over one year, or 1f my crime is failure to register as a sex 
offender, and this is my second or subsequent conviction of that cnme, the Judge will 
sentence me to community custody for 36 months or up to the period of earned release, 
whichever is longer. During the period of commwlity custody to which r am sentenced, I 
will be under the supervision oft.he Department of Corrections, and I will have restrictions 
and requirements placed upon me, which may include electronic monitoring 

For sex offenses committed on or after March 202 2006: For the following offenses and 
special allegations, the minimum term shall be either the maximum of the standard sentence 
range for the offense or 25 years, whichever 1s greater 

I) If the offense 1s rape of a child in the first degree, rape of a child in the second degree 
or child molestation in the first degree and the offense includes a special allegation that the 
offense was predatory. 

2) If the offense is rape in the first degree, rape in the second decree, indecent hberties by 
forcible compulsion, or kidnapping in the first degree with sexual motivation and the 
offense includes special allegation that the victim of the offense was under 15 years of age 
at the time of the offense. 

3) lfthe offense is rape in the first degree, rape in the second degree with forcible 
compulsion, indecent liberties with forcible compulsion, or kidnapping in the first degree 
with sexual motivation and this offense includes a special allegation that the victim of the 
offense was, at the time of the offense, developmentally disabled, mentally disordered, or a 
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fnul elder or vulnerable adult. 

Community Custody Violation: lfl violate the conditions ofmy community custody, the 
Department of Corrections may sanction me up to 60 days confinement per violation and/or 
revoke my earned early release, or the Department of Corrections may impose additional 
conditions or other stipulated penalties. The court also has the authonty to impose 
sanctions for any v10Jat1on 

(g) The prosecuttng attorney will make the following recommendation to the judge· 

(h) 

0 The prosecutor will recommend as stated m the plea agreement, which is incorporated 
by reference. 

The judge does not have to follow an one,s recommendation as to sentence. The 
e must impose a sentence within the standard range un ess t e JU ge mds 

substantial and compelling reasons not to do so (except as provided in paragraph 6(f)). l 
understand the following regarding exceptional sentences: 

(i) The judge may impose an exceptional sentence below the standard range if the 
judge finds mitigating circumstances supporting an exceptional sentence. 

(11) The judge may impose an exceptional sentence above the standard range 1f I am 
betng sentenced for more than one crime and I have an offender score of more 
than nine 

(111) The judge may also impose an exceptional sentence above the standard range if 
the State and I stipulate that justice is best served by imposition of an 
exceptional sentence and the judge agrees that an exceptional sentence 1s 
consistent with and in furtherance of the interests of justice and the purposes of 
the Sentencing Reform Act. 

(1v) The judge may also impose an exceptional sentence above the standard range if 
the State has given notice that it will seek an exceptional sentence, the notice 
states aggravating circumstances upon which the requested sentence will be 
based, and facts supporting an exceptional sentence are proven beyond a 
reasonable doubt to a unanimous Jury, to a judge if I waive a jury, or by 
stipulated facts. 

If the court imposes a standard range sentence, then no one may appeal the sentence If 
the court imposes an exceptional sentence after a heanng, either the State or 1 can appeal 
the sentence. 

If I am not a citizen of the United States, a plea of guilty to an offense punishable as a 
crime under state Jaw is grounds for deportation. exclusion from admission to the United 
States, or denial of naturalization pursuant to the laws of the United States 

Stateme ton Plea of Guilty to Sex Offense (STTDFG) - Page 5 of 9 
CrR 4 2(g) (2/2012) 

158 



-- (v) 

- - (w) 

- - (x) 

I am bemg sentenced for two or more serious violent.offenses.arising.from.separate-and 
distinct criminal cond -sentences imposed on counts and will run 

y unless the judge finds substantial and compelhng reasons to do otherwise. 

The offense(s) I am pleading guilty to include(s) a deadly weapon, firearm.or.sexual" 
motivation enhancement. Deadly weapon, firearrn...or-sex-ualm~enhancements are 
mandatory, they must be served in total-confi~ent, and they must run consecutively to 
any other se~.and-to-an~ deadly weapon, fireann, or sexual motivation 
~s. 

For crimes committed on or after July 22, 2007: If I am pleading guilty to ra 
child in the first, second, or third degree or child molestation in the , econd or third 
degree, and I engaged, agreed or offered to engage the v1cf sexual intercourse or 
sexual contact for a fee, or tf I attempted, solicitey..,.nv,",er, or conspired to engage, agree 
or offer to engage the victim in sexual int se or sexual contact for a fee, then a one­
year enhancement shall be adde e standard sentence range. Jfl am pleading guilty 
to more than one otli , e one-year enhancement must be added to the total period of 
total con nt for all offenses, regardless of which underlying offense is subject to 

enhancement 

7. I plead guilty to- count(s) I-XIV as charged in the second amended Infonnation, 
dated 11/5/12 . I have received a copy of that Information and reviewed it with my 
lawyer. 

8. I make this plea freely and voluntarily. 

9. No one has threatened harm of any kind to me or to any other person to cause me to make this plea. 

10 No person has made promises of any kind to cause me to enter this plea except as set forth in this 
statement 

11. The judge has asked me to state what I did in my own words that makes me guilty of this crime. 
llus is my statement: 
Please see "Adden~a .... u-m--,-to~P"""le_,a_,F,....o,-rm--f~o--r ..... C...,o-m-.b""""l=ne-d~Al ... f=o=ra""'JNrre-e,..,.wt""o=-cn:-a=n=a,......,,,n,...,r;=e-.B .... a=rr 
Plea" attached te ana inoerporotea into this State ef Defendant en Plea of Guilty. 

0 Instead of making a statement, I agree that the court may review the police reports and/or a 
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statement of probable cause supplied by the prosecution to establish a factual basis for the plea. 

12. My lawyer has explained to me, and we have fully discussed, all of the above paragraphs and the 
"Offender Registration" Attachment I widerstand them all. I have been given a copy of this 
"Statement of Defendant on Plea of Guilty." I have no further questions to ask the Judge. 

1/J ~ 
Defendant(~ 

~~ 
Prosecuting Attorney ndant's Lawyer 

derstands the statement. 

-# 2-Z<;q{ 

Tim Lewis 33767 Ann Stenberg 22596 

Print Name WSBANo. Print Name WSBA No. 

The defendant signed the foregoing statement in open court in the presence of the defendant's lawyer and 
the undersigned judge. The defendant asserted that [check appropriate box)· 

~ The defendant had previously read the entire statement above and that the defendant understood 1t 
in full; • (b) 

D (c) 

The defendant's lawyer had previously read to him or her the entire statement above and that the 
defendant understood it in fuU; or 
An interpreter had previously read to the defendant the entire statement above and that the 
defendant understood it in full The Interpreter's Declaration is attached. 

Interpreter's Declaration: I am a certified interpreter or have been found otherwise qualified by the court 
to interpret in the _____________ language, which the defendant understands. r 
have translated and interpreted this document for the defendant from English mto that language. I have no 
reason to believe that the defendant does not fully understand both the interpretation and the sub·~1Tffl~--
ofthis document. I certify under penalty of perjury wtder the laws of the state of Washingto t ;ED 
foregoing is true and correct. IN OPENTC. 2 

CURT 

Signed at (city) _______ _, (state) ______ , on (date) 

Interpreter 

Statement on Plea of Guilty to Sex Offense (STTDF 
CrR 4 2(g) (212012) 

Print Name 

160 

. ___ _.____ ___ _ 

NOV - 2012 



Case Name: Weldon Marc Gilbert Cause No 07-1-05618-3 

ATTACHMENT "B" 

4 (b) (continued) Defendant 1s pleading guilty to these additional counts 

Count IV: Counts V, VI, X, IVX: Child Molestation in the Third Degree 
Elements: see second amended Information 

The crime cames a maximum sentence of 5 years impnsonment and a 
$ 1 OK fine. The standard range is from t:IU months to OU months 

based upon the attached stipulation as to my criminal history. 

Offense Designations: Most Serious Offense[] Serious Violent[] Violent• Non­
Violent[J SexO Drug• Traffic[] (check all that apply) 

Count ViY: Counts VIII, IX, XI, XII, XIII: Child Molestation Second DeQree 
Elements: see second amended Information 

The crime carries a maximum sentence of 10 years imprisonment and a 
$ 20K fine. The standard range is from 87 months to 116 months 

based upon the attached stipulation as to my criminal history. 

Offense Designations: Most Serious Offensc(!I Serious Violent[] Violent• Non­

Violent@ Sex@ Drug• Traffic[] (check all that apply) 

6 (b) (continued) Defendant is pleading guilty to these additional counts 

COUNT STANDARD RANGE PLUS Enhancement Tar AL ACTUAL STANDARD RANGE MAXIMUM 
NO ACTUAi.. for (F) F1reann, {D) CONFINEMENT COMMUNITY PENALTY 

CONFINEMENT" (DOI Other Deadly (Slllndard range CUSTODY 
mcludmg Weapon, (V) ,ncludmg (Only apphcable for 
cnlwlcements) V\JCSA m protecled enhanccmcnts) crunes corrumtted on or 

wnc, (VH) Vducular after July I, 2000 For 

Horruc1de, See RCW cnmcs comm,llcd pnor 

46 61 S20, or(JP) 
to July I, 2000, !ICC 

Juven, le Preseot 
pul8Illph 6(1)) 

Jr· JZI:, 
60 Months 60 Months 36 Months 5 Yrs/$10,000 %.,1£2" 

.!'Ji., ..t:llT, 
~,:JU; 120 Months 120 Months 36 Months 10yr/$20K 

.xnr 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF TIIE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PIERCE 

STA TE OF WASHINGTON, 

Plaintiff, CAUSE NO. 07-1-05618-3 

vs. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT 
10 D.O.B.: 08/26/1960 

ADDENDUM TO PLEA FORM FOR 
COMBINED ALFORD/NEWTON AND IN RE 
BARR PLEA 

11 Defendant. 

12 
North Carolina v. Alford, 400 U.S. 25 (1970); State v. Newton, 87 Wn.2d 363 

13 (1976): I do not admit that I am guilty of this/these crime(s), but I have reviewed the 
evidence with my attorney and believe that there is a substantial likelihood I would be 

14 convicted or more serious charges if I proceeded to trial. I am pleading guilty in order to 
take advantage of the State's offer. I understand that the court must find a factual basis for 

15 my plea of guilty. I acknowledge there is a factual basis for the charge(s) m the Original 

16 
Information that is set forth in the Declaration for Determination of Probable Cause, and I 
agree the court may consider that declaration, as well as any other information presented by 

17 the prosecutor at the time of this plea, to support the court's finding of a factual basis for my 
plea. 

18 
In re Barr, 102 Wn.2d 265 (1984): In addition to what is set out above, and in 

19 addition to my factual admissions in the plea form, I recognize that I am entering a plea of 
guilty to a crime that I in fact did not commit. My attorney has discussed with me all of the 

20 elements of the original charge(s) and the elements of the amended charge(s), and I 
understand them all. There is a factual basis for the original charge(s). I understand that the 

21 prosecution would be unable to prove the amended charge(s) at trial, but I see pleading guilty 
to the amended charge(s) as being beneficial to me because 1t will allow me to avoid the risk 

22 of conviction on the charge(s) I would face at trial. Based upon a review of the alternatives 

23 before me, I have decided to plead guilty to a crime I did not commit in order to take 
advantage of the State's offer. I understand the consequences of this plea agreement and I 

24 am making a voluntary and informed choice to enter into it. 

25 
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I understand that the court must find a factual basis for the original charge(s) and I 
1 agree that the court may consider the declaration for detennination of probable cause and any 

other information presented by the prosecutor at the time of this plea to support the factual 
2 basis for the original charge(s). 
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DATED this 6th day of November, 2012. 
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Defi ndant, Pro Se 

Ann Stenberg 
Standby Counsel 
WSB #22596 

Office of the ProsecutJng Attorney 
Felony D1vmon 
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CASENAME ~ u, k4'4oAbtGdl,,.cf C.nmNo 07-{-05614'-.3 

3 ATTACHMENT •s• See paragraph 6(f):md 6(0) of Statement on ~ea of Guilty (Req_wred Jttachmmttc, Stttement of 
Def~da:nt uz. I',u uf Glillty for plfa tc; az.y sei. ->ffi1m) 
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Paragraph 6(t) For sex crimes rommitt" Prior to Job, 1. 2000: 
In addition to sentencing me to confinement, the judge may order me to secve up to one 

year of commuaity supervision if the total period of confinement ordered is not mote thm 
12 mmtths. Iftbe period of con.Snemeut is more than one year. the judge will order n1e to 
serve three ypars of community custody or up to the period of eamed early reluse period, 

whichever is longer. During the period of community pl11cement, c.ommuaity custody, or 

<'nmrmmity super\'ision, I wiJJ he under the supervision of the Department ofCmrections. 

and I will have restrictiom placed on my activities. My failure to comply v.ith these 
conditiom will render me ineligible for general as:istance. R.CW 74 04.005(6)(h) 

Far sex crime.t committed on or after Joh, t, %000, but prior to Sept.1, 2001: 
Ualess I am being sentenced under RCW 9.94A.670 {SSOSA)(formedy RCW 

9.94A.l.10(S)), in admti011 to sentencing me to confinement, the judge may order me to 

serve up to one year of community custody if the total period of c.owinemem ordered is 

not more than 12 month-;. If the puiod of confinement is over one yeai, the judge wilJ 
sentence me to community custody for a period of 36 to 48 mom:hs or up to tbe period of 
earned release. whichever is longff. Duriog the period of community custody I will be 
under the supervisson of the Dep8f1ml!flt of Corrections, and I will have restrictions placed 
on my activities My fatlure to comply with these conditions m.ll render me ineligible for 

general asrirtance, RC\V 74.04.005(6)(h}, and may result in the Department of 
COff'ediOflS tnmsfening me to a more restrictive coufinement rutus or other sanctions. 

Far .sex crimes committed ID\ ar after Septembw 1, .root; 
(i) Sentencing under RCW 9.94A. 712: If this offeme is for any of the offenses listed in 
rubsectiom (aa) or (l,b), below, the judge will impose a maximum term of confinemt>nt 
consisting of the statutory maximum sentence of the offense and >1 minimum term of 
umfinemmt either within the rtaodard rang• for the offense or outside the standard rang, 
if an exceptional sentence is appropriate. The minimum term al ronfintm1ent th3t is 
impos.ct may he nu.Teased by the Indetenninat~ Smtencing R.mav Board if the 
Board determines by a preponderanH of the eridenre dta.t it is more libl,y than not 
that I will commit .ra: offBUes if relnsed lrmn ro.stody. In addition to Ifie pR"iod or 
ronfinement, I will be sentmnd to ~unity nutod;r far the statutory :nuwmmn 
sentmt'1! Cur that aff'aue. The rtabJtory maxinrum semence for this offense i! f ]ten 
yeus [ J life. During the period of commuuity custody I ""'ill be WJ.dec the supm.>i:iion of 
the Department of C0ttedious and I will have restric.tions placed on my activities and I 
may be required to participate in rehabilitative programs or other affirmative conduct My 
failure to comply with tlum• cooditiom will render me ineligible for general ao;sistance, · 

RCW "'i4.04.005(6)(h), and may result in the Department of Correc:tions transferring me to 
a more restrictive confinement status or other ~anctions. 
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(ea) If the cllft'ent offen.se is any of these offenses or ettenlpt to commit any of these offenses: 

R.3p, m !be fu's! degree R2pe !l1 t!le S!CO!ld degi-ee 

Rape of a duld m the firn dep-ee committed when I was at Rape of a chtld U1 the second degree committed when I I 
I lust : 8 year. uld was it least ; 8 yea-s uld 

•:lu!d mc,!eSt311!ln !ll Ge first de:?;?"ee c,mr:ted wb<:n 1 ns !niiecent l!bertm by foroNe C!ll?!plllsi'Jn I at least 18 years oid 

Any ofth~ f,:;Jfowmg Gffin;es Tith a iindmg Gf Sfl."ual I 
! mob,1a:llon 

Murder m the first degree Murder in the ;;econd degret-

' 
Hom;ade ty ;;.bas~ lildnappmg m :be first desree I 

I 

l As!aitlt m the fi..rn degm Klfu12{1pmg in !he ~eccnd degm 

Assault in the second degree Assault of a duld m the first degree 

Burgiary in the fim degree I 
(bb) If the current offense is any sex offen.-;e, othec than failure to register as a sex offender, 811d I 

have a prior conviction for any of these offenses or attempt to commit any of these offenses: 

P~e m th; fiJ'!t d-:~e!! Rll)~ U1 -:be ! !?Ci!n~ degree ! 
Rap, of a child m tbe tint degree Rape ofa clllld m the second degree 

Child m"iestation in 1i1e fint degree !nde,:ent iiberties by iomble compulsion I 
I 

Any o{lbe fc,JIG'imig c,ffEn.es ;v.lt. a anGmg c,f U7!ial I 
m1Jt1vanon ! 
Murdenn rhf first aegree Murder m me second degre1_1 

Hoauode by ;;basf Kidnapping in :h~ fun ,iegr~e I 
I 

As!aclt i!l tl!1_1 li"St t!egr~f Klrln2Pping in !he !eccnd degree 

Assaultm the second degree Assault of a duld m the tint degree I 
Burgiary m the nm degree I 

(ti) Iftbi:. offense iz for a sex offense that ts not li..ted in paragraph 6(t)(t), then in addition to 
sentencing me to s term or confinement, the judge may order me to serve up to one year of community 
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custo~y iffhe total period of confinement or-dered is fJOt more than 12 months. Tfthe period of 
confinement is over one year. the judge will sentence me to community custody fo1· a period of 36 to 48 

3 months or up to the period of earned release, whichever is longer. During the period of community 

custody to which I am sentenced. I will be undef- the supervision of the Depllf1mertt of Coirections, and I 

4 mil have restrictions plated on my activities 
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Paragraph 6(0) 
Fer alfeues NRnmitted bef are Septembl!I' 1, .2001: The judge may suspend execution 

of the standard r~e tesm of cominement under the special sex otTfflder sentencin~ 
altemative (SSOSA) ifl qualify under former RCW 9.94A.110(8} (for offenses committed 

before July l, 2001) oc R.CV/ 9.94A 670 (for offenses cmnmitted on or afttt July 1, 
2001 ). If the judge suspends execution of the standard range tem:i of coflfinemeot. I will 
be p\aced on community custody for the length of the suspmded sentence or three years, 

,'fflich ever is greater, I will be Mdered to serve up to 180 days of total confinement; I wilt 
be ordered to participate in sex offender treatment; and I will be rubjed t(I all of the 

conditions described in paragraph 6(e). Additionally, the ~e could require me to 

devote time to a specific occupation llfld to pursue a prescribed coW'St: of study or 

occupational training. If a vialatimi of the senten.te ocrors during rommtmity nutody, 
the judge may revoke the rospended senteic-e. 

For offenses amunitted an or after September 1. 2001: The judge may suspend 
execution of the stan&rd range term of confinement or the minimum term of confinement 
under the special sex offender sentencing alternative (SSOSA) ifl qualify under RCW 
9.94A. 670. If the judge suspends execution of the st.1ndsrd range tern1 of confinement 

and my rurrent offense is for any sex offense other than those luted in puagraph 
6(f)(i). I -wilt be placed on community custody for the leDt.<rfh of the suspended sentence or 
three yurs, whichever is greater. If the judge suspends execution of minimum term of 
confinement for a sex oft'ense luted in paragrapll 6(f)(i), I will be placed on community 
custody for the length of the st&tutoty maxi.mum sentence of the ofteme. In addition to 

the term of comnnmity curtody, I will be ordered to serve up to 180 days of total 
cou.finemfflt; I will he ordered to participate in sex offender frellbn~ and I mil be 
subject to all of the conditions described in paragraph 6(e). Additionally. the JUdge could 
require me to devote time to a specific occupation and to pursue a pre'iiC:ribed course of 
study Ot" occupatimul training. If a violation of the smtente DttUrs during tommunity 
rostody, the judge may revoke the mspended senten'"1!. 

SfATEMIDIT C>N PLEA OF mm.TY (Atudun!l!lt S for S,:it off~)(05/02) • P.aee 3 of 3 

166 

0111« of Prosttutmg Attorney 
930 T_,.. AYenw: S. lloGm 94' 
Tacoma, Washiagton 98402-2171 
nlqlhont (lSJJ 798-7400 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

1S 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

FILED 
DEPT. 2 

INOPENcou 

Pierce Cou 
By 

SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PIERCE COUNT -~.p._---..J~.I 
DEPARTMENT 2, JUDGE KA THERINE STOLZ 

ST A TE OF WASHINGTON, 

Plaintiff, CAUSE NO. 07-1-05618-3 

vs. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, PLEA AGREEMENT 

Defendant. 

COMES NOW, the plaintiff, the State of Washington, by and through its attorney, Pierce 

County Prosecuting Attorney Mark E Lindquist, by and through his deputies, Patrick Hammond 

and Tim Lewis, Deputy Prosecuting Attorneys, the defendant, Weldon Marc Gilbert, proceeding 

pro se, assisted by standby counsel Ann Stenberg, have entered into a plea agreement resolving 

this case pursuant to Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 9.94A.421, and consistent with the 

terms of the Plea Agreement between the United States of America, and the defendant, Weldon 

Marc Gilbert, entered in United States of America v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, case number CR07-

5 732BHS. The terms of the plea agreement between the State of Washington and the defendant 

are as follows: 

I. Offenses and Maximum Penalties: 

The Defendant agrees to plead guilty to each count in the second amended Information 

presented by the State, contingent upon the Court's acceptance of the second amended 

Information, in wtuch the Defendant is charged in Counts I-Ill, VII-IX, and XI-Xlll with Child 

State of Washington v Weldon Marc Gilbert (07-1--05618-3) 
Plea Agreement 
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Molestation in the Second Degree, contrary to RCW 9A.44.086, and in Counts IV-VI, X, and 

XIV with Child Molestation in the Third Degree, contrary to RCW 9A.44.089. The defendant's 

pleas of guilty to Counts I-XIV shall result in imposition of a determinate sentence. The 

Defendant understands that Child Molestation in the Second Degree is a Class "B" Felony 

Crime, punishable by up to 10 years imprisonment and a $20,000 fine per RCW 9A.20.021. The 

Defendant understands that Child Molestation in the Third Degree, is a Class "C" Felony Crime, 

punishable by up to 5 years imprisonment and a $10,000 fine per RCW 9A.20.021. The 

defendant understands that Child Molestation in the Second Degree and Child Molestation in the 

Third Degree as charged in the second amended Information require a term of 36 months of 

Community Custody upon release from confinement, and that violation of the terms of 

Community Custody could result in additional terms of imprisonment. The defendant 

understands that Child Molestation in the Second Degree is a sex offense which will require him 

to register as a sex offender for a period of 15 years. 

2. Factual Basis for the Plea: 

The defendant will enter pleas of guilty to all charges in the second amended Information 

via Alford/Newton and In re Barr pleas. North Carolina v. Alford, 400 U.S. 25 (1970); State v. 

Newton, 87 Wn.2d 363 (1976); In re Barr, 102 Wn.2d 363 (1976). The defendant understands 

that by entering Alford/Newton pleas of guilty, he is not reqwred to admit guilt, but will 

acknowledge that the State possess sufficient evidence to prove his guilt beyond a reasonable 

doubt as to the original charges in the corrected amended Information. The defendant 

understands that by entering In re Barr pleas, he is entering pleas of guilty to crimes in the 

second amended Information which he did not conumt and for which there is no factual basis, 

but is doing so m order to take advantage of the plea agreement reached with the State. The 

State ofWashmgtOn v Weldon Marc Gllben (07-l-<JS618-3) 
Plea Agreement 
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defendant stipulates that there is a factual basis to support all of the charges in the corrected 

amended Information, and that the State possesses sufficient evidence to prove each of the 

counts in the corrected amended Infonnation beyond a reasonable doubt. 

3. Waiver of Appeal: 

The defendant understands that he has a right to appeal his convictions. The defendant 

understands that since he has entered pleas of guilty to the charges in the second amended 

Informat10n, he has waived his right to raise certain issues, as discussed in his Statement of 

Defendant on Plea of Guilty, in an appeal. The defendant understands that he has a right to 

appeal any sentence that is outside of his standard sentencing range. 

4. Restitution: 

The State will not seek restitution in this matter, as forfeiture of the defendant's assets 

and restitution to his victims were incorporated into his plea and sentencing under United States 

of America v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, case number CR07-5732BHS. 

5. Assistance and Advice of Counsel: 

The defendant is proceeding pro se in this case with the assistance of standby counsel, 

and has elected to do so knowingly and voluntarily. The defendant stipulates that he is 

completely satisfied with the assistance afforded by his standby counsel in this case. 

6. Sentencing Recommendation: 

The defendant understands that pursuant to his pleas of guilty to the second amended 

Information filed by the State, for purposes of sentencing, he would present with an offender 

score of nine plus. The standard sentencing range for Child Molestation in the Second Degree 

with an offender score of nine plus is 87-116 months imprisonment. The standard sentencing 

State of Washington v Weldon Marc G1tbcn (07.1-()5618-3) 
Plea Agreement 
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range for Child Molestation in the Third Degree with an offender score of nine plus is 60 months 

imprisonment. 

Contingent upon the defendant entering pleas of guilty to Counts I through XIV of the 

amended Information, the parties will make the following agreed recommendation to the Court 

regarding sentencing: 

7. 

Counts I, II, Ill, VII, VIII, IX, XI, XII, XIII (Child Molestation in the Second 
Degree): 116 months determinate imprisonment, each count concurrent with the 
other, concurrent with Counts IV, V, VI, X, and XIV, of the second amended 
Information, and concurrent with the Defendant's sentence imposed under United 
States of America v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, case number CR07-5732BHS. Credit 
for time spent in custody since the Defendant's initial arrest on November 1, 
2007. 36 Months Community Custody to be supervised and served concurrently 
with lifetime supervision by United States Probation as ordered in the judgment in 
United States of America v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, case number CR07-5732BHS. 
Conditions of Supervision as ordered in the judgment in United States of America 
v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, case number CR07-5732BHS. Legal financial 
obligations in the form of $500.00 Crime Victim Penalty Assessment, $200.00 
Court Costs, $100.00 DNA Testing Fee, No Contact with the victims listed in the 
second amended Information, No Contact with Minors. 

Counts IV, V, VI, X, and XIV (Child Molestation in the Third Degree): 60 
months determinate imprisonment, each count concurrent with the other, 
concurrent with Counts I, IT, III, VII, VIII, IX, XI, XII, Xlll of the second 
amended Information, and concurrent with the Defendant's sentence imposed 
under United States of America v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, case number CR07-
5732BHS. Credit for time spent in custody since the Defendant's initial arrest on 
November 1, 2007. 36 Months Community Custody to be supervised and served 
concurrently with lifetime supervision by United States Probation as ordered in 
the judgment in United States of America v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, case number 
CR07-5732BHS. Conditions of Supervision as ordered in the judgment in United 
States of America v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, case number CR07-5732BHS. 

Role of the Court 

The defendant stipulates that the Superior Court of the State of Washington, in and for 

the County of Pierce, has both personal and subject matter jurisdiction over him and this case 

and waives any objection to venue. The Defendant understands that the Court is not bound by 

any sentencing recommendation of the parties pursuant to RCW 9. 94A.431 (2), but that pursuant 

State of Washington v Weldon Marc Gilbert (07-Hl5618·3) 
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to 9.94A.431(1), upon review of this plea agreement, the Court shall determine if the plea 

agreement is consistent with the interests of justice and with the prosecuting standards found at 

RCW 9.94A.411. If the Court determines that the plea agreement is not consistent with the 

interests of justice and the prosecuting standards, the Court shall, on the record, inform the 

Defendant and the State that they are not bound by the agreement and that the Defendant may 

withdraw his plea of guilty if one has been entered. 

Pursuant to RCW 9.94A 431 (2), the Court is not bound by any sentencing 

recommendation contained m any allowed plea agreement. The Court 1s free to sentence the 

Defendant anywhere within his standard sentencing range of 87-116 months on Counts I, II, III, 

VII, VIII, IX, XI, XII, XIII (Child Molestation in the Second Degree), and 60 months on Counts 

IV, V, VI, X. and XIV (Child Molestation in the Third Degree). The State of Washington makes 

no promise or representation concerning what sentence the Court will impose, and the defendant 

understands that he cannot withdraw his plea of guilty based upon the actual sentence imposed 

by the Court. 

8. Nature of Agreement and Modifications: 

This written agreement constitutes the complete plea agreement between the plaintiff, the 

State of Washington, and the defendant, Weldon Marc Gilbert. The Defendant acknowledges 

that no threats, promises, or representations have been made, nor agreements reached, other than 

those set forth in writmg in this plea agreement, to cause the defendant to plead guilty to the 

second amended Information in this case. 

9. Interdependence of Plea Agreements: 

The defendant stipulates that the second amended Information and this plea agreement 

satisfies and complies with the obligations of the State of Washington as outlined and described 

State ofWashmgtOn v Weldon Marc G,tbcn (07-t-05618-3) 
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in section 14, "lnterde_pendence of Plea Agreements", of the Plea Agreement between the 

defendant and the United States Attorney for the Western District of Washington, entered m 

United State of America v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, case number CR07-5732BHS (Attachment A). 

DATED this 6'1', day of November, 2012. 

ammond 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 
WSBA#23090 

ser~ 
Tim Lewis 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 
WSBA # 33767 

Defendant's Signature: I hereby agree that I have consulted with my standby attorneys and 

fully understand all rights I have as a criminal defendant as to these charges and that I am giving 

up those rights by voluntarily entering into this plea agreement with the State of Washington, and 

entering by entering pleas of guilty to the second amended Infonnation in this case. I further 

understand that the Sentencing Refonn Act, RCW 9.94A, and the sentencing guidelines therein, 

apply fully to my case, and that the Court is not bound by any recommendation of either party as 

to the sentence I receive. I have read this plea agreement fully and reviewed each portion of this 

plea agreement with my standby attorney I understand this agreement and voluntarily agree to 

it. 

Date: 11 /c, /,i?C,l':2 • 

State of Washington v Weldon Marc Gilbert (07•1-05618-3) 
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Standby Counsel Signature: I am standby counsel for the defendant in this case. I have fully 

explained to the defendant each and every right he has a criminal defendant, that he is giving up 

those rights by entering into this plea agreement with the State of Washington, and by entering a 

plea of guilty to the second amended Information before this Court. I have explained to the 

Defendant that the Court is not bound by this plea agreement, nor the recommendation of either 

party, in imposing sentence in this case. I have carefully reviewed every part of this plea 

agreement with the defendant. To my knowledge, the defendant's decision to enter into this plea 

agreement is an informed and voluntary one. 

Date: 
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Judge Settle 

UNITED STA TES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISlRJCT OF WASHINGTON 

AT TACOMA 

UNITED STA TES OF AMERICA, 

Plaintiff, 
NO. CR07-5732BHS 

PLEA AGREEMENT v. 

WELDON MARC GILBERT, 

Defendant. 

The United States of America, by and through Jeffrey C. Sullivan, United States 

16 Attorney for the Western District of Washington, and Roger Rogoff and Michael Dion, 

11 Assistant United States Attorneys for said District, and the defendant, WELDON MARC 

1& GILBERT, and his attorneys, John Henry Browne and Emma Scanlan, enter into the 

19 following Agreement, pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure l l(c)(l)(C}: 

20 I . The Charges. Defendant, having been advised of the right to have this 

21 matter tried before a jury, agrees to waive that right and enter a plea of guilty to the 

22 following charges contained in the Fourth Superseding Indictment ("Indictment"}. By 

23 entering this plea of guilty, Defendant hereby waives all objections to the form of the 

24 charging document. 

25 a. Sexual exploitation of a child in the Production of Child 

26 Pornography, as charged in Counts I through 21, 23 through 31, and 33, in violation of 

27 Title 18, United States Code, Section 2251(a) and (e), and 2256; 

28 
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b. Transportation of a minor to engage in illegal sexual activity, as 

2 charged in COWlts 34 and 35, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 

3 2423(a) and Section 2; 
34 

4 

s 

6 

c. Obstruction of justice, as charged in Count 3-;, in violation of Title 

18, United States Code, Section l 5 l 2(b)(3); and ~ =,. 
d. Obstruction of justice, as charged in Count J« in violation of Title 

1 18, United States Code, Section 1512(b)(l). 

8 Defendant further understands that before entering his pleas of guilty, Defendant 

9 wiU be placed under oath. Any statement given by Defendant under oath may be used by 

10 the government in a prosecution for perjury or false statement. 

11 2. Elements of the Offenses. The elements of the offenses are as follows: 

12 a. The elements of the offense of Production of Visual Depictions of 

13 Minors Engaged in Sexually Explicit Conduct, as charged in Counts l through 21, 23 

14 through 31, and 33, of the Indictment, are: 

15 First, Defendant employed, used, persuaded, induced, enticed or coerced the 

16 victim to take part in sexually explicit conduct for the purpose of producing a visual 

11 depiction of such conduct; 

Second, at the time, the victim was a minor; and 18 

19 Third, the visual depiction was produced or transmitted using materials that 

20 had been mailed, shipped, or transported in or affecting interstate or foreign commerce. 

21 b. The elements of the offense ofTransportation of Minors to Engage 

22 in Illegal Sexual Conduct. as charged in Counts 34 and 35 of the Indictment, are: 

23 First, Defendant knowingly transported an individual in interstate 

24 commerce; 

25 Second, the individual was under 18 years of age when the transportation 

26 took place; and 

27 Third, Defendant intended that the person engage in sexual activity for 

28 which any person can be charged with a criminal offense. 
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c. The clements of the offense of Obstruction of Justice, as charged in 

2 CoWJt 36 of the lndictment, are: 

3 First, Defendant knowingly did corruptly persuade, attempt to corruptly 

4 persuade, or engage in misleading conduct toward another by trying to convince such 

s person not to cooperate with law enforcement and judicial officers; 

6 Second, Defendant did so with intent to hinder, delay and prevent the 

7 communication to a law enforcement officer or judge of the United States, of infonnation 

g relating to the commission or possible commission of a Federal offense. 

9 d. The elements of the offense of Obstruction of Justice, as charged in 

10 Count 37 of the Indictment, are: 

11 First, Defendant knowingly did conuptly persuade, attempt to corruptly 

12 persuade, and engage in misleading conduct toward another, by trying to convince that 

13 person not to cooperate with law enforcement and judicial officers~ and 

14 Second, Defendant did so with intent to influence, delay, or prevent the 

\s testimony of any person in an official proceeding. 

16 3. The Penalties. 

17 a. The statutory penalties for Production of Visual Depictions of 
~3 

11 Minors Engaged in Sexually Explicit Conduct, as charged in Counts 1 through 21, ~ 

19 through 31, and 33, ofthe Indictment, are, as to each count: imprisonment for not less 

20 than fifteen (15) years and not more than Life, a fine of up to two-hundred and fifty 

21 thousand dollars ($250,000.00), or both, a one-hundred dollar ($100.00) penalty 

22 assessment, and a period of supervision following release from prison of not less than five 

23 (5) years and up to the Jifetime of the offender. 

24 b. The statutory penalties for Transportation of Minors with Intent to 

2s Engage in Illegal Sexual Conduct, as charged in Counts 34 and 35 of the Indictment are: 

26 imprisonment for not less than 10 years nor more than Life, a fine ofup to two-hundred 

21 and fifty thousand dollars {$250,000.00), or both, a one-hundred dollar($ 100.00) penalty 

28 
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1 assessment, and a period of supervision following release from prison of not less than five 

2 (5) years and up to the lifetime of the offender. 

3 c. The statutory penalties for Obstruction of Justice, as charged in 

4 Count 36 and 37 of the Indictment are: imprisonment for not more than 20 years, a fine of 

s up to two-hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00), or both, a one-hundred dollar 

6 ($100.00) penalty assessment, and a period of supervision following release from prison 

1 of not more than three (3) years. 

8 Defendant understands that supervised release is a period of time following 

9 imprisonment, during which he will be subject to certain restrictions and requirements. 

10 Defendant further understands that if supervised release is imposed and he violates one or 

11 more of its conditions, he could be returned to prison for all or part of the tenn of 

12 supervised release that was originaJJy imposed. This could result in Defendant serving a 

13 total tenn of imprisonment greater than the statutory maximum stated above. 

14 Defendant agrees that any monetary penalty the Court imposes, including the 

1 s special assessment, fine, costs or restitution, is due and payable immediately, and further 

16 agrees to submit a completed Financial Statement of Debtor fonn as requested by the 

11 United States Attorney's Office. 

11 4. Rights Waived by Pleading Guilty. Defendant understands that, by 

19 pleading guilty, he knowingly and voluntarily waives the following rights: 

20 

21 

22 peers; 

23 

a. 

b. 

c. 

The right to plead not guilty. and to persist in a plea of not guilty; 

The right to a speedy and public trial before a jury of Defendant's 

The right to the effective assistance of counsel at trial, including, if 

24 Defendant could not afford an attorney, the right to have the Court appoint one for 

2s Defendant; 

26 d. The right to be presumed innocent until guilt has been established at 

27 trial, beyond a reasonable doubt; 

28 
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e. The right to confront and cross-examine witnesses against Defendant 

2 at trial; 

3 f. The right to compel or subpoena witnesses to appear on Defendant's 

4 behalf at trial; 

s g. The right to testify or to remain silent at trial, at which triaJ such 

6 silence could not be used against Defendant; and 

7 h. The right to appeal a finding of guilt or any pretrial rulings 

s 5. United States Sentencing Guidelines. Defendant understands and 

9 acknowledges that, absent applicable intervening law: 

JO a. The United States Sentencing Guidelines, promulgated by the 

1 1 United States Sentencing Commission, are applicable to this case; 

12 b. The Court will detenninc Defendant's applicable Sentencing 

13 Guidelines range at the time of sentencing; and 

14 c. Except as provided in paragraph 7 below, Sentencing, Defendant 

1s may not withdraw a guilty plea solely because of the sentence imposed by the Court. 

16 6. Statement of Facts. The parties agree on the following facts in support of 

11 Defendant's guilty pJea and sentencing. Defendant admits he is guilty of the charged 

1 s offenses and expressly waives any right to have these facts detennined by a jury beyond a 

19 reasonable doubt. 

20 

21 

Background 

a. At all relevant times, WELDON MARC GILBERT resided at his house in 

22 Lake Tapps, Washington. GILBERT was born on August 26, J 960. 

23 

24 

Child Pornqgraphy Production Charges 

b. GILBERT used one or more foreign-made video cameras to create videos 

2s of minors engaged in sexually explicit conduct. AJI of the videos described below were 

26 created using those foreign-made video cameras, and those cameras traveled to 

21 Washington state in interstate and foreign commerce before being used to create those 

28 videos. 
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c. GILBERT filmed all of the videos described below with the purpose and 

2 intent of creating visual depictions of minors engaged in sexually explicit conduct. 

J GILBERT knew that the victims shown on the videos were minors, and he knew that they 

4 were engaging in sexually explicit conduct. 

s d. GILBERT created thirty-one visual depictions of minors engaged in 

6 sexually-explicit conduct, as charged in Counts 1 through 21, 23 through 31, and 33 of 

7 the Indictment. The 'Videos show 17 different victims. The youngest victum are I 0, 12, 

s 13, and 14 when they first appear in the videos. GILBERT arranged the lighting, camera 

9 angle, and the victims' bodies to ensure that the victims' genitalia would be clearly caught 

10 on film. AU of the videos fall into one of the following two categories: (a) GILBERT 

11 engaged in some form of sex act with the victim, or the victim masturbating at 

12 GILBERT's direction; or (b) a lascivious display of the-victims' genitalia. With respect 

13 to category (b), each and every one of those videos also displayed one or more of the 

14 following: (1) GILBERT striking the unclothed victim with his hand, or with an 

1s implement, such as a paddle, belt, or cane; (2) GILBERT restraining the victim, either by 

16 hand or by tying the victim down; (3) the victim indicating that GILBERT was inflicting 

11 pain upon them; (4) welts, bruises, or blisters inflicted by GILBERT, (5) GILBERT 

18 caressing the nude bodies of the victims while striking them; (6) GILBERT commenting 

19 upon the victims' genitalia; (7) GILBERT touching, or attempting to touch, the victims' 

20 genitalia; and (8) GILBERT engaging in a sexual discussion with the victim. 

fa. 21 e. There was no legitimate reason for GILBERT to create any of these visual 

22 depictions of minors engaged in sexually explicit conduct. GILBERT created the videos 

23 for the purpose of producing child pornography that he could watch whenever he wanted 

24 to. GILBERT created these videos over a period of several years. All of the videos were 

2s created in Washington State. GILBERT agrees and acknowledges that all of the videos 

26 were sexually explicit, in that each and every one of the videos showed one or more of the 

21 following: (1) actual or simulated sexual intercourse; (2) masturbation; (3) sadistic abuse; 

28 and (4) lascivious exhibition of the genitals and pubic area. 
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f. GILBERT used, persuaded, and induced each of the victims to appear in the 

2 videos. 

Transportation of minors charees 3 

4 g. In 2005, GILBERT transported a minor male victim ("John Doe I") from 

5 Washington State to Whistler, British Columbia, Canada. One of OILBERT's dominant 

6 purposes in transporting John Doe 1 to Canada was to engage in illegal sexual conduct 

7 with John Doe 1, namely, GILBERT intended to produce pornographic videos of John 

8 Doe 1 in violation of 18 U .S.C. § 22S 1 (a). GILBERT did in fact produce a pornographic 

9 video of John Doe I, the content of which was along the lines of the videos described 

10 above. GILBERT used a video r~order that had traveled in interstate or foreign 

11 commerce, GILBERT knew that John Doe I was a minor, and GILBERT deliberately 

12 created a visual depiction of John Doe I engaged in sexually explicit conduct. 

13 h. ln 2007, GILBERT transported four minor male victims, John Doe J and 

14 three of his friends, from Washington State to Whistler, British Columbia, Canada. One 

15 of GILBERT's dominant purposes in transporting these victims to Canada was to engage 

16 in ilJegal sexual conduct with the victims, namely, GILBERT intended to produce 

11 pornographic videos of the victims in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2251(a). GILBERT used a 

11 video recorder that had traveled in interstate or foreign commerce, GILBERT knew that 

19 the victims were minors, and GILBERT deliberately created a visual depiction of the 

20 victims engaged in sexually explicit conduct along the Jines of the other videos described 

21 above. 

22 Obstruction of ;ustice charges 

23 , . On October 30, 2007, GILBERT learned that he was being investigated by 

24 law enforcement. GILBERT soon learned that the subject of the investigation was child 

2s abuse, child molestation, and production of child pornography. GILBERT knew that the 

26 evidence would prove that he committed these crimes. GILBERT knowingly and 

21 intentionally set out to obstruct the investigation and eventual prosecution of these crimes. 

21 GILBERT repeatedly attempted to tamper with John Doe 1. GILBERT's goals were: (I} 
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1 to prevent John Doe l from telJing Jaw enforcement the truth about GILBERT's crimes; 

2 (2) to prevent John Doc 1 from testifying at trial; and (3) to convince John Doe 1 to make 

3 false: statements in a legal proceeding that would support GILBERT's efforts to suppress 

4 evidence seized during the investigation. 

s j. GILBERT was charged in federal court in this case on November 2, 2007. 

6 From that point on, GILBERT knew that he was the subject of a federal criminal 

7 proceeding before the United States District Court for the Western District of 

s Washington, and his attempts to tamper with John Doe I were aimed at (1) corruptly 

9 persuading John Doe 1 to lie, or to refuse to testify, in that proceeding, and (2) to prevent 

10 John Doe 1 from commwiicatic;;..~mfonnation to federal agents and federal judicial 

11 officers in connection with that proceedingf. 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2) 

k. GILBERT made several attempts to tamper with John Doe l in the manner 

described above. In January of 2008, GILBERT wrote a letter to John Doe I. GILBERT 

arranged for a third party to meet with John Doe l and convey the contents of the letter to 

him. The letter encouraged John Doe 1 to make false statements to the federal judge in 

the context of the federal criminal case. GILBERT believed that these false statements 

would support an effort by defense to have the search warrant declared invalid and the ~ 

critical evidence suppressed. M aA. iAduGcmeel, GILBERT offi:.ted Jobii Doe I a /)1 l:t'r 
fiAaf>oial Alward. In February of 2008, GILBERT wrote another letter to the third party 

he bad previously used to contact John Doe I. In the letter, GILBERT instructed the third 

party about bpw to BJ>PfOa.c~ Jobn Doe 1 anti eon tinee Aim act te lestifJ tratllN:11, to the 
- '11 a L (fhtlll tf((-- '1 '"' f II tt#/- l'I ft 

1'1fP"IL-(."9Hl~,~~6t cooperate with federal agents, in the pending criminal case regarding the 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

federal offense of production of child pornography. GILBERT told the third party to 

mention to John Doe l an incident in which one of John Doe I's friends was charged with 

stealing a television from GILBERT. The third party was to tell John Doc I that 

Gil.BERT was willing to falsely telJ the police that the friend had pennission to take the 

television. GILBERT hoped that, in return for his wiUingness to lie to protect John Doe 
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l's friend, John Doe 1 would stop cooperating with the federal investigation and 

2 prosecution of the case against GILBERT. 

J 7. Sentencioi-

4 Pursuant to Rule l l(c)(IXC) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, the 

s parties acknowledge and agree that the appropriate sentence of imprisonment to be 

6 imposed by the Court at the time of sentencing should be within the range of 228 to 300 

7 months, to be followed by supervised release for life. If the sentencing court rejects the 

8 agreement of the parties and seeks to impose a sentence outside the agreed upon 

9 sentencing range, both the defendant and the United States reserve the right to withdraw 

10 from this agreement pursuant to Rule I l(c)(l)(C) of the Federal Rules of Criminal 

11 Procedure and to proceed to trial. No other agreement has been made with regard to the 

12 imposition of the sentence in this matter, and the parties understand that the Court retains 

13 full discretion to impose a sentence within the range agreed to above. 

t4 8. Presentation of Evidence at Sentencing. The Government agrees to the 

15 following restrictions on the evidence that it will present in support of its sentencing 

16 recommendation: (I) the Government will not present any videos, excerpts from videos, 

17 or stills from videos, unless requested by the Court; and (2) the Government wiU not 

1s present the document it has marked as trial Exhibit 75 (and sub-exhibits), unless 

19 requested by the Court. 

20 With respect to (I}, the Government is free to describe videos in as much detail as 

21 it wishes. Furthcnnorc, if Defendant disputes the accuracy of the Government's 

22 description of a video, the panies agree to request that a judicial officer of this District, 

23 other than the sentencing judge, review the video at issue and report to the sentencing 

24 judge about whether the Government's description is accurate. 

2s Defendant acknowledges and understands that this Paragraph will not bar the 

26 Government from providing whatever infonnation it is required to provide to the United 

21 States Probation Office. 

28 
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9. Non-Prosecution of Additional Offenses. As part of this Plea Agreement, 

2 the United States Attorney's Office for the Western District of Washington agrees to 

l move to dismiss the remaining counts in the Indictment at the time of sentencing and not 

4 to prosecute Defendant for any additional offenses known to it as of the time of this 

s Agmm1cnt that are based upon evidence in its possession at this time, or that arise out of 

6 the conduct giving rise to this investigation. In this regard, Defendant recognizes that the 

7 United States has agreed not to prosecute all of the criminal charges that the evidence 

B establishes were committed by Defendant solely because of the promises made by 

9 Defendant in this Agreement. Defendant acknowledges and agrees, however, that for 

10 purposes of preparing the Presentence Report, the United States Attorney's Office will 

1 t provide the United States Probation Office with evidence of all relevant conduct 

t 2 committed by Defendant. 

13 The United States Attorney's Office for the Western District of Washington also 

14 agrees not to prosecute any other person based upon evidence in its possession at this 

15 time, or that arise out of the conduct giving rise to this investigation, relating to witness 

16 tampering, obstruction of justice, or related offenses, in connection with this case. 

11 Defendant agrees and acknowledges that any charges to be dismissed before or at 

1s the time of sentencing were substantially justified in light of the evidence available to the 

19 United States, were not vexatious, frivolous or taken in bad faith, and do not provide 

20 Defendant with a basis for any future claims under the "Hyde Amendment," Pub.L. No. 

21 105-119 (1997). 

22 IO. Voluntariness of Plea. Defendant acknowledges that he has entered into 

23 this Pica Agreement freely and voluntarily. and that no threats or promises, other than the 

24 promises contained in this Plea Agreement, were made to induce Defendant to enter these 

2s pleas-of guilty. 

26 11 . Statute of Limitations. In the event that this Agreement is not accepted by 

21 the Court for any reason, or Defendant has breached any of the terms of this Plea 

21 Agreement, the statute of limitations shall be deemed to have been tolled from the date of 
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1 the Plea Agreement to: (I) 3 0 days following the date of non-acceptance of the Plea 

2 Agreement by the Court; or (2) 30 days following the date on which a breach of the Plea 

3 Agreement by Defendant is discovered by the United States Attorney's Office. 

4 12. Post-Plea Conduct. Defendant understands that the temis of this Plea 

s Agreement apply on)y to conduct that occurred prior to the execution of this Agreement. 

6 If, after the date of this Agreement. Defendant should engage in illegal conduct, or 

7 conduct that is in violation of his conditions of release or confinement (examples of 

8 which include, but are not limited to: obstruction of justice, failure to appear for a court 

9 proceeding, criminal conduct while pending sentencing, and false statements to law 

10 enforcement agents, the Pretrial Services Officer, Probation Officer or Court), the United 

11 States is free under this Agreement to seek a sentence that takes such conduct into 

12 consideration. Such a sentence could include, to the extent the United States Sentencing 

13 Guidelines are applicable, a sentencing enhancement or upward departure. 

14 13. Forfeiture of Prg,perty: Defendant agrees to forfeit to the United States 

15 immediately all of his right, title and interest in any property, real or personal, used or 

16 intended to be used, to commit or to promote the commission of the offense of Sexual 

17 Exploitation of a Child in the Production of Child Pornography and any property 

1 s traceable to such property, pursuant to Title I 8, United States Code, Section 2253(a)(3}, 

19 including the following properties: 

20 a. One (1) 2004 blue Lexus GX470, bearing Washington license plate 

21 029RYB, VIN JTJBT20X940035 l l 5; 

22 b. One (1) 2006 white Ford Fl 50 pick-up, Washington license plate A68898Z, 

23 VlN 1FTRF12206NB15476; 

24 c. One ( 1) 1981 Bell 206B-111 helicopter bearing tail number N325JR and 

25 serial number 3296, and all flight logs and maintenance logs associated with this aircraft; 

26 d. One (l} 1968 Cessna Al85E Float Plane, Tail #N2210T, Serial #185-1362, 

21 and all flight logs and maintenance logs associated with this aircraft; 

28 
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e. One (l} 2003 Sea Ray Boat, Model 185BR, bearing license nwnber 

2 WN8212NM, Boat Hull #SERV5716E303185BR3560 and One Shore Land'r trailer, 

3 Washington license plate 0059RG, VIN IMDJ2JRJ63A248710; 

4 f. Real property located at 2901 211th Avenue East, Lake Tapps, Washington 

s 98391, parcel numbers 8996010100, its buildings, improvements, appurtenances, 

6 fixtures, attachments and easements, more particularly described as: Lot 10 ofTapps 

7 Island Division No. 1, according to the Plat thereof recorded in volume 48 of Plats at 

s pages 30 to 34, inclusive, records of Pierce County, Washington; and, 

9 g. Real property located at 2901 211th Avenue East, Lake Tapps, Washington 

10 98391, parcel numbers 8996010110, its buildings, improvements, appurtenances, fixtures, 

11 attachments and easements, more particularly described as: Lot 11 ofTapps Island 

12 Division No. 1, according to Plat recorded in Book 48 of Plats at pages 30 to 34, 

13 inclusive, records of Pierce County, Washington; 

14 h. One (J} Sony Digital Hmdicam Digital 8 cam corder, model: 

IS DCR-TRV250, sin: 388947; 

16 i. One {l) Sony Video 8 Hmdycam cam corder, model: model: CCD-TR40, 

11 sin: 3009669; 

18 j. One (1) Averatec laptop computer, model: 5500 series, sin obliterated; 

19 k. One (l) Fry's Intel Pentium 4 computer tower, model: FS7470, sin: 

20 747FSX340000296; 

21 I. One (1) Averatec Notebook computer, model: 2200 series, sin partially 

22 obliterated, starting with NW04CE06040; 

23 m. One (1) Seagate Medalist 13640 hard drive, model: ST313640A, sin: 

24 7 AE054NA; 

2.S 

26 n. One (1) Western Digital WD1600 Enhanced IDE hard drive, model: 

27 WD1600BB-O0DAA0, sin: WMACK2069917; 

28 
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o. One (1) Western Digital 'WD400 Enhanced IDE hard drive, model: 

2 WD400JB-0OENA0, sin: WCAD19728957; 

3 p. One (1) Western Digital WD1600 Enhanced IDE hard drive, model: 

4 WD1600JB-75GVC0, sin: WCAI.96008970; and 

s q. One (I) MX 1000 Camera tripod. 

6 Defendant agrees to forfeit to the United States immediately all of his right, title 

7 and interest in any visual depiction described in Title 18. United States Code, Section 

s 2251, or any book, magazine, periodical, film, videotape or other matter which contains 

9 any such visual depiction, which was produced, transported, mailed, shipped, or received 

1 o in violation of this chapter, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253( a)( l ), 

11 including the following properties: 

12 a. Any and all images of child pornography, in whatever form and however 

13 stored, including but not limited to, those stored on zip disks, CDs/DVDs, video cassette 

14 tapes, and floppy disks . 

IS .Defendant agrees to forfeit to the United States immediately all of his right, title 

16 and interest in any property, real or personal, used to commit or to facilitate the 

17 commission of the violation of Transportation of a Minor to Engage in Illegal Sexual 

18 Activity. and any property traceable to such property, pursuant to Title l8, United States 

19 Code, Section 2428(b)(IXA), including the following property: 

20 a. One (1) 2004 blue Lexus GX470, bearing Washington license plate 

21 029RYB, VIN JTJBTI0X940035 I 15. 

22 Defendant agrees to fully assist the United States in the forfeiture of the listed 

23 assets, including but not limited to: sUJTCndering title and executing any documents 

24 necessary to effectuate such forfeiture; assisting in bringing any assets located outside the 

25 United States within the jurisdiction of the United States; and taking whatever steps are 

26 necessary to ensure that assets subject to forfeiture are not sold, disbursed, wasted, 

21 hidden, or otherwise made unavailable for forfeiture. Defendant further agrees to 

28 
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1 withdraw all clairn(s) to the listed properties in the related civil forfeiture action, United 

2 States v. One 2004 Blue Lexus, GX470, et al., Docket No. C08-5084BHS. 

3 The United States agrees that once the preliminary order of forfeiture is entered, 

4 forfeiting the defendant's interest in the above-listed assets, the government will negotiate 

s with counsel representing the defendant in the related civil forfeiture case in this district 

6 to attempt to achieve the objective of applying the assets, or proceeds from the sale of the 

7 assets, for the benefit of the victims of the crimes to which the defendant is pleading 

s guilty and any related crimes, with the exception of the visual depictions, or those 

9 electronic items containing visual depictions, being forfeited to the United States. In 

10 addition, the government will seek to obtain all necessary approvals to achieve the goal of 

11 utilizing the forfeited assets to compensate the victims of the defendant's crimes, in lieu of 

12 obtaining final orders of forfeiture for the assets. The defendant in turn will take all steps 

13 necessary to ensure that these assets in fact are utilized for the benefit of the victims and 

14 will not go back to him or any of his relatives, including the removal of any liens or 

1 s interests in the assets that currently exist in favor of any of his relatives. 

16 14. Interdependence of Plea Agreements. The parties agree that this Plea 

11 Agreement shall be conditioned upon the defendant entering a plea in Pierce County 

1s Superior Court in the matter of State of Washington v. Weldon Marc Gilbert, cause 

19 nwnber 07-1-05618-3, as set forth in the Memorandum attached as Appendix A to this 

20 plea agreement. 

21 Defendant understands, therefore, that this Agreement is part of a package plea 

22 agreement with the United States and the State of Washington, to wit, if Defendant does 

23 not enter into, and C ., ruan• to the respective Plea Ag,-eements in Federal 

24 District Court and "°~ounty Su~rior Court, or if Defendant subsequently seeks to 

2s withdraw from either guilty plea, then the United States will withdraw from the instant 

26 Plea Agreement and will seek an indictment against Defendant for all crimes for which 

21 the United States has sufficient evidence. Defendant's plea of guilty in State of 

28 Washington v. Weldon Marc Gilbert is integral to the instant plea agreement. If the State 
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1 of Washington fails to abide by the agreement set forth in Appendix A, the defendant may 

2 withdraw his federal plea agreement. 

3 15. Acce_ptance of Responsibility. The United States acknowledges that 

4 Defendant has assisted the United States by timely notifying the authorities of his 

, intention to plead guilty, thereby pennitting the United States to avoid preparing for trial 

6 and permitting the Court to allocate its resources efficiently. If at the time of sentencing, 

7 the United States remains satisfied that Defendant has accepted responsibmty, then it will 

s recommend a sentence that takes this acceptance of responsibility into consideration. 

9 Defendant understands and agrees that the United States will base its recommendation on 

10 factors set forth in the United States Sentencing Guidelines, including Section 3El .1. 

11 16. Waiver of Appeal. As part of this Plea Agreement and on the condition that 

12 the Court imposes a tenn of imprisonment that does not exceed the sentencing range set 

IJ forth in this Agreement, Defendant waives to the full extent of the law: 

14 a. any right conferred by Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 to 

15 appeal the sentence, including any restitution order imposed; and 

16 b. any right to bring a collateral attack against the conviction and 

17 sentence, including any restitution order imposed, except as it may relate to the 

1 s effectiveness of legal representation 

19 Furthermore, this waiver does not preclude Defendant from bringing an 

20 appropriate motion pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 2241, to address the conditions of his 

2l confinement or the decisions of the Bureau of Prisons regarding the execution of his 

22 sentence. 

23 If Defendant breaches this Plea Agreement at any time by appealing or coHaterally 

24 attacking ( except as to effectiveness of legal representation) the conviction or sentence in 

25 any way, the United States may prosecute Defendant for any counts, including those with 

26 mandatory minimum sentences, that were dismissed or not charged pursuant to this Plea 

27 Agreement. 

28 
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17. Completeness of A~ement. The United States and Defendant 

2 acknowledge that these terms constitute the entire Plea Agreement between the parties. 

3 This Agreement only binds the United States Attorney's Office for the Western District of 

4 Washington. It does not bind any other United States Attorney's Office or any other 

s office or agency of the United States, or any state or local prosecutor. 

• Dated thi;,£,(dayof A;~'\ , 2009. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

MICHAEL DION 
Assistant United States Attorney 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
V. 

W cstem District of Washington 

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE 

Case Number: 
WELDON MARC GILBERT 

USM Number: 

CR07-5732BHS-00l 

379S5-086 

John Henry Browne 

THE DEFENDANT: 

181 pleaded guilty to count(s) l - 21, 23 - 31 and 33 • 37 of1he Indictment 

f!. pleaded nolo contendere to coun.1(s) 
which was accepted by the court. 

O was found guilty on count(s) 

after a plea of not guilty. 

The defmdant is adjudicated guilty of these offenses: 

Title & Seetlon 

18 U.S.C. §§ 2251(a) and (e) 
and 2256 
18 U.S C. §§ 2423(a} and 2 
18 u.s.c § 1512(bXJ) 
18 U.S.C. § JS12(bXI} 

Nature of Offease 

Sexual Exploitation of a Child in the Production of Child 
Pornography 
Tnmspo,tation of a Minor to Engage in Illegal Sexual Activity 
Obstruction of JUJtice 
Obs1ruction of Justice 

Offepse Ended 

10/3112007 

10/31fl007 
08/28/2008 
08/28/2008 

Plea: 04/23/09 

1 - 21 , 23-31 aod 
33 

34 and 35 
36 
37 

The defendant ls sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 
the Sentencing Refonn Act of 1984. 

__ 1 ____ oftlus Judgment. The sentence 1s imposed pursuant to 

O The defendant h~ been found not guihy on toont(s) 

~ Cowit(s) 22, and 32 of the Indictment • is 11 arc dismissed on the motion of the United States. 

It is ordered that the defendant must notify the United States attorney for this district within 30 <!•Y.S of any chan_gc o~f name, residence, 
or mailmg_ address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special assessments Imposed t,, this judrptent are fully paid. If ordered to pay resthution, 
the dcfenciant must notify the court and United States Attorney of material dianges m econom,c circumstances. 

~l~ Assi~ Stat~ rncy 

ble Benjamin H. Settle 
United States District Judge 

Ncni, I b 1 2o09 
Date 
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Shed 2 - Imprisonment 

DEFENDANT: 
CASE NUMBER: 

WELDON MARC GILBERT 
CR07-5732BHS-001 

IMPRISONMENT 

Judjp:Dent - Page _2_ of 

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody oftbe Umted States Bureau of Prisons to be DDprisoned for a 

total tenn of. !)Cb MQn)l\S ( d-5" '{#O,f5) 

)! The court tnakes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: 

CcxJr+ ~tOMM~ :p ~y od­
lU"°"MJ~ :n;W 

Bl The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal. 

D The defendant shall surrender to the United States Marshal for this district: 

_g at ______ E. a.m. 2 p.m. on 

Q. as notified by the United States Marsha]. 

D The defendant shall surrender for service of sentence at the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons: 

g before 2 p.m. on 

Q. as notified by the United States Marshal. 

Q. as notified by the Probation or Pretrial Services Office. 

RETIJRN 

I have executed this judgment as follows: 

Defendant delivered on to 

7 

----------- --------------
at ____________ , with a certified copy of this judgment. 

UNITED STA TES MARSHAL 

By------------------DEPU1Y UNITED STAT.BS MARSHAL 
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Sheet 3 - SUJIQ'V1Sed Re.lease 

DEFENDANT: WELDON MARC OD.,BERT 
CR07-S732BHS-001 CASE NUMBER; 

SUPERVISED RELEASE 
Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of: L; ~ :U-
The defendant must report to the probation office in the district to which the defendant is released within 72 hours of release from 
the custody of the Bureau of Prisons. 

The defendant shall not commit another federal, state or local crime. 

The defendant shall not unlawfully ~CM a controlled substance. The defendant shall refrain from any unlawful use of a 
controlled substance. The defendant shall submit to one drug and/or alcohol test within 15 days of release from bnprisonment 
and at least two periodic drug tests thereafter, not to exceed eight valid tests pc,rmonth, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3563(aXS) 
and 18 U.S.C. § 3583(d). 

0 
The above drug testing condition is suspended, based on the court's detcnniDation that the defendant poses a low nsk of 
future substance abuse. (Check, if applicable.) 

® The defendant shall not possess a firearm, ammunition, destJUctive device, or any other dangerous weapon. (Check. if 
applicable.) 

® The defendant shall cooperate in the collection of DNA as directed by the probation officer. (Chock, if applicable) 

181 The defendant shall register with the state sex offender rcgism.ltion agency_ in the state where the defendant resides, 
works, or is a student, as directed by tho probation officer. (Check, if applicable.) 

• The defendant shall participate in an approved program for domestic violence. (Check, if applicable.) 

If this judgment imposes a fine or restitution, it is a condition of supeivised release that the defendant pay in accordance 
with the Schedule of Paymeots sheet of this judgment. 

The defendant must comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court as well as with any additional 
conditions on the attached page. 

STANDARD CONDITTONS OF SUPERVISION 

l) the defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the pennission of the court or probation officer; 

2) the defendant shall report to the probation officer and shall submit a truthful and complete written report withm the first 
five days of each month; 

3) the defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation 
officer; 

4) the defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities; 

5) the defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occ:upation, unless excused by the probation officer for schooling. training. 
or other acceptable reasons; 

6) the defendant shall notify the probation officer at least ten days prior to any change in residence or employment; 

7) the defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shaU not purchase, possess, use, djstribute, or administer 
any ':(>!1trolled substance or any paraphernalia related to any controlled substances, except as prescribed by a 
phys1c1an; 

S) the ~e{endant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are iJlegally sold, used, distributed, or 
administered; 

9) the defendant shall not associate with any persons e~ged in criminal activity and shall not associate with any person 
convicted ofa felony, unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer, 

10) the defendant shall pennit a probation officer to visit him or her at IIJ1}' time at home or elsewhere and shall pennit 
confiscation of any contrabana observed in plain view of the probation officer; 

11) the defendant shaJI notify the probation officer within sevcnty•two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law 
enforcement officer; 

12) 

13) 

the defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency 
without the pennission oftbe court; and 

as directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third ~es of risks that may be occasioned by the 
defendant's criminal record or personal history or characteristics and shall permit the probation officer to make such 
notifications and to conf'arm the defendant's compliance with such notification requirement. 
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Sheet JC - Supc,v!Sed Release 

--- --· ---- . 

Judgmcot-Plp __!._ or _......:.7 __ 
DEFENDANT: 
CASE NUMBER: 

WELDON MARC GilJ3BRT 
CR07 •5732BHS-OO l 

SPECIAL CONDmONS OF SUPERVISION 

The defendant shall submit to a search of his or her person. residence, office, property, storage unit or vehicle conducted in a 
reasonable m~ and at a reasonable time by a probation officer. 

The defendant shall not possess or ~e any authentic, altered, or manufactured. in whatever form, material that d~icts and/or 
describes "sexually explicit conduct," as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 22S6(2) or "child pornography," as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2256(8). 

The defendant's emplo~ent must be approved in advance by the probation officer. The defendant may not engage in any paid 
occupation or volunteer service that exposes him/her, either directly or indirectly, to minors, unless approved in advance by the 
probation officer. 

The defendant, who is r:equired to register wider the Sex Offender Registration and Notification Act, must comply with all 
req_uiremeots of that Act The defendant shall report the address where the defendant will reside and any subsequent change of 
residence to the probation officer responsible for supervision, and shall register as a sex offender in any jurisoiction where the person 
resides, is emplor,ed. or is a student For initial registration p~ only, the defendant shall also register in the jurisdiction in 
which convicted if such jurisdiction is different from the jurisdiction of the residence. Registration must occur within three business 
days after sentencing (1f the offender did not receive a prison sentence) or within three business days after being released from 
custody.) 

The defendant shall participate in a sexual deviancy evaluation conducted by a sexual deviancy treatment provider, as directed 
and approved bv the U $ . Probation Officer. The treatment provider shall be trained and experienced in the treatment of sexual 
deviancy, and follow the guideline practices established by the Association for'e Treatment of Sexual Abusers (ATSA). The 
sexual deviancy evaluation may include psychological and physiological testin . The defendant shall disclose alf previous sex 
offender or mental health evaluations to the treatment J>!OVic:fer. The defendants all also contribute to the costs of the evaluation, 
according to his/her ability, as determined by the U.S. Probation Officer. '°~~ i) l~~V\ 

The defendant shall actively participate and make reasonable progress in a certified sexual deviancy treatment program, as 
designated bY. the U.S. Probation Officer. The sexual deviancy treatment program shall follow the ~idelmc practices established 
by tfie Association for the Treatment of Sexual Abusers (ATSA). The program shaJJ offer indiVJdual and goup session~ and 
apJJropriate testing. to determine the defendant's patterns of sexual arousal, and to monitor the defendant's J)rogress and compliance 
with treatment goals and conditions of supervision. The defendant shall disclose all previous sex offender or mental health 
evaluations to the treatment ~vider. The defendant shall also contribute to the costs of treatment, according 10 hisnier ability, as 
determined by the U.S. Protiation Officer. 

The defendant shall follow all rules, to include other lifestyle restrictions by the defendant's therapist, and continue with those 
rules and restrictions as they pertain to avoiding risk situations throughout the course of the defendant's supervision. 

The defendant shall no!_go to place.s nor loiter within J 00 feet of an area where minors are known to frequent without the prior 
apJ?foval of the probation officer and the sexual deviancy therapist. The defendant shall not affiliate with, own, control, volunteer, 
an?f or be employed. in any capacity, by an organimtion in an activity, which would place him/her in direct or indirect contact with 
children under the age of 18. 

The defendant shall have no direct or indirect contact with any children under the age of 18, unless accompanied and supervised 
by an adult, who has been approved in advance hY- the sexual deviancy therapist and the ~__pervising probation officer. The 
defendant shall immediately report any unautborize"1 contact with children to the probation officer and sexual deviancy therapist 

The defendant's residence shall be ptt--aeproved by the probation office. The defendant shaJl not reside in direct view of places 
used primaril)' ~ minors, such as school ram![ parks. public swimming ~ls. or n:crcational centers, playgrounds, youth centers, 
video arcade factlities, or other places prunari y used by children under the age of 18. 

Restitution in the amount of$TBD is due immediately. Any unpaid amount is to be paid during the period of s~tsion in 
m~thly installments of not less than I 0% of his or her gross monthly household income. Interest on the restitution shall not be 
waived. 

The defendant shall consent to the U.S. Probation Office conducting on~oing monitoring of bis/her computer( s ), hardware, and 
software, and any/and all electronic devices/media. The monitoring may mclude the installation, at the defendant's expense, of 
hardware or software systems which allow evaluation of his/her computer use. Monitoring may also include the retneval and 
copying of all data form hls/her co~tet(s) or any/and all other electronic devices/media. The defendant shall also comply with 
the requirements of the U.S. Probation Computer Monitoring Program as directed. 

The defendant shall provide the probation officer with access to any requested financiaJ information includmg authorization 
to conduct credit checks and obtain copies of the defendanfs federal income tax returns. 

M::> (orla.C..~ ~~~ v,c..~,·"1. s 
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Jud&nWtt-Paee _L.. of ____ , __ 

DEFENDANT: 
CASE NUMBER: 

WELDON MARC GILBERT 
CR07-5732BHS-OO I 

CRIMINAL MONETARY PENALTIES 

Assessment 
TOTALS S 3.500 

Fine 
s Waived 

Restitution 
s TBD 

0 The determination of restitution is deferred until • An Amended JudgfnellJ m a Criminal Care (AO 245C) will be ---entered after such determination 

D The defendant must make restitution (including community restitution) to the following payees in the amount listed below. 

Jf the defendant makes a partial payment, each payee shall receive an approximately t)l"Ol)Orti~~ p_a~ unless ~i.fied otherwise in 
the priorit)' order or percen .. payment columo below. However, pursuant to 1811.S.C. § 3664(1), all nonfederal victims must be paid 
before the U~ States is paid. 

Name or Payee Total Loss• 
TBD 

TOTALS $ TBD 

• Restitution amount ordered pursuant to plea agreement S 

$ 

Rptttytloa Ordered 
TBD 

TBD 

Priority or Percentage 

181 Tho defendant must pay interest on restitution and a fine of more than $2,SOO, unless the restiUltion or fine is paid in full before the 
fifteenth day after the date ofthejudpJcot. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(f). All of the payment options on Sheet 6 may be subject 
to penalties for delinquency and default, pursuant to 18 U SC. § J612(g) . 

.Q The court detmnined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest and it 1s ordered that 

• the interest requirement is WaJved for the • fine Q. restitution. - -
D the interest rcquireDJ.ent for the g fine Q restitution is modified as follows· 

0 The ~urt finds that the defendant is financially unable and is unlikely to become able to pay a fine Blld, accordingly, the imposition of 
a fine 1s waived 

• Findings for the total amount ofloues 111e ~ed UDder Chapters 109A, 110, 11 0A, and 113A ofTitle 18 for offenses committed on or after 
Septemtier 13, 1994, but before April 23, 199"6. 
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DEFENDANT: 
CASE NUMBER: 

WELDON MARC GILBERT 
CR07-5732BHS-001 

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS 

Judpncul- Page _i,_ of 

Having assessed tho defendant's ability to pay, payment of the total criminal monetary pcoalties are due as follows: 

PA YMENf IS DUE IMMBDIA TEL Y. Any unpaid amount shall be paid to Clerk's Office, United States District Cowt, 
700 Stewart Street, Seattle, WA 98101. 

181 During the period of imprisonment, no less than 25% of their inmate gross monthly income or $25.00 ~ quamr, 
whichever 1s greater, to be collected and disbursed in a.cc:ordance witli the Inmate Financial Responsibility J>rogram. 

~ During the period of supervised release, in monthly installments amounting to not less than 10% of the defendant's 
gross monthly household income, to commence 30" days after release from 1mprisooment 

-
• During the period of probation, m monthly installments amounting to not less than 10% of the defendant's gross 

monthly household income, to commence 30 days after the date of this judgment. 

The p~yment schedule above is the minimwn amount that the defendant is expected to pa):' towards the monetary 
J>Cl!alties imposed by the Court. The defendant shall ~Y more than the amount established whenever J>Ossible. The 
defendant must notify the Court, the United States Probation Office, and the United States Attorney's Office of any 
material change in the defendant's financial circumstances that might affect the ability to pay restitution. 

Un)ess the coW1 has expressly ordered otherwise, if this judgment imposes imprisonment, payment of criminal monetary penalties 
is due during imP.risonment. All crim.inal monetary penalties, except those payments made tlirough the Federal Bureau of Prisons' 
Inmate Financial Responsibility Progr3,!ll are maae to the United States District Court, Westem District of Washington. For 
restitution payments, the Clerk of tJie Court is to forward money received to the party(ies) designated to receive restitution 
specified on 'the Criminal Monet.Bries (Sheet S) page. 

The defendant shall receive credit for all payments previously made toward any criminal monetary penaJties imposed. 

D Joint and Several 

Defendant and Co-Defendant Names and Case Numbers (incJuding defendant number), Tota1 Amount. Joint ond Several 
and corresponding payee, if appropriate. 

D The defendant shall pay !he cost of prosecution. 

• The defendant shall pay the following court 

.! The defendant shall forfeit the defendant's interest in the following property to the United States: 

Pa)'!!lcnts shall be !IPJ)lled in the following order· (1) assessment, (2) restitution princ~ (3) restitution interest, (4) fine principal, 
(S) fine mtenst, (6) commullity restitution, (7) penalties, and (8) cost!, including cost of prosecution and court costs. 
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Sbeet 6- Scbedulo of Paymcats 

1udpnont-P• _]__ of ___ 1......__ 

DEFENDANT· 
CASE NUMBER: 

WELDON MARC Oll.BERT 
CR07-5732BHS-OOJ 

ADDITIONAL FORFEITED PROPERTY 

One 2004 blue Lexus GX470, bearing Washington license 029RYB, VIN ITJBT20X940035115; One 2006 white Ford 
Fl SO pick-up, WashingtonlicenseA68898Z, VINIFTRF12206NB15476; One 1981 Bell206Bhelicopter, Tail#N325JR, 
Serial #3296. and all flight logs and maintenance logs associated with this aircraft; One 1968 Cessna A I SSE float plane, 
Tail #N221 OT. Serial # 185-1362, and all flight logs and maintenance logs associated with this aircraft; One 2003 Sea Ray 
boat, Model 18SBR, license #WN8212NM, Boat Hull #0059RG, VIN 1MDJ2JR163A248710; Real property located at 
2901 211 th Avenue East, Lake Tapps, Washington 98391, parcel numbers 8996010100, its buildi.n2S. imt>C?vement, 
appw1enances, fixtures, attachments and easements, more particularly described as : Lot 10 ofTapps Isfaitd Division No. 
l, according to the Plat thereof recorded in volume 48 of Plats at pages 30 to 34, inclusive records of Pierce County, 
Washington; Real property located at 2901 21 llh Avenue East, Lake Tapps, Washington 98391, parcel numbers 
89960101 10, its buildings, unprovement, appurtenances, fixtw-es, attachments and easements, more particularly described 
as : Lot 11 ofTapps Island Division No. 1, according to the Plat thereof recorded in volume48 of Platsatpages30to 34, 
inclusive records of Pierce County, Washington; One Sony Digital Han.di cam Digital 8 camcorder, model DCR-TRV250, 
Serial #388947~ One Sony Video 8 Handicam camcorder, model CCE-TR.40, Serial #3009669; One Averatec laptop 
com~er, model 5500 senes, Serial number obliterated; One Fry's Intel Pentium 4 computer tower, model FS74 70, Serial 
#7 4 x.340000296; One Averatec Notebook computer model 2200 series, Serial number partially obliterated, starting 
with NW04CE6040; One SeaGate Medalist 13640 bard drive, model SD13640A. Serial #7AE054NA; One Western 
Digital WD1600 Enhanced IDE bard drive, model WD1600BB-00DAAO, Serial #WMACK2069917; Onee Western 
Digital WD400 Enhanced IDE bard drive, model WD400JB-00ENA0, Serial #WCADJ9728957; One Western Digital 
WO 1600 Enhanced IDE hard drive, model WD 1600JB-75GVCO, Serial #WCAL96008970; One MX 1000 camera trii>od; 
and Any and all images of child pornography, in whatever fonn and however stored, including but not limited to, those 
stored in zip disks, CDs/DVDs, video cassette tapes, and floppy disks. 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN District of WASHJNGTON 

UNITED ST A TES OF AMERICA 
V. 

WELDON MARC Gil.BERT 

Date o(Oriplal Judgmnt: November 16. 2009 
(Or Date of Laft AIIUDdtd Jaclpant) 

Reason for Amcadmeut: • C«niciioD or Samnce oe 1--4 cu u s.c n•zcfX 1 > ..a Cl)l 
0 Rammoo of Smtatce a 0-p,d Cin:WDISW:III (PGd. R. Crim 

p Jl{b)) 

0 Qwnc:IJOII of~ by SeDIIDcm& CoU1 (fed. IL Crim P lj(a)) 

D Camctioa ors- a Clerical Mmau (Fed R. em. P. 36) 

THI. DEFU{l)ANt: 

AMENDED JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE 

Case Number: 
USM Number. 
John H!!!!)'. Browne 

CR07-S732BHS--OO I 
379S5-086 

0 ModiliRilioa of Sllp9MtioD ~ (1I U.S C ff 3"6.J(e)ar 3SIJ(e)) 

• Mochfic.lboa of lnlpoHd T-r>f~ (Of~ ud 
Compellia, a-(11 U.S.C. t l$12(cXJ)) 

0 Moddicatioa oflmpoud Timi oftmprilanmall llr ~ Amendlllall(•) 

1o 111c Sclltcnca11 OaidDlua (11 u.s.c. t 3.5Cl(cXl)) 

0 Dlra:I MOIIOG ID DiSlricl Court Pmsuut O 21 USC f 22SS or 
0 11 U.S C. f3S.59(cl(7) 

O Mod~ of.._doo Onlar (11 U.S C f 3664) 

• plcadcd pilty t.o Counts 1-21, 23-31. and Jl-lZ ofthe fowth SuJmsediOI Indictment 
O pleaded nolocontendere to coum(s) 

which was aoceptod by the court. 
D WIii found &\lilly on coum(s) 

a&r a pld of not guilty. 
Tbc defendant is adjlldicated guihy of 1hesc offenses: 

Titt, & Sectiq!l Date Offeue 
N9tpre of 00:cose Coaduded 

JB USC§§ 22Sl(a) & (e) Sexual Exploitation of Child in Production or Child Pornography I 0/3 lflOCY1 
and2256 

Count Number 
1-21, 23-3}, & 33 

) 8 USC §§ 2423(a) and 2 Transportation of a Minor to Enpge in megal SexuaJ Adivity I 0/31 /2007 34 and lS 
18 USC §§ J 512(1>)(3) Obslnlctiol, of Ju.sllce 0&128/l0OB 36 
J 8 USC §§ I 512(1>)(1) ObStrUCtloo or Justice l)&/28/2008 37 

The dcft:ndant is sen~ as provided in pages 2 through 8 of this judlJDfflf. The sanence Is imposed pursuant to 
the Scntem:mg R.cfonn Aa of 1984 

O The defc:odant bu been found not guihy on coWU(s) 

0 Count(s) 22 llld 32 • is • an dismissed on. the motion ofthe United Scates. 

It is ordared that the defendant must notify the United S'-8 Attorney for this district within 30 4&.YS of llll)'~ of name. rcaldence, 
or mailin& addt1sU until an fines, nsdtutlon. cosu. ilDd special usasmcnrs imposed l?Y thi1judgmfl!lt are fillJy pdd. If ordered to pay resdlUtion, 
the defcnaant flllllt no1ify the coun and United States attvmey of nw.enal GbllllgllS in econowc eitcumstances. 
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Case 3.07-cr-05732-BHS Document 335 Filed 10/07/11 Page 2 of 8 

AO 24SC (Rev. 61'2005) Amended Judgment in a Criminal Case (Rev. USAO 10/2005) 
Sheet 2 - lmprisomncnt (NOTE: Identify Cbugcs wflh Asterisb (•)) 

DEFENDANT: 
CASE NUMBER: 

Weldon MIIJ'C Gilbert 
CR07-S732BHS-OO I 

Judgment- Page __L_ of ___ 8.__ 

IMPRISONMENT 

The defendant Is hereby committed to the cUSlody of the United State3 Bureau of Prisons to be: Jmprisonod for a 

to1al term of: 300 months (25 yean) 

O The c:ourt makes thr:, following m;ommendatioos to the Bure1111 of Prisons: 

The court recommends that the defendant be placed at Terminal Island Correctio11.al Fecility. 

0 Tbc dertodant is remanded to lhe custody of the United Slates Marshal. 

• The defcodant shall smrender to the United Slates Marshal for this dutrict: 

D at 0 a.m. 0 p.m. on 

D u J1Qtificd by the United Staes Marshal. 

D The dcfatdai:rt shall SUl'fflJder fvr service of sentence ll the institution dcsignaied by 1hc Bureau of Pri5ons: 

O bcfbre 2 p.m. on 

0 as 11oti6ed by Cbc United SUttea Marshal. 

O as it0bficd by the Probation or Pretrial Services Office. 

RETURN 
I ba~ executed this judpent as foUOW5' 

Defendant dlllivered 011 
------------- to 

at _____________ with a certified copy of this Judgmeat. 

By----------""""'"---:-'.'""'.""----DEPUTY lllfflE> ST ATES MAKSKAL 
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Case 3:07-cr-05732-BHS Document 335 Filed 10/07/11 Page 3 of 8 

AO ~- 6/2005) Amended Judpxot in a Criminal Case {Rev. USAO I 0/2005) 
Shed 3 - Supervised Rclcale 

DEFENDAN'f: 
CASI! NUMBER: 

Weldon Marc Gilbert 
CR07-S732BHS-00 l 

SUPERVISED RELEASE 
Upon release from imprisonment. the defendant shall be on supervised 

e 

GJ The defenclant shall oot ccmmil anodlcr fedcnl. stm or local crime. 

C The defendant shall DO( llDlawfullY possess I controlled substance. The del'endant shall rmam i'orn 1111)'. unJawft&J USC or. contn>lled 
subst.ancc. The defaldaat shall suoinit to one dnlg te.1t within 1.5 ~ of release from ~t 111if at leut two J)Criodic: dnig 
tcsu thcR:after, up to a maximum of I tests per month at daSes and times dtreCtcd by tho U.S. Probatioo Officer. 

0 The aboYe drag~ eot\dltion is aaspendcd, based cm the co11rt'1 determination that lhe defmdmrt poses a low risk offuwre 
subsunce ~- (Cleek, ifapplicablc.) 

D The defeailant shall not posse.,, a fimQm, desuucdve device. or any other dangerous weapon. (Cbcd. If applicable.) 

0 The defendant shall COOpende in the collection of DNA «s directed by the probation officer. (Check. if applicable.) 

• The defendaat &ball rcginc:r witb the state KX. off'CDder reglstJllion ageoey ill the stattJ where the defaidant resides, worts, or is a 

S1ixlent. as direaed by the probation ofJic:er. (Check. if applicable.) 

• The dcfeDdant shall participate in an approved program for domestic violence. (Cleek, if applicable.) 

lfthisjud~ lm~ a fine or restitution, it ii a condition ofsupervi,ed release that the defendlllll pay in accordincc with the 
Schedule of Pl)'nleSl1s sheet of this judgment. 

Tbed9fendantmuatcompJywitb thutudard coaditioaslhat have been adopk:d bythisc:ourt as well as with IJl)'addirional conditions 
OD the attached page. 

STANDARD CONDm0NS OF SUPERVISION 
I) 

the defcPdant shall noc leave the judicial dis1rict without the permission ofmc court or probauon officer, 

2) the defendant shall ropon to the probation officer and shall submit a truthful and oompldD wrmm report within the nm five days of 
eadt month; 

3) the defendant shall answer tnnhfiJIJy all inquiries by the probation officer aod follow the instruclions oflhe probation officar; 

4) the d$t1d&nt shall suppon his or hu dependents and meet ocher family nispollll"bilitlos; 

.5) the defendaal &ball wort regularly a1 a lawful oc:cupalioo, unle• excused by the proballon officer for &diooling. training. or olhcr 
aec:eptable n::asona; 

6) the defelldant shall notify the probation offiur at least ten days prior lo any change in residence or employm,cut; 

7) the dc(eildant shall rehin from cxcc.ssive use of alcohol and ahalJ DOt purchase, possess, use. dlaUibute. or ldminilm' any 
controllcd sub8'111Ce or any paniphemalia related to aoy controlled substances, except u prescribed by a pliysician; 

8) the defelldant shall not m,qucnl places where rontrolled substances are illcp1ly sold. uted. distributed, or lldminlsterod; 

9) the d~ shall not associate with any persons enr,&cd in criminaJ activity 111d sbalJ oot asociate with my penon convictc:d of a 
felony, 1111less granlDd pcnnlssion to do so by the probation officer; 

I 0) the defondant shall P.C!'Dit a probation officer to wit him or bet at any time at home: or elsewhere and shall pemnt confisadion of my 
contraband observed i11 plam view of the probatioo officer; 

I I) the defendant shall notify the probation officer wfth111 ~two hoW"S ofbeing arr~ or qucsdoaed by a law enforcement officer; 

12) the defcsldant lhall not enter into any agreement to act as an infonni:r or a apeclal agent of a law enforcement agency without the 
permission of the coun; and 

13) as directed bytbe probation officer, the defendant shalJ no~tmrd parties ofrisb that maybe occasioned by tho defendant's criminal 
m;o?4,-personal bisb>ry.orcbarlctaistic:a and sbalJ permit the p,-obilion ofticarto make such DOtificatiom arid confirm the defendant's 
compUiince W1th such notificatJoD requirmbent 
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Case 3:07-cr-05732-BHS Document 335 Filed 10/07/11 Page 4 of 8 

A024SC 
Sha:t JC - Supemscd Release 

DEFENDANT: 
CASE NUMBER: 

Weldon Marc Gilbert 
CR07-5732BHS-001 

Jadgmmrt-Page _4 -

SPECIAL CONDffiONS OF SUPERVISION 

I 

The defendant shall submit to a search of bis/her pc;rson, residence office propony storage unit. or vehicle conducted in a 
reasonable manner and al a reasonable time by a probation officer. ' • ' 

The defendant shaJJ not possess or peruse any authentic, altered or manufactqred in whatever fonn matma:I that depicts 
and/or descnoes .. sexually explicit condoot." as defined in 18 USC § 2256(2) or "child pomog,apby i as defined in 1 g USC 
§2256(8). ' 

The defendant', employment must be approved in advance by the probation officer. The defendant may not engage in eny 
pajd occupati~ or volunteer service that exposes him/her, either directly or inclirectly, to minors, unless approved in advance 
I>)' the prooat1on officer. 

The defendant, who is required to register under the Sex Offender Registration and Notification A~ must comply with all 
R)C!Uirements of the Act. The defendant shall report the address where the defendant will reside and any su!>sequeot change 
of residence to the probation offtcer reaponsible for ~ion, and shal I register as a sex offender in ~ jurisdiction wtiere 
the person resi~ IS employed, or is a student. For initial registndion P,~B only, the defendant shall also register in the 
jurisdiction in which convicted if such jurisdiction is different from the )unsdiction of the residence. Registration must occur 
within three business days after sentencing (if the offender did not receive a prison sentence) or within tliree business days 

· after being released from custody. 

The defendant shall partici~ in a sexual de'liaocy &valuation conducted by a sexual deviancy trealment providct, as 
directed and approyed by the U.S. Probation Officer. The tn:atmcnt J>J:OVide:r shall be trained and CXPCricnccd in the 
tn::atmont of sexual deviancy, and follow the guideline ~tices established by the Association for t6e T'"1mcnt of Sexual 
Abusers (ATSA). The scxua.l deviancy evaluation may include psycbologicaI and physiologicaJ testing .. ucept 
pletbyamoenpb u The defendant shall disclose all 1Rvious sex offender or mental health evaluations to tho treatment 
provider. The <iefendant shall also contribute to the cosu of the IMl.!uation, according to bis/her ability, as determined by the 
U.S. Probation Offi¢er. 

The defendant shall fo0ow all rules, to lncludo other fifestylo restrictions, recommended by the defendant's therapist, and 
continue with those rules and restrictions as they pertain to avoiding risk situations throughout the COW'SC of supel'\llsion. 

The defendant shall not go to places nor loiter within l 00 feet of an area where minors are known to frequent without the 
prior approval oftbe probation officer and the sexwil devi~ therapist. The defendant shall not affiliate with. own, control, 
vol~t.eer, and/or~ emP,l~cd. in any capacity, l,y au organwtion in an activity which would place him in the direct or 
indlf~t contact with elrildn,n under the age of 18. 

The defendant shall have oo direct Qr indirect contact with any children under the age of 18, unless acc:o~iod and 
su~ised by ao adult, who has been awroved in andvanc:c, hr the sexual devian~ therapist and lhc s~ing probation 
officer. The defendant sbaJJ immediately report any unauthori28d contact with children to the probation officer and sexual 
deviancy therapist. 

The defendant's residellce shall be pre-approved by the probation office. The defendant shall not teSide in direct view of 
p~ used prin,arlJy by ~ Jucb as school yards, (18Tb. public swimmms pools, or r~JNtionaJ cent~ playgrounds, 
youth centers, vidao arcade facilities, or ocher places primariJy used by children under the age of 18. 

Restitution io the unount ofSl,072,175.76 is due in full within 30 days. 

"The defendant shall consent to the U.S. Probatioa Office conducting ongo~ monitoring of bis computers, hardware, and 
software and any electronic devices/media. The monitoring may include the installation, at the defendant's expense, of 
hardwware or software syst.ems which allow evaluation of his computer use. Monitoring may also include the retrieval and 
copying of all data from his computers or any/all other electronic dcvices/me<ila. The defendant shall also comply with the 
requirements of the U.S. Probation Computer Monitoring Program as d~ted. 

The defeadant shall provide the probation officer with access to any requested financiaJ .information including 
authorir.stiona to conduct credit ctiecks and obtain c;0pies of the defendant's federal income tax returns. 

The defendant shall have no contact whaisoever with any of the victims in this case. 
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Filed 10/07/11 Page 5 of B 

DEFENDANT: 
CASE NUMBER: 

Weldon Marc Gilbert 
CR07-S732BHS-00 I 

Judgmmt-J'lp _i_ of _ .... 8 ___ _ 

CRIMINAL MONETARY PENALTIES 

The defendant must pay the following total criminal monetary pcnaJdes under lhc schedule of payments on Sheet 6. 

Asscpmegt lilt R@!imtiot 
TOTALS S 3,SOO S Waived S $1,072,175.76 

0 The detennination of restltudon is dcfcmd until _. An Amawled J-.idg,nalfl lit a Cri111iMl CO# (AO 24$C) will be 
entered after such determination. 

D The defendant shall make restitution (!Deluding community nisdtutioo) to the following payee, in tho 8DIOUDt llmd below. 

If die defendanl makes a partial payment, each payee shall receive 11D approximate>v DrODOl'tloned ~ unless ~ificd 01herwise in 
the prillrn)' ~dcr or p«e;entage payment column below. HoWffllCF, pursuant to 18'U.S.C:. § 3664{l), all oonfedenJ victims must be paid 
before the United States II pa,cl. 

Name of Payee 

John Doe 1 
John Doe 2 
JobnDoe3 
JohnDoe4 
Johp Does 
Sec Add'l P11yceson 

TOTALS 
$ 

Amount or Total 

23,612,50 
51,250.00 
98,750.00 
67.127.59 
94,144.17 

Attached page 

1,072,175.76 

Amount or Resfflption 

23,612.50 
51250,00 
98,750.00 
'21,127.59 
94,144.IZ 

S I,0n,175.76 

D Restrtution 1DDOW1t ordc:rod pumiant to plea agreement S ______ _ 

Priority or Percent@ge 

• The dcfeodaru must pay intetat on restitution and a fine of more than $2,500, unless th& restitution or fme is paid ID fllll before the 
30th day after the dart c,fthe judgment. p,nuant 10 18 V.S.C. § 3612(t). All oftbo payment options on Sheet 6 miry be subject 
to pemltics for delinq,u:ncy and detault, pumiant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(8). 

0 Tho court determined tit.a the defendant does not haw the ability to pay in1ErcS1, and It is ordered that: 

O the Interest n:quirement i5 waived for O fine O restitution. 

D the intere.u nqulre,Mnt for tho O fine • relliluiion 1s modified u follows: 

Interest is not ordered so long as the restitution is paid in full 30 days from today's date 
D The Court finds that tM defcndmrt Is fin1DCially unable and is unlilcdy to become able to pay a fine and, accordin&)y, the 

imposition of a fino is W11ivecl. 

• Findings for the loDJ amount oflosecs arc i:equirod under Clllpters 109A, lJ0, I IOA, and 113A ofTitle I& for offenses committed oa or 
after September 13, 1994, but befurc April 23, 1996. 



Case 3:07-cr-05732-BHS Document 335 Filed 10/07/11 Page 6 of 8 

AO 215<: (1ft. 612005) AIIIClldod ~ 111 a Crialiul C-(1cv. USAO IOl'lOO.S} 
Dea SB-CrillaMI Mo"1lly Palalli• 

DEFENDANT: Weldon Mate Gilbert 
Jadpnmt-,.., _L_ of I 

CASE NUMBER.: CR07-S732BHS-OOI 

ADDmONAL RESTITUTION PAYEES 

Priority or 
Namto(Payee To1a1Lou• RmitJrtiog Qnlend Perg.ntne! 

JohnDoc6 1,717.49 1,717.49 
John Doc7 69,19S.45 69,19S.4S 
John Doe 8 49,021.40 49,021.40 
John Doe9 58,713.99 Sl,713.99 
John Doc 10 71,749.03 71,749.03 
John Doe l I 98,750.00 98,750.00 
John Doe 12 47,520.00 47.S20.00 
John Doe J3 21.22s.oo 21,225.00 
John Doe 14 32,758.80 32.758.80 
John Doe JS 2,,204.52 2,204.52 
John Doe 16 7,089.77 7,089.77 
John Doe 17 S4,3S3.SS 54.353.SS 
John Doe 18 68,575.00 68,575.00 
John Doe 19 67,625.00 67,625.00 
JohnDoe20 34,962.50 34,962.50 
John Doe21 51,830.00 51,830.00 

• Flnd!DP for the total amc,u,it of losses arc ~uired by ChapCers I 09A, 1 I 0, I JOA, and 113A ofTitlc I & for offi:nses committed on 
or after September I), 199•, but before April 23, 1996. 

--------------------
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Case 3 07-cr-05732-BHS Document 335 Filed 10/07/11 Page 7 of 8 

DEFENDANT: 
CASE NUMBER: 

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS 

Having as5eSS8d the defendant's ability IIO pay, payment oftbe total criminal inonewy penalties shall be due as follow,: 

181 PAYMENT IS DUE IMMEDIATELY. Defendant will fully pay the restitution amount within JO days.: 

D 

D During the period of supwvised release. in monlb)y lnstallmc:uts amounting to not less than-" ortht defendaat's 
gross moothly household income, to commence 30 da)'I after n,lease ftom Imprisonment 

• .During the penod of probation, ill monlh]y installment& amounting to not loss thall ___ % oftbe defendant's 
gross monthly household Income, to commence 30 days after the date of this judgmmt. 

The pa~e•t 1ehedule above ii the minhnum amount tbat the: defendut Is expected to pay towards the molldary 
penalties lmpoaed by the Court. Tbe defendant shall pay more th811 the amount eatablished wbenever ~Ible. Tbe 
defendant mmt notify the Coll~ the United States Probation Office.. and the United States Attoney'• Office or any 
material (:bani• ia tht defendaut•s filumeial cln:umatanca tbat might affect the ability to pay restitmion. 

Unless the coun has oprasly ordered otherwise, if this judgment imposes imprisonment. paymait of criminal monetary penaltie., Is due 
during Imprisonment 

AU crmunal mo~ l)Cll&lti~ ~_the>le payments made through Ibo Federal Bur=u of Prisons' lnma1r: financial ~bllity 
Pro~ an, made ta: Uoited Smlcs i,istrict Court, Westm> Distria of Washillgt.On. for rutitutioo paymcn!I. the Clerk of the COlli1 is IO 
fomrd inoney m:c,ivcd to the party(ies) dcsi~ to roceive restitution spccincd at page,~ of"this Judgment 

The defendut shall m:eive credit for all J>BY111Cnb pr9Viously inade toward any c.riminal monetary penalties imposed. 

0 Joinl and Several 

Defendant and Co-Deftnd1J1t Names and Case Numbers (including defendant number}, Joint and Several Amount, and corresponding 
payee, if appn,prim.. 

D The defendant shall pay the cost of prosecution 

O The defendant shall pay the !ollolVing cowt eosl{s): 

D ~ defendant shall fomlt the defecdant's ~ in the following property to the United States: 

PaY'1'fflts shall be !IPPlicd in tho following on!cr: (1} assessment, (2) ratitutioo princ~. (3) ~n interest, {4) ftlllt principal, 
(Sl fmc inlCl'CSt, (6) commUDity remtution, m pcnahies, and {I} COSIS, including cost of prosecution and court oostt. 
AO 245C (Rn 612005) Ama>dcd Jadfnic,11 ID I CMiinal Cu. (by. USA() lQ/lOOS) 

Sbcoc 6A - Scllochlle of Pa= (NO"IB, !«Ald'y CbDJDS WIIII Aslerillcs (•)) 
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Jlld~ _j_ of a 
DEFENDANT: WcldoDMan:Gllbal 

CASE NUMBER: ca01-m2BJ£.001 

ADDmONAL FORFEITED PROPERTY 
One blue Lexu GX470? bearing WA License 029RYB, VINOJTJBT20X940035115; One 2006 white 

Ford FISO ~ck-up, WA license A68898Z, VINlFTRF12206NBl5476; Ono 1981 Bell 206B helicopter, 
Tail#N325JR, Serial #3296, amd all flight logs and maintenance lo~ associated with this aircraft; One 1968 
Cessna A185E float plane, Tail #N22f<>T, Serial #185-1362, and al1 flight logs and maintenance logs 
associated with this aircraft; One 2003 Sea Ray boat, Model l85BR, license #WN8212NM, Boat Hull 
#0059RG, VJN IMDJ2JR163A248710; Real property located at 2901 211th Avenue East, Lake Tapps, 
W a.ffiington, 98391, parcel numbers 89960 l O 100, its buildings, impn>vements, appwtenances, fixtures, 
attachments and easements, more particularly described as: Lot 10 of Lake Tapps Island Division No. 1, 
ac.cording to the Plat tbereofrecoroed in volume 48 of Plats at pages 30 IO 34, inclusive records of Pierce 
County, Washington; Real property located at 2901 211th Avenue East, Lake Tapps, Washington 98391, 
parcel numbers 89960 IO 1 10, its buildings, improvements, appurtenances, fixtures, attachments, and 
easemei1ts, more particularly descnoed as: Lot 11 of Tapps Island Division No. l, according to the Plat 
thereof recorded m volume 48 of Plats at pages 30 to 34, inclusive records of Pierce County, Washington: 
One Sony Digital Handicam Digital 8 camcorder, mode DCR-TR.V2SO, Serial #388947; One Sony Video 8 
Handicam camcorder, model CCE-TR40, Serial #3009669; One Averatec laptop computer, model SSOO 
series, Serial nmnber obliterated; One Fry's Intel Pentium 4 computer tower, model FS7470, Serial . 
#747FSX340000296; One Avuatcc Notebook computer, model 2200 series. Serial number partial} 
obliterated. starting with NW04CE6040; One SeaGate Medalist l 3640hard drive, model STI 13640A, Serial 
#7AE054NA; One Western Digital WD1600 Enhanced IDE hard drive, Jnodel WD1600BB-OODAA0, Serial 
#WMACK2069917; One Western Digital WD400 Enhanced IDE hard drive, model WD400JB-OOENAO, 
Serial #WCAD197289S7; One Western Digi1al WD 1600 Enhanced IDE hard drive, model WD1600JB-
7SGVCO, Serial #WCAL96008970; One MX 100 camera tripod; and any and all images of child 
pomo~phy. in whatevei form and however ,itored, including but not limited to, those stored in zip disks, 
CDs/DVDs. video cassette tapes, and floppy disks. 

205 

- ----------------



E-FILED 
IN COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE 

PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

May 25 2018 8:30 AM 

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGWNocK 

In re the Personal Restraint Petition of: 

WELDON M. GILBERT, 

Petitioner. 

DIVISION II 

No. 51266-1 -II 

COUNTY CLERK 
NO: 07-1-05618-3 

CERTIFICATE OF FINALITY 

Pierce County 

Superior Court No. 07-1-05618-3 

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON TO: The Superior Court of the State of Washington in and 

for Pierr~ County . 
• 1, 

This is to certify that the decision of the Court of Appeals of the State of Washington, 
Division II, filed on April 12, 2018, became final on May 15, 2018. 

cc: 

Ann Farrell Stenberg 
Stenberg Law Office 
91 0 N Sqeridan A vc 
Tacoma, WA 98403-1527 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my 
hand and affixed the seal of said Court at Tacoma, this 
BY-a.day ofMay 2018. 

Derek M. Byrne 
Clerk of the Court of Appeals, 
State of Washington, Division II 
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Michelle Hyer 
Pierce County Prosecutor 
930 Tacoma Ave S Rm 946 
Tacoma, WA 98402-2102 



IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DIVISION TI 

In re the Personal Restraint of: No. 51266-1-11 

RULING DISMISSING APPEAL 
WELDON M. GILBERT, 

Petitioner, 

THIS MATTER came on for hearing of the clerk's motion to dismiss on the ground of 

abandonment, no filing fee or statement of finances having been submitted. Appellant has not 

responded to the Clerk's motion, and it appears that the appeal was taken for delay and should be 

dismissed for want of prosecution. RAP 18.9(a),(b). Accordingly, it is 

ORDERED that this appeal is dismissed . . ')~ . 
DA TED this .J..oL.. day of Q~t \ \ 

Ann Farrell Stenberg 
Stenberg Law Office 
910 N Sheridan Ave 
Tacoma, WA 98403-1527 
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, 2018. 

Michelle Hyer 
Pierce County Prosecutor 
930 Tacoma Ave S Rm 946 
Tacoma, WA 98402-2102 
PCpatcecf@co.pierce. wa. us 
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E-FILED 
IN COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE 

PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

November 08 2018 10:10 AM 

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGJij~ocK 

In re the 
Personal Restraint Petition of 

WELDON GILBERT, 

Petitioner. 

DIVISION II 

No. 51148-7-II 

COUNTY CLERK 
NO: 07-1-05618-3 

CERTIFICATE OF FINALITY 

Pierce County 
Superior Court No. 07-1-05618-3 

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON TO: The Superior Court of the State of Washington in and 

for Pierce County. 

This is to certify that the decision of the Court of Appeals of the State of Washington, 
Division II, filed on September 19, 2018, became final on October 22, 2018. 

Ann Farrell ' tenb ~rg 
Stenberg Law Office 
910 N Sheridan Ave 
Tacoma, WA 98403-1527 
annstenberglaw@msn.com 

Michelle Hyer 
Pierce County Prosecutor 
930 Tacoma Ave S Rm 946 
Tacoma, WA 98402-2102 
PCpatcecf@co. pierce. wa. us 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my 
9''1\SJlld affixed the seal of said Court at Tacoma, this 
~~y of October, 2018. 

Derek M. Byrne 
Clerk of the Court of Appeals, 
State of Washington, Division II 
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Suzanne Lee Elliott 
Attorney at Law 
705 2nd Ave Ste 1300 
Seattle, WA 98104-1 797 
suzanne-elliott@msn.com 



E-FILED 
IN COUNT~Sil,.~K'S OFFICE 

PIERCE co.~r-ttV:'WhSHINGTON 
W aslimgton State 
~c,foA~~§ AM 

D~J~~%~'t'R 
COUNTY CLERK 

Se~~~~§-t~ 
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

In re the 
Personal Restraint Petition of 

WELDON GILBERT, 

Petitioner. 

DIVISION II 

No. 51148-7-11 

ORDER GRANTING MOTION 
TO VO LUNT ARIL Y 
WITHDRAW PETITION AND 
DISMISSING PETITION 
WITHOUT PREJUDICE 

Weldon Gilbert has moved to voluntarily withdraw this petition. Respondent has 

not objected to this motion. Accordingly, this motion is granted and this petition is 

dismissed without prejudice. 

cc: Weldon Gilbert 
Pierce County Clerk 
County Cause No(s). 07-1-05618-3 
Michelle Hyer, Pierce County Prosecutor's Office 
Suzanne Lee Elliott 
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PIERCE COUNTY PROSECUTING ATTORNEY

March 13, 2020 - 4:23 PM

Transmittal Information

Filed with Court: Court of Appeals Division II
Appellate Court Case Number:   54188-2
Appellate Court Case Title: Personal Restraint Petition of Weldon M. Gilbert
Superior Court Case Number: 07-1-05618-3

The following documents have been uploaded:

541882_Personal_Restraint_Petition_20200313155638D2579146_5870.pdf 
    This File Contains: 
     Personal Restraint Petition - Response to PRP/PSP 
     The Original File Name was Gilbert States Response to PRP.pdf

A copy of the uploaded files will be sent to:

karim@suzanneelliottlaw.com
suzanne-elliott@msn.com

Comments:

Sender Name: Aeriele Johnson - Email: aeriele.johnson@piercecountywa.gov 
    Filing on Behalf of: Britta Ann Halverson - Email: britta.halverson@piercecountywa.gov (Alternate Email:
PCpatcecf@piercecountywa.gov)

Address: 
930 Tacoma Ave S, Rm 946 
Tacoma, WA, 98402 
Phone: (253) 798-7400

Note: The Filing Id is 20200313155638D2579146


